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All applicants seeking to establish a charter school authorized by the Board of Regents to
open in 2014 must submit a Letter of Intent to Apply, which requires completion of this
contact form, and an upload of your 5 page Letter of Intent to Apply as outlined in the
2014 RFP and Application Kit.  Please submit these tasks by 3:00 PM on February 3, 2014.
Applicants who do not submit a complete Letter of Intent to Apply by the 3:00
PM deadline will not be permitted to submit a Full Application.

a. Proposed Charter School Name

(Please write out the formal and full name for the school you proposed, and include the words "charter" and "school" in the proposed
name).

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School

b. Preferred school location. 

Select the preferred geographical area on the left and then select the preferred school district or community school district on the right.

NYC CSD-Queens: CSD 29

Select a second geographical area on left and then select the school district or community school district on right.

NYC CSD-Queens: CSD 28

If necessary, select a third geographical area on left and then select the school district or community school district on right.

None

c. Applicant(s) information, including mailing address, phone number, and email address, and
information establishing that the applicant(s) is a parent, teacher, school administrator or
community resident.

(The entire chart may not be visible on your screen. Use the "tab" key to move from column to column. The first column will remain
static as you do so).

First and Last
Name

Best Phone Number
(###-###-####)

Email Address Street Address, City, State, Zip

Lead Applicant Jeremiah Grant

As the Lead Applicant(s), I (we) can best be described as a: 
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(Multiple responses permitted)

•  Current or former School Administrator

•  Community Resident

d. Contact Person: please provide a phone number and/or email address to which public inquires
about the proposed charter school may be addressed.

First and Last
Name

Best Phone Number
(###-###-####)

Email Address URL (type web address or the
word "none")

Media Contact Lycia Grant 347-809-0173 questprepcs@gmail.
com

none

e. Planned grades and enrollment in each year of the proposed charter term.
Ages (or age
ranges)

2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020

K 4-5 72 72 72 72 72

1st 5-6 72 72 72 72 72

2nd 6-7 0 72 72 72 72

3rd 7-8 0 0 68 68 68

4th 8-9 0 0 0 66 66

5th 9-10 0 0 0 0 60

Total 144 216 284 350 410

f. Proposed Management and/or Partner Organization(s), such as a charter or educational
management company or a university, academic program partner, or whole school change
partner. 

(See pages 40 of the application kit for definitions and guidance as only "substantial" partnerships should be listed here).

f. Proposed Management and/or Partner Organization(s), such as a charter or educational management
company or a university, academic program partner, or whole school change partner. | Proposed
Management Company

N/A

f. Proposed Management and/or Partner Organization(s), such as a charter or educational management
company or a university, academic program partner, or whole school change partner. | Partner Organization
1

N/A

f. Proposed Management and/or Partner Organization(s), such as a charter or educational management
company or a university, academic program partner, or whole school change partner. | Partner Organization
2

N/A

Lead Applicant(s) Signature and Date
You have the option of adding your signature(s) as the Lead Applicant or Co-Lead Applicants
directly on the bottom of your Letter of Intent before you scan and upload it into the portal.

OR you may sign below using the mouse on your PC or stylist on your mobile device to sign
your name.
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Lead or Co-Applicant listed in section c above.

(Internet Explorer may not support this feature. Open the portal using Google Chrome, Firefox, or Safari).

Date Signed (Lead or Co-Applicant)

2014/01/22

Co-Applicant listed in section c above

(Internet Explorer may not support this feature. Open the portal using Google Chrome, Firefox, or Safari).

Date Signed (Co-Applicant)

(No response)

Thank you for completing the Contact Form which will be duplicative of some information
contained in your letter of intent. Having information in this form allows the Department to
merge applicant contact information into our existing data system. Please proceed to upload
your signed and dated 5 page Letter of Intent to Apply.



LETTER OF INTENT: QUESTBRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL

I. Applicant Information  

a. Lead Applicant 
Jeremiah Grant

  
                            

Jeremiah Grant is a community resident and a former school administrator.   

b. Media Contact
Lycia Grant
Tel: (347)-809-0173)      E-mail: Questprepcs@gmail.com 

c. Applicant Group Information

     Jeremiah Grant is a community resident and as former K-12 school administrator for 
Bethlehem Christian Academy and Oxford Christian Academy in Richmond Hill, NY. He 
previously served as Adjunct Professor for Penn Valley Community College in Kansas 
City, Missouri where he successfully co-pioneered two family development programs. He 
also served as  Head Start Site Manager for KCMC Child Development Corporation as 
well  as  other  large corporations.   Jeremiah and Lycia first  conceived the idea of  the 
school. He holds degrees in several disciplines including a Master’s degree in Business 
Management  and  will  serve  in  the  proposed  role  as  CEO  overseeing  the  business 
operations of the school.  Dr. Smita Guha practices her pedagogical skills as a professor 
at St. John’s University.  She brings experience as a coordinator of the Early Childhood 
Program and tenured as a full time professor in Early Childhood Education.  She is also 
faculty advisor  of  New York City Association  for  Childhood  Education  International 
(ACEI). Dr. Guha will serve in the role of adviser to the school.  Gregory Pietrzak is an 
attorney with bar admissions to the states of New York and New Jersey representing a 
wide range of immigration matters, including family-based petitions, employment related 
petitions and counsel to employers on I-9 compliance law.  He is well acquainted with the 
issues faced by immigrant families and children. Mr. Pietrazak will serve as Board Vice 
Chair. Lycia Grant has served as a K-5 Assistant principal and classroom teacher and is 
currently completing a Master’s degree in Education toward obtaining her certification in 
School Building Leadership.  She also holds a Master’s degree in Marketing and has a 
background in training and real estate.  She is currently Director of the Learning Solution 
Center and a current community resident.  Lycia will serve as Board Chair. 
     Dr. Christine Keefe serves as Program Director for Two Bridges Neighborhood 
Council.  She  holds  a  PhD  in  Cognitive  Ecology  and  has  taught  primary  through 
University-levels.  She has experience with curriculum design and development specific 
to STEM. She is knowledgeable about fundraising and has raised thousands of dollars in 
grants.  She has done work for the New York Hall of Science; Corporation for Public 
Broadcasting; Yale Peabody Museum and the American Museum of Natural History. Dr. 
Keefe will serve as a board member.  Phillip Stanford is an Adjunct Professor at Medgar 
Evers  College  and  a  retired  school  administrator  in  CSD I.  His  experiences  include 
teacher training, curriculum development, teacher and program evaluation and working 
with alternative school programs.  He is also a current community resident.  Mr. Stanford 
will  serve  as  a  board  member. Lorna  Lightfoot is  an  Accounts  Payable/Receivable 
Manager with her company. She has experience in finance and college admissions. She is 
a Notary Public and has a keen sense of operational responsibilities. Lenora Allen-Hines 
brings a fresh perspective from the administrative side of advertising/marketing and sales 
industry. She is an Executive Secretary with Black Entertainment Television.  Horace 
Aiken is a Public Accountant with over twenty years of experience in accounting and 
auditing.  Several of these years have been in the Not-for-profit industry as an auditor as 
well as Chief Financial Officer.  His experience includes working with both private and 
charter schools. He is also a current community resident.  Mr. Aiken will serve as Board 
Treasurer. Dr. Scherly Leon is a practicing physician with New York Hospital of Queens. 
Dr. Leon has published and given several presentations on medical topics. In addition to 
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LETTER OF INTENT: QUESTBRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL

her medical experience, some of her other skills include fundraising and research. Dr. 
Leon will serve as a board member. Carola Craig is the Parent Coordinator for Queens 
Gateway to Health Sciences Secondary School. Her responsibilities include building and 
maintaining  parent  partnership  at  the  school.   She  has  provided  several  years  of 
successful parent engagement and advocacy at  the school.  The school has one of the 
strongest  PTA and parent  engagement  program in  the borough of  Queens.  Ms.  Craig 
serves a diverse community of parents and has a great understanding of cultural diversity 
and how to work with a variety of parent  groups.   She is  also a current  community 
resident.  Ms. Craig will serve as Board Secretary. 
Each founding group member has been on the board for a significant amount of time and  
contributed to the development of the proposed plan.

d. Initial Board of Trustees Information: The response to I.c. above indicates the relevant 
experience, skills, amount of time involved with the planning group and key contribution. 
Lycia Grant
Gregory Pietrzak
Dr. Christine Keefe
Phillip Stanford
Horace Aiken
Dr. Scherly Leon
Carola Craig
Vacancy is reserved for a parent representative.

e. Replication or Network Information: Questbridge Preparatory Charter School (QPCS) 
is  not  a  replication  of  another  school  model;  thus,  we are  not  seeking to  invoke the 
language of the law in the current NYS Charter School Act and receive a charter as a 
replication.  QPCS’ carefully  designed  model  is  grounded in  research,  based  on best 
practices  and draws  upon the  works  of  education  theorists  such as  Jean  Piaget,  Lev 
Vygotsky, John Dewey and Howard Gardner.  

f. Application History: not applicable  

II. Proposed Charter School Information (name, location, grades, partners)  
a. Proposed School Name: Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
b. Proposed School Location: Community School District 29 in Queens, NYC
c. Planned Grades and Enrollment for Each Year: Grades K-5

Growth Chart
Grade Ages Year 1

2015-16

Year 2

2016-17

Year 3

2017-18

Year 4

2018-19

Year 5

2019-20

    K 4-5 72 72 72 72 72

1 5-6 72 72 72 72 72

2 6-7 72 72 72 72

3 7-8 68 68 68

4 8-9 66 66

5 9-10 60

Total 144 216 284 350 410
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LETTER OF INTENT: QUESTBRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL

*The numbers are adjusted for student attrition

The school intends to start in 2015 with 144 students in grades K-1, and then phase in an 
additional grade each year until the school reaches grade 5.        At that time the complete 
elementary school will service approximately 410 students.  
     QPCS will  partner  with Columbia University Teachers  College,  Pace University 
STEM Consortium, the Behavior Intervention Support Team (BIST), Logo Foundation 
and Leed Green Associates. These institutions and groups will provide staff development, 
curriculum development and professional support as needed to ensure the success of the 
school as we facilitate our students’ learning. QPCS has consulted with professors at St. 
John’s University Education Department, the organizations listed above, The Bankstreet 
School for Children as well as visited and spoken with several charter schools leaders in 
this process for relationship building and student success. 

d. Proposed Management/Partner Organization: not applicable 
e. Proposed School Mission: QPCS’ mission is to prepare a diverse community of K-5 

students  to excel  in  Science,  Technology,  Engineering and Math (STEM) for the 21st 

Century,  and to  create  an  environment  where  students  are  inspired  and supported  to 
always do their best.  In order to do so, students will be provided with a rigorous, well-
rounded, project-based and experienced-centered curriculum that will prepare them for 
excellence in school and life. 

f. School Overview: 
    QPCS will incorporate key design elements that are grounded in research, evidence 
based  and  successfully  implemented  in  schools  in  many areas  of  the  United  States, 
including New York City.   It  will  welcome all  students,  including students at  risk of 
academic failure, Students with Disabilities (SWD), English Language Learners (ELLs), 
Title I students and provide a viable and successful educational option for them and their 
families. Cognizant that not all students come prepared at the same level, the school will 
implement critical instructional and interventional strategies across the grades to ensure 
academic success. Our instructional approach incorporates project-based learning /direct 
instruction (PB/DI), which supports all students.  
     A unique part of our mission and rigorous curriculum is an intense focus on Science, 
Technology,  Engineering and Math (STEM). The curriculum will  be aligned with the 
Common Core Standards.  By focusing intensely in these areas, we believe our students 
will be better prepared to meet the demands of a knowledge society.  Special attention 
will be given to English language arts, social studies and the arts.  Students’ learning will 
be further enhanced through the study of Spanish and computer programming.   As we 
endeavor to develop the whole child, physical education, academic service learning as 
well as our after-school, summer enrichment and green components will play a critical 
role  in  the  school  program. These  components  will  also  provide  students  with 
opportunities to participate in projects that develop their sense of caring and appreciation 
for each other, their community and the earth.

     Gradual Release of Responsibility (GRR) will be used as our overarching instructional 
model paired with PB/DI and Columbia University’s Teachers College Reading Writing 
Workshop (RWW), the specific model for ELA. In this way, our students will be engaged 
in rich literacy content while at the same time developing the skills inherent in critical  
thinking,  strategic  reading and writing.   In  addition to  helping our young learners to 
become avid, skilled readers, writers, and reflective thinkers, a goal of the Reading and 
Writing  Workshop is  to  “support  expert  literacy instruction  through research  and the 
professional  development  of  teachers  and  school  leaders.”  By  gradually  assuming 
increased  responsibility  for  their  learning,  students  will  flourish  as  they  become 
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competent,  independent  learners.  Importantly,  the  peer  learning  aspect  of  these 
methodologies  is  highly  effective  in  working  with  students  of  all  groups,  including, 
SWD, ELLs,  Title  I  students  and At-risk students.   PB/DI,   GRR and    RWP provide 
excellent opportunities for teachers to differentiate instruction.  Assessment will inform 
teaching.  This ensures student needs are identified and instruction is tailored to address 
recognized concerns. 

     An important part of our mission is to infuse students with values of understanding 
and respect  for  others  through an  integration  of  the  Six Pillars  of  Character  and the 
Behavior Intervention Support Team (BIST) models. These approaches promote personal 
and social responsibility through a process of actions and reflection, enabling students to 
develop the skills necessary for leading productive lives.

     Our instructional staffing model and class schedule will allow two teachers to provide 
instruction within each K-5 classroom of 24 students.  Our organizational design elements 
include extended time on task for students.  QPCS will offer a longer school day and year 
so that all students will have a greater opportunity to meet proficiency standards in all  
subject areas. Teachers will engage in collaboration as they work with students in small 
groups providing effective scaffolding.  The instructional  staff  will  be supported  by a 
comprehensive professional development program. QPCS will create a culture of high 
expectations  for  both  staff  and  students.  Collaboration,  reflection,  teamwork,  mutual 
respect, accountability, and innovative thinking will be shared values within the school. 

        Developing and nurturing relationships with families will be a critical component of 
the school.  Parents are seen as partners in their child’s success.  Community involvement 
will also play a critical role in building and maintaining a successful school. These design 
elements  as  well  as  the  overall  staffing  plan  meet  the  diverse  needs  of  all  students 
including  at-risk  students.  Our  fiscal  plan  supports  these  elements  through  direct 
allocation of resources as well as in-kind services such as pro bono work for our facility 
preparation and technology set up provided by some of our partners, saving us thousands 
of dollars in start-up costs. These design elements reflect QPCS’ mission, goals, and each 
of the objectives delineated in Education Law 2850(2). 

Extended Year

Students will receive an additional 10 hours of instruction.  The Summer Bridge Program 
held during the month of July will provide enrichment and/or remediation as needed.

Extended Day

7:00 a.m. - 7:45 a.m.  Breakfast                 7:45 a.m. - 8:00 am    Daily Assembly

8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.  Instruction              4:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m.  After-School Program  

g. Target Population 
     Students will be recruited from the District 29Q community.   District 29Q has a diverse 
student population: 66% Black, 12% Hispanic, 8% Asian, and 7% White.  The district’s 
school population reflects the demographic trends of the general population.  QPCS will 
welcome all students including students at-risk of academic failure, ELLs and SWD and 
Title I students.  According to the 2012 New York State Report Card there are 164,908 
Special Education students in the borough of Queens.  Overall, students in this district 
score poorly on both the ELA and Math Standardized tests.  In the latest student data, the 
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overall  ELA score for 2013 was 21.65 percent proficient.  The math score was 20.16 
percent.  These scores were the lowest throughout the borough.  Academically, children 
have struggled in CSD 29Q. The New York State Report Card also shows that for 2011-
12, 50%, 48% and 48% of all 3rd, 4th and 5th graders respectively scored below proficiency 
standards on the NYS ELA exam and 50%, 43%, and 40% of all 3rd, 4th and 5th graders 
respectively scored below proficiency standards on the NYS Math exam. The percentage 
of Blacks and Hispanic students scoring at  Levels 3 and 4 were 25 to 35 percentage 
points lower than their White and Asian counterparts in both these exams.  According to 
the 2012 New York State Report Card 63% of the students in this district were eligible for 
the free or reduced price lunch (FRPL) program and 8% of students were classified as 
Limited English Proficient (LEP).

 III.     Enrollment and Retention of Students with disabilities, ELLs and eligible for FRPL   
     QPCS will welcome all students, including students at-risk of academic failure, SWD, 
ELLs and Title I students.  We will engage in a focused effort to attract, recruit,  and 
ultimately retain all students, particularly the population mentioned above.  Our outreach 
program will  extend  to  all  district  elementary  school  programs.  We will  retain  our 
students, particularly those from these at-risk populations, because of our comprehensive 
system of support, family engagement and instructional model that not only uses data to 
inform instruction;  but  provide  scaffolding  and  intervention  strategies  that  ensure  no 
child falls through the cracks. We will market our school to neighborhoods in CSD 29Q 
where a predominance of low income/poverty-level families and non-English speaking 
families reside.  We will leverage the community-base contacts of our team and the many 
community  leaders  we  have  engaged,  including  clergy,  elected  officials,  nonprofit 
administrators,  directors  of  preschool  and  Head  Start  programs,  among  other  stake 
holders who serve non-English speaking and/or economically disadvantaged as well as 
SWD  constituency.  These  meetings  will  highlight  the  academic  program;  inclusive 
school culture; academic support and intervention services specifically focused on ELLs, 
SWD and Title I children.  We will also target preschools serving SWD and network with 
early intervention providers.  All recruitment and application material will be available in 
the predominant languages of the community.     
     QPCS’ representatives will communicate the school’s mission to as many families 
through school fair and events, information sessions  within the identified communities, 
such as in houses of worships; local CBO and organizations serving low income children, 
ELLs and SWD; flyers;  website and newspapers including those focused on minority 
populations.  Based on our assessment of community interest we have no doubt we will  
be able to reach our anticipated enrollment.  The two charter schools currently in the 
district  have  been experiencing an  overwhelming demand for  seats  with each school 
maintaining a waiting list of over 500 students. We will meet or exceed enrollment and 
retention requirements for these students as required by New York Statues Sec. 2852(9) 
(b) (i).

 IV.       Public Outreach and Community Support 
To date,  founding  group  members  have  presented  at  houses  of  worship  such  as  the 
Greater Allen A.M.E Cathedral of NY, Beth-El Baptist Church and other organizations in 
District 29.  The founding group have conducted community meetings and presented to 
Community Board 13Q public meeting, Queens Village Civic Association public meeting, 
Queens Village Public library, St. Albans Public Library, Cambria Heights Public Library, 
local YMCA, NAACP, elected officials, community leaders, created a facbook page and 
survey,  received  newspaper  publicity  (Queens  Chronicle)  and  have  secured  letters  of 
support.  We are continuing to reach out to parents and gathering  signatures.  We are 
receiving eager support from parents and the community who welcome this venture and 
believe that this is critical for the future success of the children.  

                                
                        Jeremiah Grant                                                             Date
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Your Choice: Round 1 or Round 2 Submission Deadline
Created Wednesday, February 26, 2014
Updated Friday, February 28, 2014

Page 1

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School

As the lead applicant(s) in consultation with the other members of the applicant group, we
intend to submit a full application in: 

Select one of the two options from the dropdown menu.

Round 1 by March 28th

Signature of Lead Applicant, Jeremiah Grant.

Signature of the Co-Applicant, . (If Co-Applicant is listed)
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Application Summary 

Charter School Name Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 

Applicant Name (s) Jeremiah Grant 

Applicant (s) E-mail Address  

Applicant (s) Contact Telephone Number 

Public Contact Name Lycia Grant 

Public Contact Email Address questprepcs@gmail.com 

Public Contact Telephone Number 347-809-0173 

District of Location CSD 29Q 

Opening Date September 2015 

Proposed Charter Term 5 Years 

Proposed Management Company or Partners  N/A 

Proposed Replication of Successful School 

Model 

N/A 

Projected Enrollment and Grade Span During 

Charter Term 

410 Students in Grade K-5 

 Projected Maximum Enrollment and Grade 

Span 

432 Students in Grade K-5  

Mission Statement 

 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School’s 

(QPCS) mission is to prepare a diverse 

community of K-5 students to excel in science, 

technology, engineering and math (STEM) for 

the 21
st
 century, and to create an environment 

where students are inspired and supported to 

always do their best. In order to do so, students 

will be provided with a rigorous, well-rounded, 

project-based and experienced- centered 

curriculum that will prepare them for 

excellence in school and life.  
       
Inspired by new effective instructional practices, nationally and internationally, Questbridge 
Preparatory Charter School (QPCS) incorporates key educational design elements that are 
grounded in research, evidence based, data-driven and successfully implemented in schools in 
many areas of the United States, including New York City. QPCS will provide parents with a 
viable and successful educational option in Community School District 29Q (CSD 29Q).  

 

Objective:     
The fundamental objective of Questbridge Preparatory Charter School (QPCS) is to prepare 
students academically and emotionally for career and life by helping them take the first steps in 
acquiring lifelong skills and values.  In order to achieve this objective, QPCS will ensure that:  

 The curriculum is challenging, dynamic and committed to excellence.   
 Students will demonstrate mastery in mathematics, science, engineering, and 

technology concepts (S.T.E.M) through the use of analysis and inquiry.  
 Students will become proficient readers, writers and speakers of the English language 
 Students will be knowledgeable about U.S History, World History, and Geography.  
 Students will explore areas of interest to enable them to see the patterns, relationships 

and the connectedness of learning.  Instruction will occur in a nurturing environment.    
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QPCS welcomes any student in CSD 29Q.  We are committed to making a concerted effort to 
ensure that students at-risk of academic failure, Students with Disabilities (SWD), and English 
Language Learners (ELLs) are well informed of their options.  CSD 29Q has a diverse student 
population: 66% Black, 12% Hispanic, 8% Asian, and 7% White. It is a district in need of strong 
public schools where students can meet or exceed New York State’s learning standards.   
Students have struggled academically in CSD 29Q. In the latest student data, the overall ElA 
score for 2013 was 21.65 percent proficient.  The math score for 2013 was 20.16 percent 
proficient. The New York State Report Card shows that for 2011-12, 50%, 48% and 48% of all 
3

rd
, 4

th
 and 5

th
 graders respectively scored below proficiency standards on the NYS ELA exam, 

50%, 43%, and 40% of all 3
rd

, 4
th

 and 5
th

 graders respectively scored below proficiency standards 
on the NYS Math exam.  There are 164,908 SWD in the borough.  According to the 2011-12 
New York State Report Card 63% of the students in this district were eligible for free or reduced 
price lunch, 8% of students were classified as Limited English Proficient (LEP). 
 
Black and Hispanic students scoring at Level 3 or 4 are on average 25 to 35 percentage points 
lower than their White and Asian counterparts on both NYS math and ELA exams.  In addition, 
English Language Learners (ELLs) and Students with Disability (SWD) who met proficiency 
standards, did so at significantly lower levels than their English proficient and general education 
classmates.  
 
QPCS is a K-5 elementary charter school that has an intense focus on Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Math. Special attention is also given to English language arts development, 
social studies and the arts.  Students’ learning is further enhanced through the study of Spanish 
and computer programming.  Since we endeavor to develop the whole child, physical education, 
after-school and summer enrichment play a critical role in the school’s program.  
 
QPCS is a green sustainable school. Students have learning opportunities to participate in 
projects that develop their sense of caring and appreciation for each other, their community and 
the earth. In addition, there is an academic service learning component.  QPCS has a longer 
school day and year so that all students, especially those at-risk of academic failure, can meet 
proficiency standards in all subject areas while still having time to engage in studies outside of 
core subjects.   
 
QPCS uses Gradual Release of Responsibility (GRR) as our overarching instructional model in 
conjunction with our project-based/direct instruction (PB/DI) model and Columbia University’s 
Teachers College Reading Writing Workshop (RWW), the specific model for instruction in 
ELA. By gradually assuming increased responsibility for their learning, students will flourish as 
they become competent, independent learners.  Additionally, the peer learning aspect of these 
methodologies is highly effective in working with students of all groups, including Students with 
Disabilities (SWD), English Language Learners (ELLs) and Title I students.  PB/DI, GRR and 
RWW provide the opportunity for teachers to differentiate instruction.  Assessment is used to 
inform teaching.  This ensures students’ needs are identified and instruction is tailored to address 
recognized concerns.  
 
An important part of our mission is to develop in students, values of understanding and respect 
for others through an integration of the Six Pillars of Character and the Behavior Intervention 
Support Team (B.I.S.T) models.  In addition, the development and nurturing of relationships 
with families and the community is viewed as a critical component of the school.  Parents are 
seen as partners in their child’s success and community involvement adds to the sustainability of 
a successful school and community.  To this end, QPCS will engage parents, Community Based 
Organizations (CBOs), community leaders and others to participate in the school’s continued 
evolution and execution of its mission.  



CERTIFICATION AilD ASSURANCES STATEMENT

Proposed Charter School Name qst6*ttl Chntr,'- SrL,-oal
Proposed School Location (District)

I hereby certify that the founding group/prospective Board of Trustees have all read Article 56 of the New York
State Education Law, and understand the relationship between a charter school and the authorized chartering
entity as defined in that statute. By submitting a charter school application to the Board of Regents, the founding
group/prospective Board of Trustees understands that the Board of Regents is the authorized chartering entity
with the authority to approve our application to establish the proposed charter school and enter into a charter
agreement setting forth the terms and conditions under which the Board of Trustees will operate the charter
school. The applicant founding group/prospective Board of Trustees also understands that this charter school
application serves as the first component of an application for a federal Charter Schools Program (CSP) Planning
and lmplementation Grant. We understand that if the charter application is approved and a charter is issued by
the Board of Regents, the school is qualified to receive a CSP grant, pending available funding and final approval of
additional materials - including budget materials - by NYSED and by the New York State Office of the Comptroller.
We agree to complete all required budget information and assurances according to forthcoming instructions and a
revised timeframe to be issued by NYSED.

I hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is true to the best of my knowledge and belief;
and further I understand that, if awarded a charter, the proposed school shall be open to all students on a space

available basis, and shall not discriminate or limit the admission of any student on any unlawful basis, including on

the basis of ethnicity, race, creed, national origin or ancestry, gender, sexual orientation, disability, intellectual
ability, measures of achievement or aptitude, athletic ability, age, religion, proficiency in the English language or a

foreign language, or academic achievement. I understand that the Charter Schools Act allows, to the extent
consistent with Federal law, "the establishment of a single-sex charter school or a charter school designed to
provide expanded learning opportunities for students at-risk of academic failure or students with disabilities and

English language learners."6

The applicant(s) also make(s) the following assurances pursuant to Section 5203(bX3) of Elementary and

Secondary Education Act (ESEA) and the Consolidated Appropriations Act, which will be incorporated into, and

made a part of, the Charter School's charter, if granted, and be binding on the Charter School itself:

o An assurance that the charter school will annually provide the Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Education and the State Education Department such information as may be required to determine if the
charter school is making satisfactory progress toward achieving the objectives described in this
application 

7

o An assurance that the charter school will cooperate with the Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Education and the State Education Department in evaluating the program assisted under this subpart;8

and,
e That the charter school will provide such other information and assurances as the Secretary of the U.S.

Department of Education and the State Education Department may require.e

6 
N.Y. Education Law 5 2854(2Xa)
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I. Mission, Key Design Elements, Enrollment, and Community 
 

A. Mission Statement and Objectives 
 

Mission Statement that defines the purpose of the proposed charter school: 
To prepare a diverse community of K-5 students to excel in science, technology, engineering and 
math (S.T.E.M) for the 21

st
 Century, and to create an environment where students are inspired 

and supported to always do their best. In order to do, students will be provided with a rigorous, 
well-rounded, project-based and experienced-centered curriculum that will prepare them for 
excellence in school and life. 
 
Objectives:     
The fundamental Objective of Questbridge Preparatory Charter School (QPCS) is to prepare and help 
students develop academically and emotionally for career and life by helping them take the first 
steps in acquiring lifelong skills and values.  In order to achieve this objective, QPCS will ensure 
that:  
 The curriculum is challenging, dynamic and committed to excellence.  QPCS is dedicated 

to providing an educational experience that encourages all children to feel that they can, 
and will be successful learners.  Our integrated curriculum will provide instruction in a 
variety of ways that aim to stimulate thinking and help students gain deeper 
understanding.  
 

 Students will demonstrate their understanding and application of science, technology, 
engineering and mathematics (S.T.E.M) concepts. This will be done through the use of 
analysis and inquiry; the development of competencies and aptitude in problem-solving; 
facility with numbers; reasoning; argument and proof; mental discipline; and strategic 
and analytical thinking where one’s understanding deepens beyond the classroom. 
Learning does not take place in a vacuum nor is it static.  Rather, it is dynamic, 
challenging and seeks to connect to the individual’s experiences.  It is therefore, critical 
that children’s learning be demonstrative in order to ascertain their level of 
understanding.  It is only in the application and demonstration of one’s knowledge that 
instruction can be improved or enhanced to better meet the needs of students.   
 

 Students will demonstrate proficiency in reading, writing and speaking of the English 
language.  The ability to read, write and speak fluently in one’s language is consequential 
to one’s overall success.  The development of these skills especially in the early years 
determines the level of achievement that will be experienced moving forward.  Therefore, 
mastery of these skills must be the goal if there is to be an effective impact on students’ 
outcomes. 
 

 Students will demonstrate their knowledge of U.S History, World History, Geography 
and the essential concepts of citizenship and democracy.  It is important for students to be 
adept in their knowledge and understanding of history and geography.  The reason is that, 
these subject matters create the framework for one’s personal and cultural identity, social 
interaction, and one’s perspective of the world they live in. The way in which students 
interact with local and global information and concepts directly impacts their ability to 
develop the necessary skills and relationships that will further their success beyond the 
classroom.  Understanding the principles of good citizenship and democracy provides 
students with the foundation needed to make a difference in their community and world.  
 

 Students will explore areas of interest to enable them to critique and analyze patterns, 
relationships and make connections in their learning.  Skills and concepts learned in 
context rather than in isolation prove more meaningful and sustainable. 
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 QPCS will provide a safe and nurturing environment and encourage respect, ethical 

behavior, good citizenship, and individual responsibility. To accomplish these goals 
QPCS will establish a community of mutual respect among students, staff and parents.  
Through the use of the Six Pillars of Character, principles of Reality Therapy/Choice 
Theory and the Behavior Intervention Support Team (B.I.S.T) model, students will 
experience character development with love, logic, grace and dignity.   

 

Questbridge Preparatory and the Objectives of the Charter Schools Act 
Questbridge Preparatory Charter School will be successful in achieving its goals and 
fundamental objective.  In order to do so, QPCS will advance the six objectives outlined in New 
York State Education Law 2850(2) and delineated in the Charter Schools Act through its unique 
school design elements, innovative instructional and organizational approaches and its culture of 
high expectations and excellence as described below: 
 

Improve Student Learning and Achievement   
The model for instruction, staffing plan and how data is used at Questbridge Preparatory Charter 
School will promote individualized and differentiated instruction, supporting learning and 
achievement of all students including students at-risk of academic failure.  According to the 
National Dropout Prevention Center/Network various circumstances can often place students at-
risk.  Some of these circumstances include economics, culture, language and social issues. The 
Project-based/Direct Instruction approach (PB/DI) coupled with the Gradual Release of 
Responsibility (GRR) model provide students with the skills necessary to improve learning and 
achievement.  The GRR model of instruction requires that the teacher shift from assuming “all the 
responsibility for performing a task…to one in which the students assume the responsibility” 
(Duke and Pearson, 2002, p. 211).  By gradually assuming increasing responsibility for their 
learning, students become competent, independent learners (Graves, M.F., & Fitzgerald, J. 
(2003). 

1
 

 
An important aspect of the GRR model is peer interaction learning. These methodologies are 
effective when working with classrooms of heterogeneous students, including students with 
disabilities (SWD) (Steven, R. J., & Slavin, R. E. (1995); 

2
 English language learners (ELLs) 

(Kong, A., & Pearson, P.D. (2003).  The Road to Participation: 
3
 The Construction of a Literacy 

Practice in a Learning Community of Linguistically Diverse Learners.  Research in the Teaching 
of English, 38, 85-124). , and Title I students, as well as accelerated learners.   
 
QPCS’ program which include comprehensive assessments and Response to Intervention (RTI) 
will enable teachers to quickly identify struggling students, assess their needs and implement 
timely remediation. Our educational plan, staffing model and budget further detail how QPCS’ 
design supports the success of all students. 
 
 

Increase Learning Opportunities for all Students, Especially Those Children At-risk of 
Academic Failure 

QPCS will provide a longer school day and year.  It will have 190 instructional days per year 

(versus 180 in the district public schools) and 10 hours more instructional time per year. QPCS’ 

Summer Bridge Program is academic based with dynamic opportunities for recreational and 

cultural enrichment that will expose students to experiences they may not ordinarily have.  A 

                                                           
1
 National Dropout Prevention Center/Network 

2
 Steven, R. J., & Slavin, R. E. (1995). Effectiveness of a cooperative learning approach in reading and writing on 

academically handicapped and non-handicapped students.  Elementary School Journal, 95, 241-262. 
3
 Graves, M. F., & Fitzgerald, J. (2003). Scaffolding reading experiences for multilingual classrooms.  
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longer school day and year is critical to sustain achievement. QPCS has an intense focus on 

Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (S.T.E.M). The goal and intent of this, is to provide 

students with the opportunity to construct new knowledge and problem-solving skills through the 

process of designing artifacts. 
4
 Research tells us that students learn best when encouraged to 

construct their own knowledge of the world around them.  It is through integrated S.T.E.M 

projects that this type of learning can occur. 
5
  

     

Each week, all students will have 7.5 hours in Math, 7.5 hours in Science, 4 hours in Computer 

Science/Technology (technology will be integrated throughout the curriculum), 7.5 hours of 

instruction in ELA, 2 hours in Social Studies (Social Studies will also be integrated throughout 

the grades), 1 hour in foreign language instruction (allocation of more time to be considered as 

the program moves forward), in addition to the arts and Physical Education. The after school 

program activities will include, tutoring and enrichment geared toward the development of the 

whole child.  Our instructional staffing model and class schedule incorporates the use of two 

teachers in each K-5 classroom.  Each classroom of 24 students will have the additional 

instructional support that comes with having two qualified teachers (12:1 ratio).  With a focus on 

S.T.E.M, students will have many learning opportunities.  
 

Encourage Use of Different and Innovative Teaching Methods 
In addition to differentiated instruction and teaching higher order thinking skills (Bloom’s 

model), QPCS will follow a Project-base /Direct Instruction approach. The Project Approach is a 

set of teaching strategies that enable teachers to guide children through-in-depth studies of real 

world topics.  According to Fortus, Krajcikb, Dershimerb, Marx, & Mamlok-Naamand, (2005), 

this approach to teaching and learning is based on a vision of children as active, holistic, learners 

capable of inquiry.  It emphasizes the importance of supporting children’s curiosity, their 

intrinsic motivation to learn, their growing critical awareness of the world around them, and their 

eagerness to reflect on and communicate their experiences and knowledge.  This approach 

incorporates assessment tools that are utilized in formative and summative evaluations.  This 

approach also supports the GRR method.   
 

Create New Professional Opportunities for Teachers, School Administrators and Other 

School Personnel 
     In addition, ensuring that QPCS’ staff is certified and highly qualified is in line with the 

mission and vision of the school. The teaching staff will have access to technology. OnCourse 

technology allows communication between staff and stakeholders (described in I.D. Evaluation), 

curriculum resources, real-time student achievement data and ongoing, professional development 

(PD).  The Charlotte Danielson framework will be used to promote professional excellence and 

high expectations, to establish guidelines and responsibilities to ensure students learning, and 

provide the impetus for professional development (PD). Teachers also have daily PD 

opportunities. QPCS places emphasis on a teamwork approach to raising student achievement, 

enabling teachers to have intervisitation, providing peer support and coordinating their 

instruction so that an integration of subject areas can enhance student learning, teambuilding, 

classroom planning and data review.  The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Principal will 

conduct meetings with teachers, distribute student achievement data and provide ongoing 

professional development for teachers.  QPCS will utilize a performance-based incentives system 

                                                           
4
 Fortus, Krajcikb, Dershimerb, Marx, & Mamlok-Naamand, 2005 

5
 Integrated STEM Education through Project-Based Learning 1012074 
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(PBI) in regards to compensation for instructional staff.  The goal of this system is to encourage 

high performance by staff members ( see III.D. Evaluation). 
 

 
Provide Parents and Students with Expanded Choices in the Types of Educational 

Opportunities that are Available Within the Public School System 
QPCS’ high standards of excellence, rigorous academic model, innovative S.T.E.M curriculum; 
with a Project-based/Direct Instruction approach, in addition to promoting green sustainability, 
makes it a unique addition to CSD 29Q.  It is a caring school environment, which will draw a 
diverse student body. It differs from other CSD 29Q elementary schools in that it offers a student 
to teacher ratio of 12:1 which is lower in comparison to other neighboring schools.  Finally, 
QPCS offers students an opportunity with more time for instruction than other district schools. 
 

Provide Schools With a Method to Change From Rule-based to Performance-based 
Accountability Systems by Holding the Schools Established Under the Article Accountable 

for Meeting Measurable Student Achievement Results 
The decision-making and evaluation process at QPCS is data driven. This will ensure that every 
aspect of its performance, including the effectiveness of its academic programs, allocation of 
financial and human resources, the retention and compensation of staff and the functioning of its 
board will be evaluated and transparent. Everyone related to QPCS will share the responsibility 
of meeting or exceeding our school achievement goals.  Assessment data from the NYS tests, 
observations, research in education, and best practices will be used to inform instruction, 
promote academic excellence, monitor student progress, identify and monitor intervention 
services, inform dynamic grouping of students, and make adjustments to our instructional 
program.  QPCS is a merit-pay school and thus staff will be compensated based on performance.  
 
QPCS believes that all public schools should be held accountable.  We are committed to 
performance-based accountability which enables us to meet measurable student achievement 
criteria as well as fiscal and operational performance measures.    
 

 
B.  Key Design Elements 
QPCS’ key design elements are grounded in educational research that has been successfully 
implemented in schools in many areas of the United States, including New York City.  Our key 
design elements are built on data and research.  The instructional design elements that QPCS 
implements include: Project-based/Direct Instruction (PB/DI) with a focus on science, 
technology, engineering and math (S.T.E.M), Gradual Release of Responsibility (GRR), 
Balanced Literacy and Academic Service Learning. Our organizational design elements include 
extended time on task and embedded PD.  The design elements as well as the staffing plan meet 
the diverse needs of all of our students. The fiscal plan supports these elements through 
appropriate allocation of resources as well as in-kind services provided by some of our partners 
and supporting organizations (Columbia University Teachers College, Pace University S.T.E.M 
Consortium, Logo Foundation and Leed Green Associates).  These design elements reflect 
QPCS’ mission, goals, and the six objectives delineated in Education Law 2850(2). 
 
QPCS is not a replication of another school model; as such, we are not seeking to invoke the 
language of the law in the current NYS Charter School Act and receive a charter as a replication.  
QPCS’ carefully designed model is grounded in research, based on best practices and draws 
upon the works of education theorists such as Jean Piaget, Lev Vygotsky,  John Dewey and 
Howard Gardner.   
 
QPCS instructional method benefits all students by allowing for instructional differentiation that 
addresses students’ learning styles and abilities.  It supports children’s intrinsic motivation to 
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learn while providing deeper understanding of the subject matter being studied.  This type of 
learning leads to better academic performance and increased confidence in a student’s ability to 
persevere and succeed. 
 

Curriculum Philosophy 
The curriculum focuses on and embodies the follow principles: mastery of processes, the 
understanding of concepts, and the ability to function in different situations. It takes into 
consideration the “whole child” and the involvement of the community as a deliberate extension 
of the classroom.  It is learner-focused, integrated in a way that emphasizes the inter-connections 
between the disciplines. It is interesting and oriented towards fostering intrinsic rather than 
extrinsic motivation.  The curriculum combines customized learning and collaborative group 
learning in authentic, inquiry-oriented projects.  
 
This provides students with access to diverse knowledge sources and assesses them for deeper 
understanding and further learning.  The curriculum must also take into consideration children’s 
specific talents, interests, learning styles and speeds of learning and must build on students’ prior 
knowledge.  Additionally, incorporated into QPCS’ approach are the beliefs that:   

 Learning is an activity carried out by learners 
 Optimal learning takes prior knowledge into account 
 Learning requires the integration of knowledge structure 
 Learning balances the acquisition of concepts, skills, and meta-cognitive competence 
 Learning builds up complex knowledge structures by organizing more basic pieces of 

knowledge in a hierarchical way 
 Learning can utilize structures in the external world for organizing knowledge structures 

in the mind 
 Learning is constrained by capacity limitations of the human information processing 

architecture 
 Learning results from a dynamic interplay of emotion, motivation and cognition 
 Optimal learning builds up transferable knowledge structures 
 Learning requires time and effort 

The Project Approach 
This approach is a set of teaching strategies that enable teachers to guide children through-in-

depth studies of real world topics.  This approach to teaching and learning is based on a vision of 

children as active learners, holistic learners, and learners capable of inquiry.  It emphasizes the 

importance of supporting children’s curiosity, their intrinsic motivation to learn, their growing 

critical awareness of the world around them, and their eagerness to reflect on and communicate 

their experiences and knowledge.  The approach incorporates the use of robust assessment tools 

that are utilized in formative and summative evaluations.   

 

A project is defined as an in-depth investigation of a real world topic worthy of children’s 

attention and effort. In other words, the Project Approach can be defined as in-depth 

investigation of a subject that is meaningful for children.  Project work is an interactive process 

which includes activities requiring the active participation of a small group or an individual.  

These activities are related to the fields of study that attract children’s attention and are chosen 

by children themselves (Tuğrul, 2002).  Some examples of projects include: building a bridge, 

opening up a class store, and carrying out a project to benefit the community, such as raising 

awareness of the importance of recycling.  Project-based education has significant impact on 

children’s development in the sense that it gives answers to the questions of what children should 
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learn and what the most effective ways of teaching those are (Curtis, 2002; Tuğrul, 2002).  

Projects are not meant to replace the direct teaching of skills, but rather to provide a meaningful 

context in which skills can be developed and applied.
6
 

 

Theoretical Framework Supporting Project-Based Learning 
Studies indicate that project-based education has a positive impact on children’s personality 
development (Dungy et al., 2002); (Liebovich, 2000);(Tuğrul, 2002), motor development (Kim 
et al., 2001), cognitive development (Coskun, 2004; Helm and Katz, 2001; Katz and Chard, 
2000; Kucharski et al., 2005), language development (Beneke, 2003; Currie, 2001; Dungi 2002; 
Eybel, 2003; Gottlieb, 2003; Katz and Chard, 2000), social/emotional development (Dungi et al., 
2002; Gutwirth, 1997; Helm and Katz, 2001; Katz and Chard, 2000), and self-care abilities (Ho, 
2001; Myler, 203).  

7
 From these studies, it is clear that the “Project Approach” is effective 

because it is child-centered, and prepare for investigation, research and critical thinking, and 
raising children’s awareness of social problems.  In short, the project-based approach supports 
children development (Katz and Chard, 2000) and provides children with the opportunity to 
study freely in an environment conducive to learning.  In addition, it supports the development of 
key personal, cognitive, language, social/emotional development and self-care abilities. 
 
Dewey (1938) said inquiry-based instruction occurs when the "educator is responsible for a 
knowledge of individuals and for a knowledge of subject-matter that will enable activities to be 
selected . . . in which all participate and are the chief carrier of control" (p. 56). The work of 
Dewey and Vygotsky (1962), were pivotal to understanding the framework of inquiry-based 
instruction.  Building on constructivist learning theory and inquiry-based learning, a longitudinal 
study conducted by Le, Lockwood, Stecher, Hamilton, and Martinez (2009) found that 
progressive educational reforms in mathematics and science consistently led to gains in 
achievement measures designed to assess students' problem-solving and processing abilities. 

8
 

 
Researchers such as Taylor, Cornish, and Lederman believe inquiry-based learning is a better 
approach for students vs. traditional direct instruction.  This is cemented by a study conducted in 
an elementary school in Alabama.  Before the study, students especially those at-risk showed 
significant deficiencies in math and science. After the implementation of the Alabama Math, 
Science, and Technology Initiative (AMSTI) through the inquiry-based method, students’ scores 
significantly improved.  The activities of inquiry include observations, questioning, gathering 
data, and creating explanations (National Research Council, 1996). The study concluded that for 
mathematics achievement, the common significant effect found in each factorial experiment was 
teaching method. For the target school, inquiry based mathematics instruction was effective in 
increasing student mathematics achievement as measured by the SAT-10 for certain student 
subgroups, particularly black students.   
 
For science achievement, the common significant effect found in each factorial experiment was 
teaching method. For the target school, inquiry based science instruction was effective in 
increasing student science achievement as measured by the SAT-10 for certain student 
subgroups, particularly black students, female students, and students living in poverty. By 
increasing the science achievement of traditionally underperforming student subgroups in the 
area of science, inquiry based instruction cements an important place in the total school plan to 
obtain AYP under NCLB (2001).  Further, students living in poverty may be expected to greatly 
increase their science achievement through the use of inquiry based science instruction. These 
are important conclusions since NCLB requires adequate yearly progress of these student 

                                                           
6
 Guha, S., (2014). Todays’ Youth, Tomorrow’s Leaders.  Rowman & Littlefield, ISBN# 978-1-4758-0248-1 

7
 Guha, S., (2014). Todays’ Youth, Tomorrow’s Leaders.  Rowman & Littlefield, ISBN# 978-1-4758-0248-1 

8
 Guha, S., (2014). Todays’ Youth, Tomorrow’s Leaders.  Rowman & Littlefield, ISBN# 978-1-4758-0248-1
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subgroups.  Additionally, black students and those living in poverty have historically been at- 
risk student populations (Alsup, 2005).

9
 This study connects with QPCS’ approach to help all 

students learn and succeed. 
 
Project-based and the Inquiry Method 
Due to the student-centered premise of inquiry-based instruction, Hazari, North, and Moreland 
(2009) differentiated inquiry-based instruction from teacher-directed instruction by focusing on 
the unique role of the student "learners construct personal interpretation of knowledge based on 
their previous experience and application of knowledge in a relevant context" (p. 189). 

 

Thompson (2006) said that inquiry-based, constructivist-learning activities involve the use of 
"manipulative or hands-on materials" (p. 53) "incorporating inquiry, discovery, and problem-
solving approaches . . . [and] applying math and science concepts to real-world context" (p. 54).  
 
Inquiry-based instruction has been utilized in a variety of settings in different ways. For example, 
Dewey (1938) advanced progressive education and yet there is still a great propensity to adhere 
to the use of teacher-directed instruction (Codding et al., 2009). Marshall (2010) began with the 
premise, "our habits of mind, innate curiosity, and ways of thinking and acting are shaped and 
developed through immersion in experience and repeated practice" (p. 48). The researchers 
posited how students are asked to learn is equally important to the content they are learning. 

10
 

The most effective teachers individualize learning experiences and prepare students to meet the 
challenges of a changing and more global society (Cornish, 2004 
 
Teachers in this model are responsible for helping students increase their ability to respond 
intelligently and meaningfully to new, ever more complex situations while directing them toward 
experiences and inquiries that will awaken their natural curiosity and conceptual development.  
Dewey charged that teachers should know "how to utilize the students’ surroundings so as to 
extract from them experiences that are worthwhile" (p. 40). The idea of teachers as planners who 
awaken and guide children’s natural curiosity is still an integral part of inquiry-based instruction.  
Kazempour (2009) found inquiry-based professional development opportunities for teachers 
were an important contributing factor to the implementation of inquiry-based instruction.  
 
Dewey (1938) offered that learning of facts in isolation through teacher-directed drills and 
practice in its worst form can leave students less able to perform. The theorist found children 
have innate capacities to reason that are harmed through isolated drill routines. Dewey too stated 
that skills and content learned via rote will not easily be transferred from the practice situation to 
any other application. According to this line of logic, it follows that teachers should not be 
mystified by students' lack of performance on high stakes tests. As Oliver-Hoyo (2011) states 
"What works in one environment at a particular institution or within a specific discipline might 
not work at another, so the need to provide alternative options is of primary importance" (p. 9). 
This also may demonstrate yet another support for the use of inquiry-based learning to improve 
student achievement scores by implementation alongside other teaching methodologies, since the 
very nature of inquiry-based learning is the transference of experiences along a continuum. 
 
The importance of social collaboration to the success of learning and content knowledge 
retention was also supported by Schiller (2009). The study found that students engaged in 
collaborative, inquiry-based learning are highly motivated to attend to the learning task and 

                                                           
9
 http://acumen.lib.ua.edu/content/u0015_0000001_0000489.pdf 
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retain information at the application stage of understanding.
11

 Students scheduled in an inquiry-
based environment performed better in the areas of content recall, intrinsic motivation and 
incurred the ability to think critically in the content areas.  Hernandez-Ramos and De La Paz 
(2009) further posited that Project-based learning is more likely to reduce gaps in students’ 
performance, increase learning and foster engagement and connections.   
 
QPCS is in full agreement with the conclusions reached by the above research. For this reason, a 
unique part of QPCS’ innovative, rigorous curriculum and mission of academic excellence 
incorporate Project-based learning with an intense focus on science, technology, engineering and 
mathematics in K-5, which will promote positive learning and developmental outcomes across 
the curriculum for students.  At QPCS, excellence in academics is supported by best practices, 
data-driven instruction, and strong pedagogy that encourage student engagement, mastery, and 
deep understanding of the subjects being studied.  
 

STEM Focused    
QPCS in partnership with Pace University’s S.T.E.M Consortium, Leed Green, and the Logo 
Foundation will infuse its students with an education that is S.T.E. M focused. By focusing on 
S.T.E.M, our students will be better prepared to function in the new knowledge economy. This 
focus will not only help our students to excel in science, technology, engineering and math, but 
improve both student learning and achievement.   
 
S.T.E.M classrooms with its emphasis on design and problem-solving in “intellectually messy” 
learning situations, that weaves seamlessly through various academic disciplines. For example, a 
S.T.E.M classroom might pose a problem and then require students to conduct research. In doing 
so, students are expected to crisscross their disciplines of study, gather and analyze data, design, 
test, and improve upon a proposed solution, and then communicate their findings to their peers. 
A strong consensus is emerging among scientific, business, and education leaders that America’s 
ability to innovate and compete in the global marketplace is directly tied to the ability of our 
public schools to adequately prepare all of our children in science, technology, engineering, and 
math as a seamless whole, not separate subject matter.  At QPCS we intend to alleviate the gap. 
 
American public schools face challenges and opportunities in this new world given the increased 
demands on our education system to support a knowledge-based economy. The Trends 
International Mathematics and Science Study (TIMSS) measures how well students have 
acquired the mathematics and science knowledge that they have encountered in school.  In 
TIMSS 2003, U.S. eighth and 12

th
 graders did not do well by international standards, ranking 

below average in both grades.  The OECD’s Program for international Student Assessment 
(PISA) is an internationally standardized assessment of mathematics and reading literacy 
administered to 15-year-olds in schools in participating countries.   PISA takes a broader 
approach than TIMSS by assessing the ability of students to apply their knowledge and skills to 
real-world problems. 
 
On the 2003 PISA math assessment, the quartile of American 15-year-olds with the lowest 
socioeconomic status was almost four times likely to be among the bottom performers than the 
quarter of most privileged students.

13 
On the 2005 NAEP assessments of students achievement 

based on U.S. school curricula in mathematics and science, achievement gaps between groups of 
students based on race/ethnicity, gender, and socioeconomic status continued in both subjects 
and at most grade levels.  Blacks and Hispanic students are significantly more likely than white 
students to score below basic proficiency levels on math and science at all level.
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According to the National Science Foundation-What Works Best in Science & Mathematics 

Education Reform report, “A solid foundation in science during elementary school gives students 

a better grasp of science at the secondary level and beyond.” Students taught from early ages 

with inquiry science and hands-on mathematics are better prepared to think independently and 

arrive at answers by exploration rather than by rote formulas.  The belief that all children can 

learn, even those in the most challenging urban settings, is becoming an institutional reality.
12

 

 

In New York the value of S.T.E.M programs are being realized every day. Ben Chapman, a New 

York Daily News reporter in a 2008 article noted: Fourth-graders learn science concepts at 

Public School 15.  A class of 28 first-graders at New Explorations Into Science, Technology and 

Math School in Manhattan stood next to their desks Thursday morning and karate-chopped the 

air as they counted to 100 by 10s.  “Ten!” Punch! “Twenty!” Punch! “Thirty!” Punch! The gifted 

kids in the class attacked their math lessons with enthusiasm, taking a quiz of 40 additional 

questions in one minute before tackling the counting drill.  NEST teacher Jennifer Rosenfeld said 

stoking the kids’ manic energy by getting them moving during math lessons keeps their interest 

in the subject high. 
 
“Kids do better in math when they move around,” said Rosenfeld. “It warms up their brains and 
they perform better on tests. It keeps them excited.” These children are barely old enough to tie 
their own shoes, but city elementary school kids are foot soldiers in the high-tech S.T.E.M 
revolution. S.T.E.M is at the center of the Mayor Bloomberg’s efforts to diversify the city’s 
economy following the financial crash of 2008.  It’s also the basis of a nationwide push to 
transform education, from the primary grades to graduate school, away from the humanities and 
toward the sciences.  New York City’s public schools are leading the way — and elementary 
students are where the transformation begins, said the Education Department’s chief academic 
officer, Josh Thomases.  “The early grades lay the groundwork for the future,” said Thomases. 
“It’s best to get students comfortable with science and math from a young age.” At all levels, city 
schools are beefing up their offerings in math and science.  The city has created 22 new technical 
education high schools, with seven more coming next year. Officials also plan to transform 20 
additional high schools and middle schools into specialized S.T.E.M academies.  And at the 
elementary school level, officials have rolled out hundreds of S.T.E.M programs at elementary 
schools, including dozens where laptops have gone out for free. 

13
 Scores of city elementary 

schools have added math and science training to teachers’ professional development programs.   
Dozens of schools have added after-school tutoring in the subjects.  The efforts have paid off: 
City scores on national science and math assessments have risen since 2006, while statewide 
scores fell, Thomases said.  The push is apparent at NEST, where all kids get weekly computer 
lessons and fourth-graders use digital notebooks to take notes in class.

14
 

 
QPCS is committed to the belief that a solid foundation in S.T.E.M beginning in the early grades 
will allow students to be academically prepared to compete on a global level, become 
independent and life long learners.        
 
GRR and Balanced Literacy 
QPCS will use GRR as its overarching instructional model. In addition, Columbia University’s 
Teachers College Readers Writers Workshop (RWW), literacy program will be used for ELA. 
These models will challenge students to engage in analysis, evaluation and creation. The work of 
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Wiggings and McTighe’s Understanding by Design will be used to promote instruction and 
teaching for understanding. GRR and RWW allow a gradual release of responsibility from the 
teacher to the student. By assuming responsibility for their learning students become competent, 
independent learners and thinkers. GRR supports our philosophy that there is a strong correlation 
between content knowledge and higher order thinking.  When students are actively engaged in 
their own learning by way of hands-on activities, discussion and collaboration, they become 
more involved in the process and utilization of higher order skills.  The peer interaction facet of 
these methodologies is effective in working with classrooms of heterogeneous students, 
including SWD, ELLs and Title I students as well as accelerated learners. At QPCS, pedagogical 
strategies such as questioning and meta-cognition development will be incorporated into all 
subjects.  PB/DI, GRR and RWW do not only provide opportunities for student learning; but also 
for teachers to differentiate instruction by using comprehensive and ongoing assessment data 
(both formal and informal) to identify students’ needs and tailor instruction.  
 
RWW supports all learners, particularly ELLs, in the various aspects of language development 
including: the production of language (listening, watching, and sharing), the understanding of 
language (sounds and meanings), and the function of language (first words, experiences gained 
through repeated daily routines, experiences and interaction with others). Daily read-aloud and 
shared readings support the production of language (to listen, watch and share).  It also support 
students in oral and written language acquisition for both English and foreign languages.  
Lessons such as those illustrated by Word Work, flow directly from the shared readings, and 
address the understanding and function of language through the exploration of sounds and 
meanings in the context of literature. ELLs also benefit from these practices as they mirror the 
same techniques used in sheltered English immersion programs.   
 
GRR and RWW models are consistent with the Project-based/Direct Instruction model of 
instruction.  Teachers will be cognizant of the level of scaffolding students need before allowing 
them to work alone. Teachers will model for the students the skill or strategy that must be used 
in order to ensure success.  Additional teacher guidance will be provided for ELLs and other at-
risk students. Small group instruction will occur daily and will further focus on ELLs’ and the 
needs of other special populations. 
 

Academic Service Learning        
QPCS will incorporate academic service learning across the curriculum in order to infuse values 
of citizenship, community involvement and social responsibility. This will allow students to 
develop their analytical skills in an inquiry-based environment.   Students will learn and develop 
values such as caring for the environment, giving back to the community, and being responsible 
citizens by recognizing problems in the world around them and finding ways to solve them.  
Academic Service Learning could include working and interacting with the elderly, endangered 
animals, environment issues, green spaces, disable or handicapped individuals, and 
homelessness.   
 
Academic Service Learning will serve as awareness and enriching the literacy and science 
curriculum and enhance the study of key ideas in Social Studies.  The four phases of academic 
service learning include preparedness, taking action, being reflective and demonstrating skill.  
By helping our students to develop their research skills, exploration skills, the skill to reflect 
meaningfully on what exist around them and their analytical skills, they can make the connection 
between thinking and acting responsibly.    
 

Instructional support for Students at Risk  
QPCS’ Project-based/Direct Instruction (PB/DI  model with a focus on S.T.E.M in combination 
with GRR and RWW support differentiated instruction allowing teachers to provide 
individualized instruction that addresses the needs of ELLs, SWD and Title I students.  QPCS 
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will have instructional staff that is dedicated, strategic and resourceful that can address the needs 
of students at-risk so that they can meet rigorous learning standards.  QPCS’ staffing structure 
and budget are aligned with these expectations.  QPCS will establish a Student Evaluation Team 
(SET) consisting of an administrator, a classroom teacher, the social worker, a special education 
teacher and the Reading specialist. The English as a second language (ESL) teacher will 
participate as needed.  The SET will allow the needs of individual students who are having 
difficulty to be identified, monitored and served in a timely manner.  The team’s work will 
involve a process that culminates in the implementation of accommodations, services, and 
interventions that will enable the student to be successful. SET will also be responsible for the 
monitoring of Title I students.  In accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA), QPCS is committed to supporting the learning of SWD in the least restrictive 
environment.  QPCS will have one full time special education teacher in its first year.   
 
Additional special education teachers will be hired based on the number of SWD to ensure 
compliance with all pertinent laws.  Special Education staff will provide consultation and support 
to the teachers in the classroom, work in classrooms with special education students individually 
and in small groups, and provide resource room services.  
 
Classroom teachers will have knowledge of the needs of SWD; will be responsible for reviewing 
their students IEPs; the support required to implement a student’s program; and any 
accommodations needed in the classroom. Student assessment will follow procedures in 
accordance with the students’ IEPs.  Teachers will receive ongoing training regarding the 
education of SWD.  Teachers will participate in students’ evaluations in collaboration with any 
district Committee on Special Education as needed.  QPCS will have a special education teacher 
in year 1; but a Special Education Coordinator year 2 who will oversee all RTI programs and 
ensure that QPCS is in compliance with Americans with Disabilities (ADA), IDEA, and local, 
state and federal regulations applying to SWD. 
 
PB/DI, GRR and RWW will effectively support English language development by utilizing 
strategies that develop English as a Second Language (ESL); providing modeling and instruction 
during Readers’ and Writers’ workshop and the core subject areas; and providing social and 
emotional support through peer interactions within the classroom.  These practices are aligned 
with ESL teaching methodologies.  QPCS will have an ESL teacher beginning in Year 1 to 
ensure that students receive focused attention and develop English proficiency as quickly as 
possible.  Utilizing Sheltered English Immersion (SEI) techniques to enable more efficient 
accessibility to ELLs, SEI strategies will be implemented directly to ELLs in the classroom by 
the ESL Teacher, as well as in a pull-out model as necessary to provide more targeted support.  
The ESL teacher will work with general education teachers to include SEI techniques in their 
lesson plan.  Intervention programs to strengthen reading skills will be utilized as support in the 
development of reading and language. 
 
Students who are struggling in reading and/or who are in our Title I program, QPCS will assign a 
full-time Reading Specialist who will work with the classroom teachers in both a push-in and 
pull-out model. We will use intervention programs to help support our Title I students as needed. 
QPCS’ schedule will allow for intervention services to occur along with core instruction.  
Additional time has been built into QPCS schedule to support struggling students in other 
content areas.  Level material will be provided to support content area reading for science and 
social studies. Appropriate scaffolding supports will provide additional help for students in 
mathematics, technology, engineering, Spanish. To further support students who are struggling, 
beginning in the summer after the first year of operation and every summer thereafter, QPCS will 
hold a 4-week summer bridge program.  Children will receive instruction for 3 hours each day.  
This program will be mandatory for students. 
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Time on Task 
QPCS has set high standards and expectations for student achievement in all areas. To ensure the 
achievement of this objective there will be increased time on task for all students, especially 
students at-risk. We will have a longer school day (8 am-4pm) and year (190 instructional days). 
Students will participate in art, physical education and music each week. QPCS’ low 12:1 
student-teacher ratio will increase the amount of time and attention given to students on a one-to-
one basis and in small groups.  Our block scheduling approach will also facilitate more 
concentrated time for students in content areas. 
 

Professional Development (PD) 
In order to ensure the success of the school it is important to provide staff with professional 
development.  By doing so, the capacity and competencies of staff members will increase, 
resulting in more effective instruction and better student outcomes. QPCS’ model of having PD 
opportunities built into the school day is critical to student achievement. At QPCS, embedded PD 
means that the instructional staff would receive coaching on an ongoing basis.  QPCS’ design 
allows resources and time to be allocated in ways that allow teachers the opportunity to engage 
in planning, reflective practice and collaboration within and across grade levels. Teachers will be 
encouraged to help each other as additional PD. 
 

Partner Support  
QPCS will have strong partner support in delivering its academic program.  Columbia University 
Teachers College, Pace University STEM Consortium, Logo Foundation and Behavior 
Intervention Support Team (BIST) will provide supportive services, including curriculum 
development, PD, leadership development and technical assistance. There will also be 
opportunities for free PD with the Bankstreet School for Children.  Leed Green Associates will 
provide building and remodeling services.  NIPAUL, LLC will provide grant writing services at 
a minimum cost. There will be some pro-bono work provided to the school by some of our 
partners. These cost saving measures will allow us to provide additional intervention services for 
students.  
 

C. Enrollment, Recruitment and Retention 

Projected Enrollment Table Over the Charter Term  

Grade Ages Year 1 

2015-16 

Year 2 

2016-17 

Year 3 

2017-18 

Year 4 

2018-19 

Year 5 

2019-20 

K 4-5 72 72 72 72       72 

1 5-6 72 72 72 72       72 

2 6-7  72 72 72       72 

3 7-8   68  68        68  

4 8-9    66        66  

5 9-10           60  

Total  144 216 284 350      410 

*Numbers adjusted for student attrition 

Enrollment Rationale and Growth Strategy 
QPCS will initially serve students in Grades K and 1, and then phase in an additional grade each 
year until the school reaches grade 5.  By beginning instruction in Grades K and 1, QPCS will 
have the greatest opportunity to affect its students’ futures by nurturing and engaging them at the 
beginning of their school life.  QPCS believes that it is important to set positive and high 
expectations from the onset.  In its first year, QPCS will accept 72 students in each Grades K and 
1, resulting in 3 classes in each grade of 24 students.  In each successive year, QPCS will accept 
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a new class of 72 students in Grade K.  QPCS will seek to replace any students lost through 
attrition through Grade 2; the enrollment table reflects expected attrition after Grade 3. 
 
QPCS’ nurturing school community will have an expected enrollment of approximately 410 
students in Grades K-5. QPCS’ small community allows for students to be supported by adults 
who have the responsibility and opportunity to aid in the development of their growth, 
academically, socially and emotionally.  This is in comparison to other elementary schools in 
CSD 29Q that have large student populations.  Based on how stakeholders in the community 
have embraced the idea of QPCS, the enrollment target is very attainable. This is an appealing 
school option for CSD 29Q families.  
 

Recruitment and Retention: QPCS will welcome all students, including students at-risk of 
academic failure, SWD, ELLs and Title I students.  We will engage in a focused effort to attract, 
recruit, and ultimately retain all students, particularly the population mentioned above.  Our 
outreach program will extend to all district elementary school programs.  We will retain our 
students, particularly those from these at-risk populations, because of our comprehensive system 
of support, family engagement and instructional model that not only uses data to inform 
instruction; but provide scaffolding and intervention strategies that ensure no child falls through 
the cracks. We will market our school to neighborhoods in CSD 29Q where a predominance of 
low income/poverty-level families and non-English speaking families reside.  We will leverage 
the community-based contacts of our team and the many community leaders we have engaged, 
including clergy, elected officials, nonprofit administrators, directors of preschool and Head Start 
programs, among other stake holders who serve non-English speaking and/or economically 
disadvantaged as well as SWD constituency.  These meetings will highlight the academic 
program; inclusive school culture; academic support and intervention services specifically 
focused on ELLs, SWD and Title I children.  We will also target preschools serving SWD and 
network with early intervention providers.  All recruitment and application material will be 
available in the predominant languages of the community.      
 
QPCS’ representatives will communicate the school’s mission to as many families through 
school fair and events, information sessions within the identified communities, such as in houses 
of worships; local CBO and organizations serving low income children, ELLs and SWD; flyers; 
website and newspapers including those focused on minority populations.  Based on our 
assessment of community interest we have no doubt we will be able to reach our anticipated 
enrollment.  The two charter schools currently in the district have been experiencing an 
overwhelming demand for seats with each school maintaining a waiting list of over 500 students. 
We will meet or exceed enrollment and retention requirements for these students as required by 
New York Statues Sec. 2852(9) (b) (i). 
 
Application, Admissions, Enrollment and Public Lottery Process: Attachment I provides 
additional details regarding these processes. For admission to QPCs during the school’s initial 
year, a child/student must be eligible to enter Kindergarten or 1

st
 grade in September 2015.  

Seventy-two (72) Kindergarten and 72 1st grade students will be accepted in the inaugural 
lottery.  Every year thereafter, QPCS admissions will be open to both entering kindergarten 
students as well as students in every grade above Kindergarten that the school is currently 
serving through Grade 2, in the event that seats are available in those grades.  Admission to 
QPCS will be limited each year to pupils within the grade levels to be served by the school.  In 
order to be eligible to apply for Kindergarten, students must turn 5 by December 31

st
 of the year 

in which they will enter Kindergarten.  The law allows preference for siblings of students and 
students residing in CSD 29 in Queens. 
 



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Page 14 
 

Formal recruitment of incoming students will begin after the charter school is authorized.  It is 
important to note that all aspects of this process will be carried out in English and Spanish (and 
any other dominant language in the community).  Beginning on or before January 1 of each year, 
the charter school will advertise open registration and families, if they choose, will have 
opportunities to meet with staff and learn additional details about the school.  Interested families 
may submit applications beginning on or before January 15 through April 1 or thereafter (the 
date will be set and publicized each year).  If as of the application deadline, the number of 
applicants to the charter school exceeds capacity, a random selection process (lottery) will be 
used to admit students.  This lottery, if necessary, will be held annually on or about April 15.  
Names will be drawn from the lottery drum by an individual or organization unaffiliated with 
QPCS.  Students who do not secure a seat through the random lottery will be placed on a waiting 
list in the order that their names were drawn.  QPCS will include a description of the public 
lottery in its application material distributed to families during the outreach phase of the process.  
if a lottery is required, all families who applied to the school will be informed of the details of 
the lottery, including the date, time and location that is will be held. 
Admission preference shall be granted to applicants in the following manner: 

 First preference (after the first year) will be given to returning students, who will 
automatically be assigned a space at the school and whose families will be formally 
contacted prior to the beginning of the school year to confirm automatic admission of 
their child. 

 Second preference will be given to siblings of students already enrolled in the charter 
school or siblings or a student whose name is drawn in the lottery whose names are also 
in the current year’s lottery. 

 Third preference will be given to residents of CSD 29Q. 
 
Lottery Process: In the event that a lottery process is necessary, names will be drawn randomly 
by grade to fill available seats (72 seats in Kindergarten and 72 seats in Grade 1 for the inaugural 
lottery, and for expected vacancies in the upper grades during the next academic year).  After 
those names are drawn, names will continue to be drawn after all available spaces have been 
filled in order to form a waiting list at each grade level for the school.  This waiting list will be 
the only official, legal document identifying the names of grade-eligible students with 
applications to the charter school pending acceptance when vacancies arise, based upon the order 
of random selection from the lottery.  The previous year’s waiting list will expire annually at the 
lottery drawing.  Whenever a vacancy occurs, either prior to the start of a particular school year 
or during the course of that school year, QPCS will contact the parents of the student next on the 
appropriate waiting list.  Reasonable and multiple attempts will be made to contact the family of 
the student on the top of the waiting list and get confirmation of whether the student is still 
interested in enrolling at QPCS before proceeding to the next name on the list.  If reasonable and 
multiple attempts to contact the student’s parents are unsuccessful, then the school may remove 
that student from the waiting list.  Documentation of the attempts made to contact the parents of 
any student removed for the waiting list will be maintained by the school.  Waiting lists will not 
be carried over from year to year.  Instead, the annual admission lotteries will be used to create 
newly randomized waiting lists.  The school will send a new enrollment application directly to 
the parents of each child on the prior year’s waiting list to fill out if they are still interested in 
enrollment. 
 
D. Community to be Served 
QPCS expects to serve a diverse community of students from CSD 29Q.  District 29Q student 
population is: 66% Black, 12% Hispanic, 8% Asian, and 7% White.  The district’s school 
population reflects the demographic trends of the general population.  QPCS will welcome all 
students including students at-risk of academic failure, English Language Learners (ELLs) and 
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Students with Disabilities (SWD).  According to the 2012 New York State Report Card there are 
164,908 Special Education students in the borough of Queens.  Overall, students in this district 
score poorly on both the ELA and Math Standardized tests.  In the latest student data, the overall 
ELA score for 2013 was 21.65 percent proficient.  The math score was 20.16 percent.  These 
scores were the lowest in the borough. Students in CSD 29Q have historically struggled 
academically. QPCS’ program is intended to change that.  The New York State Report Card also 
shows that for 2011-12, 50%, 48% and 48% of all 3

rd
, 4

th
 and 5

th
 graders respectively scored 

below proficiency standards on the NYS ELA exam and 50%, 43%, and 40% of all 3
rd

, 4
th

 and 
5

th
 graders respectively scored below proficiency standards on the NYS Math exam.  The 

percentage of Blacks and Hispanic students scoring at Levels 3 and 4 were 25 to 35 percentage 
points lower than their White and Asian counterparts in both these exams.  According to the 
2012 New York State Report Card 63% of the students in this district were eligible for free 
lunch. According to the New York State Report Card 2011-12, 8% of students were classified as 
Limited English Proficient (LEP). 

15
 

 
The statistics demonstrate clearly a need for a high quality charter school, such as QPCS, to 
serve students at the beginning of their academic career.  QPCS will be a valuable high-
performing public school option for the families and children in CSD 29Q. QPCS’ design 
ensures the success of its students in meeting its learning expectations.  QPCS intensive focus on 
science, technology, engineering, and mathematics speaks to its commitment to produce students 
and citizens who are highly literate and who will develop a love for learning while being able to 
meet the demands of a knowledge economy. This is important given that increased globalization 
has created a need for people who are innovative, critical thinkers and can perform effectively in 
an advance technological environment. Additionally, the incorporation of academic service 
learning and green sustainability as a part of the curriculum will reinforce values of good 
citizenship and social responsibility. 
 
We chose CSD 29Q because it is a school district in desperate need of strong academic support 
and high quality public school choices.  According to the lasts school data for 2013, District 29Q 
had the lowest exam scores in the Queens Borough.  Based on the data shared with us from the 
two current charter schools in this district, they both have waiting lists of over 500 students.  
Individual members of the Applicant Group and board have direct connection to the district.  
Together they possess competencies and experience necessary to develop a high quality school, 
and to engage the community in its development.  The Applicant Group has assessed the support 
of the families and community within CSD 29Q.  As discussed in I.C. Enrollment, Recruitment 
and Retention, our process included an analysis of the demand for seats in charter schools in the 
district, expressions of support through parent signatures, the support of religious leaders, CBOs, 
preschools and other entities connected to families of school-age children.  

 

E. Public Outreach 
The Applicant Group has been intensely engaged in community outreach to inform the CSD 29Q 
public about QPCS and to secure public input and comments regarding the educational and 
programmatic needs of students and our design in supporting those needs.  Attachment 2 
provides detailed evidence of the process implemented for public review.  Below is a description 
of the strategies used to inform the community and seek their input. 

1. Information sessions with CBOs, STEM organizations, non-profits serving youth and 
families located in CSD 29Q to inform their leadership about QPCS and seek their input 
and support. Proactive outreach to a variety of faith-based organizations and houses of 
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worship in the community to inform their leadership, including prominent clergy, about 
QPCS and seek their input and support. 

2. Presentations at Open Public Meetings, including Community Board 13Q, Libraries, 
Queens Village Civic Association, Town Hall meeting and the NAACP. 

3. Engagement of elected officials representing the Queens Borough, City Council and State 
Assembly.  

4. Email address for questions and comments: questprepcs@gmail.com and facebook page: 
https://m.facebook.com/profile.php?id=236009736569821 

5. Parent information sessions at Day Care Centers, Preschools and Head Starts in the 
community where information was presented and input solicited. 

 

Consideration of Public Comments: The Applicant Group has considered the various inputs 
received by the community.  The feedback informed two critical aspects of QPCS’ design which 
were the inclusion of STEM activities in its after school program and the hiring of highly 
qualified teachers. 
 

How Families Will Be Informed of the Charter School and Have Equal Opportunities to 
Apply: The methods of public outreach that have been implement and deployed will continue to 
be utilized along with flyers, website, appropriate social media outlets and newspaper 
advertisement.  The response to I.C. Enrollment, Recruitment and Retention provides greater 
detail about how parents will be informed of the charter school and how students will be given 
equal opportunity to attend the school. 
 
F.  Programmatic and Fiscal Impact 
 

Fiscal Impact 
Questbridge will impact Community School District 29 positively, Community Board 13 and the 
Borough as a whole.  The immediate fiscal impact to the community would be the creation of 
approximately 62 new jobs over a five year period, the generation of additional revenues for 
businesses both those that provide direct services to the school as contractors or consultants as 
well as those (Restaurants, Stationary Suppliers, etc.) whose revenue increases directly due to 
higher traffic in the community during business hours where the school is located.  
Operational 

Year 

Projected 

Student 

Enrollment 

Per pupil 

Allocation 

Projected   

Per Pupil 

Revenue 

Other 

projected 

Revenue 

Total 

Projected 

Revenue 

District 29 

Budget(1) 

Projected 

% 

increase in 

District 

Budget 
2014-15 144 $13,527 $1,947,888 $629,235 $2,577,123 $201,965,596 1.65% 
2015-16 216 $13,527 $2,921,832 $643,853 $3,465685 $208,024,564 1.70% 
2016-17 288 $13,527 $3,895,776 $858,470 $4,754,246 $214,265,301 2.18% 
2017-18 360 $13,527 $4,869,720 $1,073,088 $5,942,808 $220,695,260 2.61% 
2018-19 432 $13,527 $5,843,664 $1,287,709 $7,131,370 $227,314,058 2.98% 
Years 2015-2019 is projected assuming a 3% inflationary rate. 

Programmatic Impact 
Questbridge Preparatory Charter School will encourage, participate and facilitate in every 
possible nurturing, meaningful and supportive relations with schools in the district, to join in a 
collaboration of educators who are committed to the sharing best practices. QPCS will work with 
schools in the district for the achievement of openness and sharing of best practices. QPCS will 
have a small to insignificant fiscal impact on public schools in NYC School District (see table 
above).  For the purpose of this analysis, we are making the assumption that the NYC School 
District will have to transfer $13,527 annually (based on the current 2011-12 allocation for NYC 
School District, and assuming it remains flat) for each child enrolled in the school.  We have 

mailto:questprepcs@gmail.com
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included funding that will be distributed to the school from the NYC School District, including 
special education funding, food reimbursement, etc.

16
 

 
Impact on Non-Public Schools: In regards to high tuition private schools some of which are 
located in CSD 29Q, QPCS does not anticipate having a great effect on these institutions; 
because QPCS expects that many of its students will come from families representing the low-
income scale.  Based on this, we assume that many families would not have had the ability to pay 
for these high tuition private schools. Additionally, since QPCS anticipate that many of the 
children it will serve are educationally disadvantaged, the expectation is that, the eligibility for 
these students being admitted to these private schools would be very low based on the criteria for 
admission at these schools. QPCS will be most appealing to families with children for whom the 
only option is a public school.  Families whose children currently attend parochial schools may 
also see QPCS as an attractive alternative or option.  In the event that these families select 
QPCS, the impact on the other schools’ enrollment would not be favorable.  

 
II. EDUCATIONAL PLAN 
A.  Achievement Goals 
QPCS has the following student achievement goals for its educational program.  Students will: 
 Demonstrate their understanding of science, technology, engineering and mathematics 

concepts (STEM). 
 Demonstrate proficiency as readers, writers and speakers of the English language. 
 Demonstrate their knowledge of U.S History, World History, Geography and the 

fundamental concepts of citizenship and democracy. 
 Explore areas of interest to enable them to critique and analyze patterns, relationships and 

connectedness of learning. 

Description of Student Achievement Goals ELA Math Science 

Demonstrate Proficiency 

   75% of each grade level cohort score at level 3 or 4 on NYS 

Exam Grades 3-5(science:4
th

 & 5
th

 grade)     

 Performance Index meet Annual Measurable Objective       

75% of each grade level cohort performs at grade level on 

SAT 10 Grade 1-5 & DIBELS Benchmark Assessment       

Comparative       

Percent Proficient on NYS Exams greater than that of  29Q       

Growth       

 Each grade level cohort reduces by one-half the gap 

between previous year’s percent on NYS Exam.       

 Each grade level cohort show an increase in scores on 

SAT10 Grade 1-5.       
Note: Grade Level Cohort refers to students who have been enrolled on BEDs for two or more 
consecutive years. 
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 FY14 Aggregate Community School District Budgets-Source: Galaxy scheduling data as of c.o.b. 09/02/2013 

     Galaxy scheduling data as of c.o.b. 09/02/2013.  

  The scheduled condition of schools' FY14 budgets shown in this report is based upon funds allocated as of the date shown 
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Additional information regarding the tools to be used for assessment is included in response II.D. 
Assessment System. Our goals for student achievement and the measurements listed above form 
the basis of QPCS’ Accountability Plan. This plan will also include non-academic school 
performance goals to measure QPCS’ financial and operational performance and the satisfaction 
of our stakeholders. Progress monitoring towards meeting our goals will be on-going and will be 
addressed on different levels.  
1. Student level with the teacher using individual assessment data to inform instruction. 2. 
Classroom level by administrators using disaggregated data to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
curriculum and instruction.  3. School-wide level by the Board using disaggregated data to make 
programmatic and resource allocation decision and by the authorizer. 
 

 
B. School Schedule and Calendar 
School Year and First Year School Calendar: QPCS will have 190 days of school.  Attachment  
3 (b) provides the proposed school calendar for Year 1 (2015-16).  Teachers will attend a two-
week pre-opening professional development (PD) period prior to the first day of school.  QPCS 
students have the benefit of an additional 10 days of school and an additional one plus hours of 
instructional time compared to their district peers. 
 

Student and Teacher Schedules: QPCS’ day will be from 8:00am-4:00pm.  All students will 
have 7 hours of daily instruction.  The school day for teachers will begin at 7:45am and end at 
4:45pm.  Attachment 3 (a) provides detailed sample schedules for students and teachers.  
Supervision of breakfast and lunch will be coordinated between teachers and volunteers. 
 

Planned /Professional Development Time: Time for teacher planning is embedded into each 
school day from 4:00-4:45pm, when teachers will work collaboratively with their colleagues.  
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Principal, Curriculum Director (CD) and coaches will work 
with teachers on curricular mapping, implementation and curriculum support, academic service 
learning projects, lessons and test review, and case management of students. Teachers will meet 
on a weekly basis in grade level teams to analyze student data and collaborate on lesson planning 
to ensure connectivity in students’ learning.  Meetings will be held bi-weekly or monthly (as 
necessary) with CEO and Principal where they will address teachers’ progress on their 
individualized performance plans.  PD during Pre-opening will cover the key design elements, 
use of data and assessment, special populations, classroom management and other topics as 
delineated in III.E. Professional Development.  Additionally, teacher will have access to 
personally online libraries as added PD along with consulting and mentoring opportunities from 
our partners and supporters like professors from St. John’s University Education Department.  
 

Intervention: Teachers’ schedules allows for individual and common planning, and for 

providing additional scaffolding as needed with individual students.  Scaffolding will be 

provided through both push-in and pull-out models.   
 

After-School Program: QPCS’ after-school program will serve and meet the needs of many 
working parents in need of childcare support from 4:00pm to 5:30pm; as well as, provide an 
increase in students’ learning.  Our partnership with Pace University S.T.E.M Consortium will 
allow us to provide a well-structured program with the types of activities necessary to further 
students’ learning while providing valuable and fun enrichment.  During after-school sessions 
students will be provided with homework help, tutoring and enrichment activities that further 
serve to address the needs of the whole child.  Students will participate in activities such as 
robotics, chess, crafts, music, dance and more.   
 

Summer School: QPCS will have a four week summer school bridge program beginning after 
the first school year.  It will work with Pace University S.T.E.M Consortium to ensure that 
students are receiving the level of rigor and necessary content to broaden their knowledge and 
fill in any gaps the students may have.  The summer program will provide remediation as needed 
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as well as enrichment activities so that, students do not feel as if they are missing out on summer 
break.  The first 3 hours will be instructional time followed by enrichment activities such as art, 
music, sports, Chess, robotics etc.  There will also be planned field trips that would engage 
students’ interests and expose them to cultural opportunities they may not otherwise have.   
 

Teacher and Instructional Grouping: QPCS students will be grouped by grade level into three 
heterogeneous classrooms of 24 students.  QPCS’ use of the Project-based/Direct Instruction 
(PB/DI) in conjunction with Gradual Release of Responsibility (GRR) and Columbia 
University’s Teachers College Readers and Writers Workshop (RWW) enables individualized 
and small group instruction to target and identify students’ needs. Our faculty consisting of 
General Education, specialty, and instructional intervention teachers will be grouped in grade 
level teams or by content areas. Teachers have the opportunity to meet together across grade 
levels at times. Common planning time is included in teachers’ schedules as well as team 
meetings, Professional Development (PD) and student data analysis with the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) and Principal. Team teaching allows for collaboration, additional capacity 
building and differentiated instruction. Assessment data including observations of teachers will 
drive the instructional groupings.   
 

Supplemental Instruction: Supplemental instructions and those specific to special student 
populations (SWD, ELLs, academically at-risk), are described in II.G. Special Student 
Populations and Related Services as well as II.C. Curriculum and Instruction.  Our longer school 
day and year, extended instructional blocks, and summer bridge programs are all design elements 
that provide critical time on task so that students, especially those at-risk of academic failure, can 
meet or exceed proficiency standards, while still providing time to engage in studies not included 
in the core subjects. 
 
C. Curriculum and Instruction 
QPCS’ commitment to excellence will permeate every area of its curriculum. QPCS’ curriculum 
is aligned to the NYS Standards, inclusive of the Common Core Standards, National Council of 
Teachers of Mathematics (NCTM) standards, Organization for Economic Co-operation and 
Development (OECD) standards and considers the Trends in International Mathematics and 
Science Study (TIMSS).  QPCS has set high expectations for learning and has selected curricula 
that will help students adequately prepare to master the necessary skills and understanding 
required by institutions of higher learning and to be career ready. QPCS’ S.T.E.M focused 
curriculum will create opportunities, exposure and fun along the way for our students.  Exposure 
to outside S.T.E.M arenas through guest speakers, field trips and events that allow students to 
experience S.T.E.M is critical to the program.  All staff will have training in matter related to the 
Common Core and its application of knowledge through higher-order thinking.  
 

English Language Arts: The ability to read is vital to functioning effectively in a literate society. 
17

 QPCS will implement a rigorous and balanced curriculum during a daily 1 ½ hours block 

devoted to ELA instruction.  ELA instruction is conducted within RWW.  Teachers will create 

lesson plans based on current assessment of a student’s reading and writing abilities.  During 

RWW, the teacher will work within whole class and mini lessons which would involve shared 

reading and writing, read-aloud, interactive writing, small group guided reading and writing 

lessons, with attention given to independent reading and writing. 

 

QPCS’ Grade K learning content will focus intensely on increasing oral English language skills, 

and early alphabetic and phonemic awareness.  QPCS will utilize a strong phonics based 

instructional program for Grades K-2, the Read Well program by Soprist West, the Recipe for 
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 Roe, D. B., Smith, H. S., (2012). Teaching Reading In Today’s Elementary Schools-Eleventh Edition, pp. 3. CA. Nelson Education, Ltd. 
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Reading by Frances Bloom and Nina Traub and Words Their Way by Pearson for Grades K-5.  

The Read Well and Recipe for Reading programs are research-based curriculum that relies on 

components and methods of instruction that research has proven to be most effective for early 

literacy development
18

.  They are: screening and continuous assessment, phonemic awareness, 

alphabetic principle, vocabulary, fluent automatic reading of text, comprehension, and 

motivating students to read.  The methodologies are consistent with the findings of the National 

Reading Panel.  In Recipe for Reading, the methodology presents the phonological processing of 

language that includes auditory discrimination and auditory memory.  Recipe for Reading 

introduces each sound-symbol relationship in isolation, and then incorporates that sound and the 

previously learned sounds into word, phrases, and stories
19

.  It is rich in intervention strategies 

for struggling readers.  This is especially critical when working with at-risk students who may 

enter school with limited literacy experience.    

 

QPCS will also use authentic materials to assist students to develop comprehension, create 

connections, obtain information, build their knowledge base, gain insight, and raise their level of 

thinking.  From the earliest grades, emphasis will be placed on writing and composition through 

Writers Workshop from the Teachers College writing curriculum for K-5. The DIBELS 

Benchmark Assessment will be utilized as the ELA quarterly assessment.  This running records 

assessment will provide diagnostic information for teachers that will inform their instruction and 

help to guide the reading portion of RWW.  Through this assessment, teachers will be able 

develop an action plan for each student which will guide the instructional program and facilitate 

teacher intervention as needed.   

 

QPCS has chosen the Response To Intervention (RTI) Guide: Making it Work-Strategies = 

Solutions (Elementary k-6) by Dude Publishing as its academic intervention curriculum for 

supplemental support.  RTI has developed as an intervention-based approach that provides 

schools with a formalized and structured mechanism to intervene systematically when early 

warning signs indicate that a student is struggling and not reaching expected levels of 

performance.  Consistent with No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB), RTI is a data-driven approach 

which requires schools to monitor progress and make decisions about implementing instruction 

based on performance data.  The key components of the RTI process are: 

1. Universal Screening 

2. Research-Based Instruction 

3. High Quality Instruction 

4. Early Intervention 

5. Progress Monitoring 

6. Data-driven decision making that uses data to inform instruction 

 
The Teachers College RWW Units of Study are aligned with the Common Core Standards.  
Students will learn to draw conclusions, analyze and summarize texts and make inferences, and 
determine what is important when exploring text.  Writing units address the writing of narratives, 
realistic fiction, informational writing, poetry, persuasive and letter writing.  Complementary 
texts will be made available in order to support the reading and writing units. 
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 Snow, C., Burns, M., & Griffin, P. (1998). Preventing Reading Difficulties in Young Children. Washington, DC. National Academy Press.  
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 Bloom, F., Traub, N., (2005). Recipe for Reading: Intervention Strategies for Struggling Readers.  MI. School Specialty, Inc. 
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Mathematics: QPCS is committed to providing students with a strong foundation in mathematics 
as a STEM school.  An understanding of mathematics is central to a young person’s 
preparedness for life in modern society. A growing proportion of problems and situations 
encountered in daily life, including professional contexts, require some level of understanding of 
mathematics, mathematical reasoning and mathematical tools, before they can be fully 
understood and addressed. Mathematics is a critical tool for young people as they confront issues 
and challenges in the personal, occupational, societal, and scientific aspects of their lives. It is 
important to have an understanding of the degree to which young people emerging from school 
are adequately prepared to apply mathematics to understanding important issues and solving 
meaningful problems. 

20
 

 
Based upon this understanding QPCS has chosen the Singapore Math curriculum as its base 
curriculum for mathematics.  The teaching methods of Singapore Math have a consistent and 
strong emphasis on problem solving and model drawing, with a focus on in-depth understanding 
of the essential math in the NCTM Curriculum Focal Points (National Council of Teachers of 
Mathematics), the National Mathematics Advisory Panel, state and Common Core Standards.  
The principle of teaching mathematical concepts range from concrete through pictorial to 
abstract. For example, introduction of abstract decimal fractions (in Grade 4) is preceded by their 
pictorial model of centimeters and millimeters on a metric ruler, but even earlier (in Grades 2 
and 3) addition and subtraction of decimals is studied in the concrete form of dollars and cents. 
The hallmark of the curriculum is the careful guidance of students, done in a child-friendly 
pictorial language, not only to technical mastery, but to complete understanding of all the 
"whys."

21
 Singapore Math curriculum’s methods of instruction and presentation supports GRR 

and diverse learning needs by engaging all students including ELLs, special education or SWD, 
at-risk and advance students in ways that enable them to develop the skills needed to compete in 
a knowledge society and economy. 

 

 
Science: As a S.T.EM school, QPCS is committed to providing students with a strong 
foundation in science.  Educational excellence goes hand in hand with promoting student 
engagement in and enjoyment of science learning both inside and outside the school. The payoff 
is quite significant: a large and diverse talent pool ready to take up the challenge of a career in 
science. In today’s global economy, it is the opportunity to compete on innovation and 
technology.

22
 

 
QPCS’s science program is focused on building scientific knowledge with both depth and breath.  
Students will engage in science using the inquiry method and analysis while developing a love 
and appreciation for the world they live in.  Students will explore the various aspects of science 
which include: Life Science, Physical Science, Earth Science and the Human Body.  The science 
curriculum will enable students to make connections to health in the community, population 
trends, natural resources, quality of the environment and other global topics. QPCS has chosen 
the Life Zone Science curriculum for K-5 by Pearson as its base curriculum for science.  This 
curriculum complies with NYS curriculum guidelines and framework and supports all students 
including ELLs, SWD and at-risk students with its leveled readers, STEM activity books and 
labware kit.    

 
Social Studies: The Social Studies curriculum addresses central components of students’ 
understanding of the world in which they live.  The Life Zone Social Studies curriculum for K-5 
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by Pearson will be our base curriculum.  Curriculum components include Culture, Economics, 
Citizenship, Geography, Government, History and Communities.  It provides support for 
teachers and students achievement. Authentic material will be used to broaden students’ 
knowledge and understanding in this area as well.  
 

Academic Service Learning: QPCS will incorporate academic service learning to reinforce the 
values of caring for others, social responsibility and community awareness. As students are 
exposed to these values through inquiry based learning their analytical problem solving skills are 
enhanced. Students will learn to recognize opportunities to problem solve in their community 
and pursue ways to solve them.  Topics include the elderly, environment, poverty, community 
green spaces as well as animals and their habitats.  These learning opportunities will take place at 
school and at planned community safe places for children.  Academic service learning topics will 
be integrated into literacy blocks, the science curriculum, and key ideas in social studies.  This 
type of learning provides opportunities for students to develop skills in research, reflection, 
analysis and experience learning in innovative ways.  They would also become more aware of 
the world.  The skills sets developed through academic service learning are skill identified in the 
Common Core Standards to improve and elevate student learning and achievement.  Through 
academic service learning, QPCS will have the opportunity to enhance students’ learning while 
developing meaningful relationships and partnerships with the community.  The key phases of 
the academic service learning process are:  

 Preparation 
 Action 
 Reflection 
 Demonstration 

The CD will develop appropriate rubrics to aid teachers in order to ensure that these elements are 
successfully implemented and accomplished.  
 

Gradual Release of Responsibility: GRR is the overarching instructional model in coordination 
with our PB/DI model.  Teachers provide individual scaffolding for students through GRR. 

23
 

The model requires the teacher transition from assuming “all the responsibility for performing a 
task… to a situation in which the students assume all of the responsibility.” 

24
 GRR effectively 

incorporates Common Core Standards by making sure that students are not just receiving 
information but developing the skills necessary analyze, synthesize and apply the knowledge 
gained in different types of environments and experiences. The following describes the four 
interrelated components of GRR. 
 
Focus Lessons – “I do it.” This component allows teachers to model for the students what is 
required and how it needs to be done.  By modeling for students, teachers are can show how they 
use their own meta-cognitive processes and skills to achieve their goals.  When modeling 
strategies are used effectively, they increase understanding of the material being presented.   
Lessons that are focused give meaning and purposes to the task at hand and provide clues to 
students regarding critical learning objectives. 
Guided Instruction – “We do it.” During guided instruction, teachers prompt, question, facilitate, 
or guide students through various tasks that improve understanding of a particular concept or 
idea. 
 
Collaborative Learning – “You do it with each other.” Students solidify their understanding of 
the content, concept or idea and explore opportunities to solve problems, have discussions, 
practice negotiation, and think through issues with their peers.  This instructional phase is a 
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consequential part of the process for students. Collaborative learning is an integral part of 
Project-based Learning.  It provides time for students to apply the knowledge gained during 
focus lessons and guided instruction, while building on previous knowledge.   Students are 
required to give individual summaries of their activities.  
 
Independent Learning – “You do it alone.”  This component deals with the most critical goal of 
effective instruction, which is, to provide opportunities for students to practice the application of 
learned skills new ways.  As students transfer their knowledge and skills to new tasks, they 
synthesize information, develop ideas, and solidify their understanding of what is being taught. 
 
Readers and Writers Workshop: We will use RWW to distribute our balanced literacy 
instruction.  RWW helps teachers develop the competencies to differentiate instruction in a 
classroom of heterogeneous learners.  The aspect of peer interaction also increases teachers’ 
capacity to facilitate learning while aligning with the GRR model.  The design of the workshop 
model is effective with at-risk populations such as ELLs, Title I students and special education 
students as well as with accelerated learners.  The PB/DI, GRR and RWW provide the 
opportunity for teachers to differentiate instruction through the use of assessment data to identify 
where students need additional scaffolding, and tailor their instruction and compose appropriate 
groupings.  Both GRR and the workshop models are based on Bloom’s Taxonomy in that they 
enable students to be analytical in their thinking. By creating a paradigm shift from teacher-
centered to teacher-facilitated instruction students can more effectively engage and utilize their 
in higher order thinking skills. 
 
Ensuring Curricular and Instructional Alignment with NYS and Common Core Learning 
Standards: Teachers will utilize a scope and sequence for each subject to establish the content 
and progression of instruction.  During the pre-opening PD period, teachers will work on making 
sure that where there is a need within the curriculum for alignment with NYS and Common Core 
Standards that it is aligned appropriately. The scope and sequence will be a document that will 
be flexible in nature.  This will allow changes to be made when necessary to increase student 
support and achievement. This process will not take place in isolation but through collaborative 
efforts of teachers, the Principal and the CEO during the school year.  During designated 
planning times, teachers will work to refine the scope and sequence stemming from their 
classroom experiences and the information provided from students’ assessment data. QPCS will 
ensure that refinements are guided by the State standards as well as the Common Core Standards 
and will be reviewed by the Board of Trustees. 
 
D. Assessment System 
The standardized assessments selection was done so based on their validity, reliability and 
alignment with New York State standards, inclusive of the Common Core.  These assessments, 
as well as NYS mandated assessments, teacher-developed and commercially-developed 
formative and summative assessments make up QPCS’ assessment portfolio.  The table below 
describes this portfolio. 

Name of Assessment 
 

 

Purpose Grades and When 

Administered 

Stanford Assessment Test 

Series (SAT 10) 

Estimate the developmental level 

of students; identify students’ areas 

of strengths/weakness in subject 

area and achievement levels to 

monitor year to year developmental 

changes.  As a national assessment, 

1-5, Upon entrance to the 

School and every spring 

thereafter. 
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Name of Assessment 
 

 

Purpose Grades and When 

Administered 

the SAT 10 will provide 

information regarding how QPCS’ 

students are performing compared 

to their peers nationwide. 

DIBELS Benchmark 

Assessment 

To determine benchmark reading 

levels for each student. To plan 

efficient and effective instruction.  

To identify students who need 

intervention and help to document 

student progress across a school 

year.   

K-5, Beginning October for 

K-2; for all other grades 

beginning in September, 

administered 3 times per year 

with grade level material. 

NYS ELA Identify students’ ability to meet or 

exceed grade level standards in 

reading, comprehension and 

writing 

3-5, May 

NYS Math Identify students’ ability to meet or 

exceed grade level standards in 

mathematical computation, 

mathematical reasoning and 

problem-solving. 

3-5, May 

NYS Science Identify students’ ability to meet or 

exceed grade level standards in 

science content and use of 

scientific tools 

4, April/May 

NYSESLAT To determine when students 

identified as ELLs become 

proficient in English and exit ELL 

status. 

K-5, if in ELL status  

April/May 

NYS Alternative 

Assessment 

Identify students’ ability to meet or 

exceed grade level standards in all 

area for Special Education students  

K-5 if mandated by IEP,  

October through February 

Curricular Unit Assessment Commercial or teacher-developed 

summative assessment from an 

entire unit of study. 

K-5, Curricular unit 

assessments are determined by 

unit length and may vary. 

*QPCS will administer the above NYS Assessments as prescribed by NYS on the dates required for each 
school year.   
 

Use of Assessment: All entering K-1 students will be tested using the DIBELS Benchmark 
Assessment for students in K-1.  Students in Grade 1 will also take the SAT 10.  The data will be 
used to establish a baseline, develop goals and facilitate dialogue with students and parents about 
our shared and desired academic goals.  Faculty and administrators will look to students’ prior-
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year NYS tests as a guide to identify deficiencies, understand students’ progress, and 
performance levels.  Throughout the year, teachers will analyze diagnostic data from formative 
assessments, use individual and class level data in conjunction with curriculum to determine if 
adjustments are needed in lesson plans so that, additional instructional time can be scheduled 
where necessary.  The data will be also used as to aid in the formulation and determination of 
academic intervention services, and to established measures for individual student goals. 
Ongoing monitoring for students’ progress as described in III.D. Evaluation will occur every 6-8 
weeks to facilitate and support the continuous and accurate use of data by teachers and the 
instructional leader.  All grade level teachers will follow the curriculum in order to make sure 
that their lessons and assessments are aligned with NYS learning standards.  Data analysis will 
occur bi-weekly during collaborative planning times.  The principal will lead these sessions and 
will take place during grade level meetings. 
 

Collection and Dissemination of Student Data to Parents and Students: QPCS will utilize a 
dynamic student information management system. OnCourse will be used to house student data, 
enable faculty to view, analyze and report in real-time, and track the performance of individual 
students, classrooms of students, groups identified for accountability by NCLB, and all students 
in QPCS in order to facilitate targeted instruction to individual student needs.  It will enable 
school leaders and teachers to follow growth and mastery of content and make classroom or 
school-wide adjustments as needed. School administration will utilize this data to evaluate how 
teachers are performing as a well as which parts the curriculum and instruction may need 
strengthening, and to facilitate any necessary modifications to the program.  OnCourse lesson 
planner program will enable teachers to create their lesson plans based on the assessment data, 
linked to standards.  Teachers can develop classroom websites, post homework, calendars and 
other information for students and parents.  The student report cards produced by OnCourse 
show the level of student mastery of Common Core goals.  QPCS’ open communication with 
parents will be supported by use of OnCourse.  During orientation, QPCS’ will inform parents 
about reporting system in order to help them better support their children’s growth and 
development.  Parents will receive communication on a weekly basis by way of reports, results 
from assessments, and or newsletters which will be sent home with students.  Quarterly report 
cards will be distributed to parents at parent teacher conferences.  Parents can also request 
information about their children’s progress at any time.  OnCourse also provides a portal that 
allows a parent/guardian to track their child’s academic performance and progress in real-time.  
Teachers will be able to post homework assignments and newsletters on this portal.  For parents 
who do not have internet access at home, parent can use computer provided on site.  QPCS will 
work with the Parent Teacher Association (PTA) to collaborate on training and activities to 
clarify and help interpret assessment results and the implications of those results.  Teachers will 
conduct individual meetings with students and parents to review their individual student growth 
plans and provide updates on students’ progress. Teachers and other support staff will share 
information with parents that can assist them in supporting their goals for their children at home. 
 
Accountability Plan and Dissemination of Data to the Board of Trustees: The Board of 
Trustees will receive ongoing progress reports about student performance throughout the year.  
An annual comprehensive Student Performance Report will be provided to the Board. The 
annual comprehensive student report card is and will be the responsibility of the Principal and 
the CEO by which instructional staff assesses students’ academic performance data against 
specific performance indicators identified for the school will be provided. The process is an 
intentionally collaborative one; administrators and teachers review and dialogue about issues or 
findings throughout the academic year. In the event QPCS fails in meeting its goals, the staff will 
go through a process of reflection to identify the reason (s) why the goals were met.  In the 
Student Performance Report, the CEO, principal or designee, will summarize the data and 
performance indicators and will discuss what curriculum, instructional and PD changes will be 
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made to ensure improvements in student achievement progress.  If QPCS goals are met, a 
discussion will ensue regarding enhancements to the curriculum, instruction and PD to make sure 
student progress and achievement continues.  Board will be helped by having an analysis of the 
data in order to objectively assess QPCS’ progress towards accountability goals, and to make 
informed and data-driven decisions regarding changes to the instructional program, 
organizational structure and resource allocation.  Prior to the first Board meeting of the new 
school year, the Board, CEO and Principal will develop a reporting format. The report will 
include data on demographics, student outcome, and NCLB accountability data.  The CEO and 
Principal or designee will be responsible for reporting to the Education Committee (when 
created) on at least a bi-monthly basis and to the Board on at least a quarterly basis. 
 

 
E.  Performance, Promotion, and Graduation Standards 
All students in kindergarten through grade 5 will meet rigorous academic standards.   
A comprehensive student assessment system, aligned with the performance standards set by the 
State, will be used for measuring student progress, standards attainment and to improve 
instruction.  

 QPCS will strategically use its resources to provide the necessary supports and 
interventions in order to ensure that all students achieve the standards in a timely manner.  

 Through effective PD the instructional capacity of the school will be advanced with an 
intense focused on achievement for all students in ELA and math by the end of their 
grade.  

 QPCS will engage its entire school community in developing and supporting effective 
strategies for improving student learning.  

Students  
1. Students will work to accomplish identified learning objectives identified and will make every 
effort to bring their work up to standard through the use of informed feedback from their teachers 
and resources made available to them.  
2. Students will participate in class work, homework, assessments, and all learning activities 
necessary to meet academically rigorous expectations, challenging content and promotion 
standards.  
 

Parents  
1. Parents will be encouraged to participate as partners in their child’s education. QPCS will 
communicate clearly to parents the students’ responsibilities and the level of performance the 
student must obtain in order to be promoted. QPCS will also communicate clearly, the standards 
established for attendance that students must maintain. Parents will be given opportunities to be 
involved in parent and family learning programs, to facilitate the work and progress of their 
children, and to play an active role in supporting their child’s academic success. 2. 
Communication will be an on-going process. Various resources will be utilized (automated 
calling system, emails, text) so that parents will know if and when alternative instruction and/or 
interventions are necessary. 3. Parents will be informed of the standards, expectations, and 
additional learning opportunities. Parents are expected to support students’ attendance, 
punctuality, dress code and homework. Parents are expected to maintain ongoing communication 
with the school and their child’s teacher. 
 
Promotion criteria must be met in the areas of attendance; comprehensive classroom assessments 
that include work samples, anecdotes, teacher assessments and observation; and benchmark 
assessments in order for a student to be promoted. QPCS reserves the right to make the final 
decision for promotion. Students who fail to meet grade level or school expectations in ELA and 
math will be identified during the winter issued their promotion is in doubt letter.  When a 
student promotion is in doubt an intervention plan will be created and communicated to the 
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parents.  Students not meeting promotion criteria will have to attend our summer bridge program.  
Students not meeting benchmarks at the end of summer school will not be promoted. 
 
The following is the promotion criteria for students in Grade 2 (lower elementary) and Grade 5 
(upper elementary) at QPCS: 
 

Grade Attendance Teacher Recommendation Benchmark Testing 

2 95% At grade level performance 

SAT 10 and DIBELS Benchmark 

Assessment Benchmark At Grade Level.  

Teacher developed grade wide end of 

year assessment 

5 95% At grade level performance 
New York State ELA and Math-Level 2 

and above 

Meeting the benchmark testing criteria above means that students in Grades 2 and 5 will know 

and be able to do the following in ELA and math in accordance with NYS and Common Core 

Standards: 
 

 Grade 2 Core Promotional Standards 

ELA End of Year Expectations 

Reading  Uses phonics and word analysis skills to figure out unfamiliar words.                            

 Reads independently for sustained periods of time.  

 Asks and answers questions about key details in a text                                                                                                                                   

 Retells stories, including key details, and demonstrates understanding of 

their central message or lesson. 

 Describes characters, settings, and major events in a story using key 

details.   

 Explains major differences between books that tell stories and books that 

give information from a range of text types.  

 Compare and contrasts characters, settings and stories form one book to 

another.   

 Obtain facts and information from different writings. 

Writing  Produce and expands complete simple and compound statements, 

questions, commands, and exclamations. 

 Writes informative/explanatory texts in which they name a topic, supply 

facts about the topic and provide a conclusion. 

 Writes opinion pieces in which they introduce the topic. 

 Writes narratives in which they recount two or more appropriately 

sequenced events, include details regarding what happened, use 

appropriate words to indicate order of events and provide a conclusion. 

 With guidance, focuses on a topic, responds to questions or suggestions 

from peers, and add details to strengthen writing.  

Listening and 

Speaking 
 Shares ideas, facts, observations and opinions with classmates and 

teachers. 

 Follows directions and asks questions for clarification. 

 Listens respectfully and learns to take turns speaking 
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Math End of Year Expectations 

Arithmetic 

and Number 

Concepts 

 Counts by ones, twos, forward and backward from 100 using a number 

line. 

 Counts within 1000; skip-counts by 5s, 10s, and 100s. 

 Uses ordinal numbers form first through thirty-first. 

 Uses place value when adding and subtracting numbers to 100. 

 Fluently add and subtract with 20 using mental strategies. 

 Uses the symbols <, >, =, +, - appropriately. 

 Add and subtract two digit numbers with and without regrouping. 

 Matches words and symbols from zero to thirty. 

 Recognizes ½, 1/3, ¼, 1/5, 1/8, and 1/10 as part of a whole or part of a set 

of objects. 

 Makes change for amounts of money to $1.00 
 

Geometry 

and 

Measurement 

 Recognize simple two and three dimensional figures in everyday life. 

 Compare two and three dimensional figures based on sigh or capacity. 

 Uses a clock or calendar to track time and events. 

 Measures length, weight, capacity and temperature. 

 Estimates sizes 

Function and 

Algebra 
 Sorts and classifies objects by two characteristics 

 Recognizes more than one object belonging to a set 

 Find missing numbers in open sentences. 

Statistics and 

Probability  
 Participates in collecting and recording data 

 Participates in arranging and displaying data using tables, pictographs 

and bar graphs 

 Predicts likely outcomes of repeated facts 

Mathematical 

Processes 
 Selects an appropriate strategy to solve word problems. 

 Uses objects, drawings and writing to explain solutions to problems. 
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 Grade 5 Core Promotion Standards 

ELA End of Year Expectations 

Reading  Uses their knowledge of how words work to figure out new and 

challenging words. 

 Decode words in text automatically. 

 Reads independently for sustained periods of time. 

 Reads aloud with fluency and expression, using strategies for self-

correction. 

 Shows understanding by retelling, summarizing and analyzing 

relationships among parts of the text. 

 Compare characters, setting and theme from one book to another. 

 Raises questions about what an author writes and tries to answer 

questions through reading. 

 Compares and contrasts books by the same author or in the same genre. 

 Discusses author’s craft (e.g. point of view, word choice, plot, beginnings 

and endings and character development). 

Writing Writes daily for extended periods on self-selected topics, in all subject areas. 

Takes 10-12 pieces of writing through the process of revising, editing and 

publishing. 

Writes a variety of pieces (poems, stories, reports, etc.) that are longer and more 

complex than in earlier grades. 

Uses punctuation and spelling correctly a majority of the time. 

Writes using some of the words and sentences they read in books. 

Includes new and more sophisticated vocabulary in their writing. 

 Writes in order to: 

 Share an experience or event, real or imagined (narrative writing). 

 Learn new things and communicate information to others (report 

writing). 

 Tell what they think about a book (response to literature). 

 Tell how to do something (procedural writing). 

Listening and 

Speaking 

Demonstrates active listens and participate in class discussions and one-to-one 

conversation with teacher in order to: 

 Share observations, information and opinions in class discussions. 

 Listen respectfully and takes turns speaking 

 Expresses thoughts clearly 

 Uses comparison and analysis to explain ideas 

 Uses information that is accurate and relevant to a discussion 

 Asks questions to further a discussion 

 Follows directions 
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Math End of Year Expectations 

Arithmetic 

and Number 

Concepts 

 Uses knowledge of place value to read and write numbers through 

thousands and millions. 

 Adds, subtracts, multiplies and divides whole numbers. 

 Uses addition, subtraction, multiplication and division facts with 

accuracy and efficiency  

 Understands the order of operations  

 Understands number theory (e.g., factors, multiples, power, roots). 

 Adds, subtracts and compares fractions, decimals, integers and percents. 

 Represent multiplication and division of fractions with graphs and 

models. 

 Explores ratios, proportion and scale. 

 Understand positive and negative numbers as they relate to  coordinates, 

debits, credits, etc. 

Geometry 

and 

Measurement 

 Recognizes, classifies and describes two and three dimensional figures. 

 Demonstrates an understanding of perimeter, circumference, area and 

volume. 

 Estimates, measures and converts using both metric and customary (U.S. 

Standard) units. 

 Uses the coordinate plane to explore geometric ideas (e.g., graph ordered 

pairs). 

Function and 

Algebra 
 Recognizes, describes, creates and extends patterns and sequence 

 Solve basic linear equations 

 Basic understanding of functions and functional relationships. 

 Uses the commutative, associative and distributive properties. 

Statistics and 

Probability 
 Collects and records data to answer a question or test a hypothesis 

 Arranges and displays data using tables, Venn diagrams and graphs 

 Interprets and analyzes data 

 Determines probability of independent events 

Mathematical 

Process 
 Uses appropriate operations and a variety of strategies to solve problems 

 Uses mathematical language to describe, explain and compare problems 

and operations. 

 Uses manipulatives, the calculator and other mathematical tools 

appropriately. 
 

F.    School Culture and Climate 
In the words of Karon Rilling: “We have to assure these children that while they are with us they 
are safe and will be treated well.  For some that may be all we can do but we must do that.  We 
may not be able to control what goes on in any child’s life before or after school.  But here they 
will be not abused and they will be treated fairly.  And they will be protected and they will be 
respected.  And we’re going to help them learn how life can be”.

25
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QPCS’ culture and climate will draw upon the Interstate School Leaders Licensure Consortium 
(ISLLC-2) standards.  The culture and climate will demonstrate clearly the vision and mission of 
the school which include: innovation, quality interpersonal relations that foster teamwork and 
collaboration, appraisal of individuals that causes one to see that what they are doing is worth 
doing, shared commitment, respect, caring, high standards, high expectations, and an 
environment that places value on a sense of belonging and high self-esteem. QPCS’ culture will 
embrace rules to help direct and promote positive behaviors. QPCS also encourages the use of 
public and private recognition and rewards of positive behavior by students. It is a school that 
supports values that build up others. It will ensure that the entire school community is informed 
of and has a clear understanding of the expectations, and value them. School leaders and teachers 
will model the values of and the beliefs that are important to the school.  This is critical because 
their actions represent what the school considers important.  A school leader who acts with care 
and concern for others will develop a school culture with similar values. The leader who ignores 
the value and input of others places a stamp of approval on selfish behaviors and attitudes.  

26
 

Consequences for not abiding by the rules will be dealt with in a minor that reinforces reflection, 
accountability, responsibility, and justice. To ensure that the environment is a safe, nurturing 
place conducive for learning, QPCS will take infractions of the rules very seriously. 
 
QPCS defines discipline as helping children grow and develop in ways that will enable them to 
excel in school, career and life.  In partnership with BIST, QPCS will incorporate strategies that 
guide and develop students with grace and dignity while holding them accountable for their 
actions.  “The goal is to help children change problem behaviors without creating the negative 
side effects that traditional punishment models produce. It is important to maintain the integrity 
of a teaching environment”.

27
 QPCS has developed rules and discipline codes that address the 

behavior expected of students to maintain order and an environment for conducive.  When 
authorization is granted, these discipline codes will be provided to the QPCS Board for approval, 
published in the Student Handbook, and distributed to members of QPCS’ school community. 
 
Pre-opening PD includes a review of the discipline codes by staff and faculty and they will be 
trained as to how it should be implemented.  QPCS will inform parents and students of these 
school policies at the orientation meeting to ensure clear understanding of the expectations for 
student conduct.  Discipline is viewed as a process; infractions will be dealt with individually 
with a range of consequences as established by the school.  Order, safety of students and well-
being will be the first steps taken when disciplinary action is needed. The results of the 
disciplinary action should reinforce what is acceptable and the consequences for ignoring the 
rules.  See Attachment 4 Discipline Policy for further discussion. The discipline codes will be 
made available to the school community at the beginning of every school year to ensure that 
everyone is aware and informed about the expectations. Infraction contains a range of possible 
disciplinary responses. There are various levels of infractions from insubordination to dangerous 
or violent behaviors. Intervention will begin at the lowest level whenever possible. The 
discipline codes contain higher levels of consequences for students who engage in inappropriate 
behaviors continuously.  
 

Dignity for All Students Act: QPCS is committed to the Dignity for All Students Act (DA) 
which took effect on July1, 2012.  The intent of the DA is to provide students in public schools a 
learning environment that is discrimination and harassment free, especially of harassment based 
on a student’s race, color, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, 
sexual orientation, or gender.  Training is provided for staff regarding the DA during pre-opening 
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PD that focuses on QPCS’ mission and vision for promoting a positive school culture.  QPCS 
will have in place a designated staff to address and deal with issues relating to violations of the 
DA including bullying.   
 

Evaluation of School Climate: QPCS evaluates perception of the school climate in a formal 
manner on a yearly basis through the NYCDOE Learning Environment surveys distributed to 
parents and school staff.  This NYCDOE current Learning Environment survey is designed for 
middle school and above; as a result, QPCS will design an elementary school version to gauge 
the feedback.  QPCS’ leadership will analyze the results of the survey which will be reviewed as 
part of QPCS’ process in working with our annual accountability goals.  Disciplinary incidents 
are recorded and kept for all students.  QPCS will comply with all state and local laws regarding 
the collection of data.  
 
G.  Special Student Populations and Related Services 
Differentiated instruction is based on the philosophy that classrooms where students are active 
learners, decision makers, and problem solvers are more natural and effective than those in 
which students are served on one-size-fits-all bases. Project-based learning supports this 
28

objective.  QPCS’ PB/DI instructional model in coordination with the GRR model in all 
subjects and the use of RWW specifically for ELA support all learners as these methodologies 
enable teachers to differentiate instruction.  Teachers will use data to guide and inform decisions 
and instruction.  Data will also be used to conference with students and in small groups. This 
process supports individualized instruction and is therefore appropriate for meeting the needs of 
all students, including those who are ELLs, academically at-risk, SWD or are accelerated 
learners.  QPCS will have dedicated instructional staff, supports and systems in place address 
specific needs represented by these special populations. Pull-out strategies will be utilized to the 
when necessary for students without an IEP or based on the requirements of a SWD’s IEP.  The 
minimum qualifications for personnel providing and implementing specialized instructional  
services include, certification for special education teacher, ESL teacher, reading specialist, and 
social worker as provided in Attachment 8a: Hiring and Personnel Policies. 
 

Students with Disabilities: QPCS will provide instruction to students with disabilities in the 
lease restrictive environment to the extent possible.  Strategies will be subject to the 
requirements included in each student’s IEP in accordance with all applicable federal and state 
laws and regulations (e.g. IDEA).  The determination of special learning environments, separate 
grouping, or other types of removal of students with disabilities form the regular educational 
setting will take place only if the nature or severity of the disability is such that regular 
classroom education with the use of supplementary aids and services is unable to meet the 
identified need (s) of the student, in accordance with their IEP.  Students with disabilities will 
also be expected to participate in activities and programs with all other students to the extent 
allowed by the IEP.  All students including those with disabilities will receive information 
regarding school-sponsored programs, activities, and services. 
 

Methods and Strategies for Identifying and Serving Students with Disabilities: QPCS will 
comply with the federal Child Find requirements (34 CFR 300. 125. Students enrolling for the 
first time in a public school undergo screening by a team of educators-the Student Evaluation 
Team (SET) to assess whether there are any indications that the child may be in need of an IEP, 
or referral to the Committee of Special Education (CSE) of the student’s district of residence.  
QPCS will ensure that the up-to-date IEP’s records of enrolled students are forwarded by their 
previous schools in as quickly as possible.  Other students demonstrating problems within the 
general education classroom environment will be brought to the attention of the SET.  Strategies 
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and tactics will then be implemented to deal with any identified special needs of students.  If a 
problem on-going and a disability is suspected, the student will be referred to the CSE of the 
student’s district of residence to be evaluated.  
 
When a student is suspected of having a disability the student will become a focal point he SET 
consisting of an administrator, a classroom teachers, the social worker, the reading specialist and 
special education teacher.  The ESL teacher will be invited to participate as needed.  The 
classroom teacher will provide records of classroom observation, assessment data, conferences 
with parents, administration and special education staff, and at-risk intervention data to be 
reviewed.  A member of the SET will also make observations of the student in the classroom 
setting in order to conduct an appropriate evaluation.  Supplemental services are different; 
interventions range from low levels to extensive levels and may be available within the school, 
or located somewhere else within the community.  The SET will use the RTI Guide: Making it 
Work along with the Pre-Referral Intervention Manual

29
 (PRIM) to guide their Response to 

Intervention (RTI) strategies.  The SET is responsibility for: reviewing problems 
(academic/developmental, behavioral, social/emotional) interfering with the child’s ability to 
performance at expected levels; coming up with solutions, making recommendations to meet the 
child’s identified needs and monitor/review outcomes of the recommendations (including Title I 
services).  The SET will conference with the student’s teacher (s) and have consultation with the 
student’s parents to offer recommendations.  Referral to the SET will be considered when the 
documentation clearly demonstrates that RTI strategies were implemented but insufficient in 
addressing the student’s needs. QPCS’ percentage of special education students will be 
determined at an appropriate level. 
 

Referrals to the SET: If the student’s shows no improvement academically or in non-academic 
areas of concern after implementing of strategies that are deemed to be appropriate, an official 
meeting will be conducted with the family and a referral may ensue.  The referral will be made in 
writing to the Chairperson of the CSE of the NYCDOE for an individual evaluation and 
determine if the student is of eligible for special education programs and services.  A copy of the 
referral, along with the procedural safeguards notice described in 34 CFR 300.504, will be sent 
to the student’s parents/guardians. A referral may be made by a student’s parent or person in 
parental relationship, a professional staff member of QPCS, a physician, a judicial officer or a 
representative of a public agency.  Regulations identify specific requirements for referrals 
initiated by professional staff members, dictating that such a referral must: state the reasons for 
the referral and include any test results, records, or report upon which the referral is based; 
describe what attempts have be made to remediate the students’ performance before making the  
referral, including supplementary aids or support services or the reasons why such attempts were 
not made; describing efforts made for parental contact or involvement before the referral.  Initial 
evaluations, re-evaluations, and revisions of IEPs, and the procedures relating to it, are the 
responsibility of the CSE of the student’s school district of residence (see 34 CFR 300.22, 
300.312 and 300.340 et al). QPCS will implement the IEP formulated by the CSE for each 
student identified, and will work with the students to make sure that the services recommended 
in the student’s IEP are provided.   As required by IDEA, the student’s regular education teacher 
will be involved in the development and implementation of a student’s IEP. QPCS will provide 
coverage for teachers as necessary to ensure they are able to attend meetings conducted by the 
CSE. 
 

Instructional Support for Students with Disabilities: QPCS will hire and retain staff that are 
qualified to work with SWDs, and if needed may contract with certified or licensed individuals 
and or organizations to provide services, with supervision from the Principal and, when hired, 
the Special Education Coordinator (SEC).  QPCS will hire a full-time special education teacher 
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in its first year.  The Special Education teacher will serve as Special Education Coordinator 
(SEC) until Year 2, at which time a designated SEC will be hired.  In year 4 of operation, a 
second designated special education teacher will be hired.  The Special Education Coordinator 
will overseeing QPCS’ Special Education Program, which includes but is not limited to the 
management of students’ IEPs records, complying with all IEP requirements and regulations, 
management of the review and referral process, ensuring that services mandated on students’ 
IEPs are provided, monitoring students’ progress, and submitting annually all reports that are 
required for compliance with 34 CFR 300.750.  The Principal will also aid in overseeing the 
process. 
 
QPCS staff for special education will provide support to the classroom teachers, work in the 
general education classrooms with special education students when necessary and serve as 
consultant on special education to the school community.  Special education staff will work with 
the instructional staff to support the education of students with disabilities in a ways that are 
supportive and create consistencies of the students’ IEPs.  Special education staff will ensure that 
the teachers are informed about the needs of students with disabilities, receive the necessary 
support to implement each student’s program, and will put in place the modifications necessary 
to accommodate these students in their classes.  Teachers working with students who have 
disabilities will be given with copies of the students’ IEPs and relating information.  QPCS will 
ensure special education services and programs are provided to students while they are in school.  
QPCS will be supportive of students to ensure that IEP mandates and measurable goals are 
achieved. QPCS intends to provide the following that may be required by a student’s IEP: 
resource room, special education teacher and other necessary services mandated by the student’s 
IEP.  QPCS will have a social worker for those students whose IEP requires counseling services. 
QPCS will most likely contract with outside service providers for service the school is unable to 
provide, which may include services such as speech language pathology, and audiologist services 
etc. In order to assist with the implementation of the IEP goals the special education teacher or 
assistant may sit with a student. If QPCS is not able to provide services in accordance with the 
student’s IEP, it will work with the school district to provide services. 
 
Teachers will receive continuous training as it relates to students with special needs including 
beginning with pre-opening PD.  The needs of SWD will be addressed during PD by placing 
emphasis on differentiation and continuous assessment of work.  This PD will ensure that 
teachers are appropriately trained in the use the RTI Guide and PRIM as well as the referral 
process SWD. QPCS’ embedded model for PD allows for extended training opportunities, 
collaborative planning specific to the education of students.  QPCS has chosen material for 
instruction that will be used to provide academic support/intervention for students with 
disabilities in reading, math and science.  QPCS’ has aligned its budget to address the anticipated 
needs of purchasing other instructional material as indicated by QPCS’ special education 
personnel. 
 

English Language Learners: QPCS will support all Limited English Proficient (LEP)/ELL 
students by providing instruction that is supportive in order achieve proficiency in English.  
QPCS shall comply with all applicable laws including Title VI of the federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (as amended) and the Federal Equal Education Opportunities Act of 1974.  QPCS will 
ensure that LEP/ELL students are included in curricular and extracurricular activities regardless 
of their competence to speak or understand the language in which they are being instructed. 
QPCS will ensure that ELLs are not placed in special education simply because of their lack of 
proficiency in the English language.  Parents who are no fluent in English will receive notices 
and information from the school in their native language or the one they are most comfortable 
with in order to encourage their participation. 
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In order to identify ELLs QPCS will do the following: if English is indicated as the sole 
language spoken in the home in our Home Language Questionnaire, there will be no need to 
continue screening in this area. If the language spoken at home is different from English or the 
English is not native to the student, then an interview with the student and the parent/guardian 
will be conducted by a designated staff member in English, or if needed in a language that is 
comfortable for them.  If the student speaks a different language, and very little or no English 
then QPCS will administer the Language Assessment Batter-Revised (LAB-R). A student 
scoring below proficient level is LEP, and as a result eligible for services prescribed for ESL.  
After a student is identified for ESL services, their progress in the English language will be 
measured annually by participating in the NYS English as a Second Language Achievement Test 
(NYSESLAT).  The scores on the NYSESLAT indicate the proficiency level the student has 
achieved each year, and if the student’s level of English proficiency is at the appropriate level to 
allow them to exit ESL services. 
 

Instructional Support for ELLs: In order to speed up proficiency for ELLs to transition English 
as quickly as possible, QPCS will employ an ESL teacher beginning in Year 1.  The ESL teacher 
will utilize Sheltered English Immersion (SEI) strategies in both push in and pull-out models.  
SEI is an approach to content teaching to ELLs in ways that are strategic to allow the subject 
matter to be comprehended more easily (e.g. providing access to grade level content without 
diminishing the content) while fostering the English language development of the students.  In 
the push-in model, the ESL teacher will plan and work collaboratively with the classroom 
teacher to integrate language and content while promoting awareness of culture to scaffold 
students in their learning of English during instruction.  Students’ learning of the English 
language is further enhanced in the PB/DI, GRR and RWW models within the “collaboration” 
elements of these models. Research indicates that students’ language development is further 
supported through social interaction and contextualized communication which can be readily 
generated in all subject areas.

3031
  The ESL teacher will guide students to construct meaning from 

texts and classroom discussions and to understand complex content concepts by scaffolding 
instruction-beginning instruction at the current level of student understanding and moving 
students to higher levels of understanding through tailored support.  The tailored support can 
include adjusting their speech (paraphrasing, giving examples, providing analogies and 
elaborating students’ responses) to facilitate students’ comprehension and participation in 
discussions when the discussion may rise to a level that is beyond their language proficiency 
level. 

32
  

 
Another way the ESL teacher would work in SEI within the classroom is by adjusting 
instructional tasks so they are incrementally challenging (e.g. pre-teaching vocabulary before 
reading assignment) while students learn the skills necessary to complete tasks on their own.

33
 

With SEI, ELLs receive the same academic content as students who are proficient in the English 
language.  English will be the language of instruction but; the level of English used is modified 
when necessary.  Singapore Math has a highly visual learning instructional approach that will 
help ELLs and ensure that learning has the appropriate amount of scaffolding and is 
differentiated.  Teachers will be supported with PD in their use of SEI strategies for distributing 
content to ELLs in the English language.  At QPCS, students will receive instruction from their 
classroom teacher in a manner that is compassionate and not embarrassing to ELLs. QPCS will 
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use the new ESL standards document entitled, The Teaching of Language Arts to Limited 
English Proficient/English Language Learners: Learning Standards for English as a Second 
Language as a guide to make sure that ELLs are able to meet the same standards as the general 
student population.    
 
QPCS has chosen ELA instructional material, Read Well, the Recipe for Reading and Words 
Their Way by Pearson for Grades K-5.  The Read Well and Recipe for Reading programs, along 
with its intervention programs will support ELLs’ English language development.  These 
materials are strong in their phonics-based approaches content rich and are suited for schools 
using an SEI approach.  The selected reading materials are aligned with the findings of both the 
National Reading Council and the National Reading Panel and it fully addresses the five 
essential components of reading: phonemic awareness, phonics, vocabulary, fluency, and 
comprehension. Words Their Way is endorsed by Teachers College RWW and is aligned with 
the workshop model.  These resources will provide teachers and students with tools necessary for 
success.  They lay the foundation for language and literacy development, a curriculum this is 
integrated, assessment and instruction; on the job PD; couching, and learning that extends form 
school to home.  As referenced earlier, PB/DI, GRR and RWW models of instruction are 
supportive of ELLs. These approaches to instruction provide connection and cohesiveness 
through mini-lessons, independent work time and a peer interaction.  In grades K-2 students will 
experience literature through read aloud stories that covers various topics and concepts in social 
studies, math, science etc.  In small group interaction and instruction, students will have 
opportunities to review and revisit these reading materials.  Language activities such as text 
walks/picture walks that allow children to interact by speaking, acting, coloring, writing will be 
included in these stories.  Singapore Math uses pictures and drawings throughout its program to 
help students make sense of the problems.  ELL strategies such as visual learning, modeling and 
use of repetition, phasing a though differently all support ELLs in their math education 
experience.  Science and social studies materials are permeated with visual learning examples 
such as pictures, drawings, photos, diagrams and the utilization of common objects which help 
ELLs to make connections and better understand abstract concepts and ideas of the language.  
Teacher will have opportunity to meet with ELLs before they begin independent work, as well as 
during independent work or working with their peers. Interaction and collaboration is 
encouraged as the students work and learn. ELLs will be paired strategically by teachers with 
other students during science, math, and social studies to further scaffold ELLs. This type of 
pairing will provide language role models, which give social and emotional support to ELLs. 
 

Professional Development: QPCS will include training for teachers as a standard part of the 
annual PD plan.  The training will include appreciation for and sensitivity to other languages and 
cultures; techniques for working with diverse cultures, strategies for instructing and supporting 
ELLs.  PD will also emphasize the need for differentiated instruction and continuous assessment 
for ELLs and using data to inform instruction.  
 

Students At-Risk of Academic Failure: Students experiencing difficulty with ELA and math 
proficiency and those identified as eligible for services under Title I will be considered for 
academic intervention services (AIS) based on their performance on NYS ELA and Math 
assessments, SAT 10 or DIBELS Benchmark Assessment.  In a process similar to the one used 
for identifying ELLs, benchmarks will be established in both Reading/Language Arts and 
Mathematics.  Students who perform below benchmarks will be identified for AIS including 
those funded through Title I. Other factors that will facilitate a designation of students at-risk 
include issues with behavior, recommendations by teachers, unresponsiveness to appropriate 
interventions methods such as RTI and PRIM. 
 

Response to Intervention Strategies: Based on student assessment data, QPCS will implement 
intervention strategies for reading and math.  As with the RTI described for Special Education 



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Page 37 
 

students, prior to students being identified as AIS or Title I set procedure will be followed.  
Conferences, small group instruction, scaffolding, and the support of the second teacher in the 
classroom are all elements of our comprehensive RTI plan. 
 
The use of SEI by the ESL teacher in core subjects to address the needs of ELLs is also a 
strategy that provides opportunities to all students. Even though they may not be considered 
ELLs, research indicates that children from impoverished backgrounds many times experience 
challenges in language development. As such, students at-risk of academic failure will also 
benefit from strategies presented in SEI that are used by the ESL teacher and incorporated by 
general studies teachers allowing access to mainstream, grade-level content, and to further 
proficiency development of the English language.  The SET will review behavior and academic 
performance, meet with teacher (s) and parents to offer options and alternatives.  A referral to the 
CSE should only be considered after the documents clearly demonstrate a need for interventions 
were it was sufficiently implemented to address the needs of the student. 
 
If a student demonstrates no academic improvement or other areas where concerns were 
expressed, the student will receive intense academic intervention through the use of RTI Guide: 
Making it Work-Strategies = Solutions and Pearson’s Words Their Way.  QPCS will hire a 
Reading Specialist in Year 2 of operation.  Classroom teachers will work collaboratively in order 
to effectively address the academic needs of at-risk students.  The Principal will serve as the 
Title I coordinator and will oversee the implementation of academic intervention programs.  
 

1. Implementation and documentation of academic intervention services by classroom 
teachers.  Examples of intervention services are: small group guided reading sessions, use 
of research-based reading intervention programs and/ or strategies for students identified 
as Title I and in need of academic intervention, the use of supplemental reading material, 
tutoring and extra small group mathematics support. 
 

2. Intervention and documentation by the Social Worker to support family participation in 
promotion of academic growth of student.  Examples of supplemental intervention 
services by the Social Worker are: guidelines for support students at home in reading and 
mathematics skills, appropriate work space and time for student, coordination and 
outreach for additional academic support services such as tutoring and/or counseling; and 
promotion of school-family partnership concentrated on providing consistent language 
used by school and home in discussions of reading, writing, and math. 

 

Teachers will have time daily that can be used to provide AIS to students identified as at-risk of 
academic failure. QPCS will also offer an intensive 4 week summer academic intervention 
program to further support at-risk students.  Throughout the year, teachers and instructional 
specialists with supervision and support from the Principal will analyze and evaluate the progress 
of students who are struggling.  QPCS’s instructional model will support teacher’s ability to 
make real time changes to lesson plans and instructional strategies in order to meet student 
needs. Their performance will also be measured using DIBELS Benchmark Assessment, 
formative and summative assessments and standardized assessments like the SAT 10 and the 
NYS tests. Analysis of assessment data will allow us to see whether or not progress is being 
made.  Students meeting benchmarks that have been established will no longer be considered for 
academic intervention. 
 
Instructional Staff and Support: All instructional staff will be engaged and committed to 
working with academic struggling students. The CEO and Principal will provide leadership; 
guidance and support to all teachers in their work to ensure all students meet or exceed QPCS’ 
learning standards.  QPCS will have the following instructional support specialists:  

 Reading Specialist 
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 Special education teachers and coordinator  
 ESL Teacher 

 

Accelerated Learners 
Students will be considered as accelerated when their performance proficiency exceed standards 
in ELA and math as measured by NYS ELA and Math tests, SAT 10 and the DIBELS 
Benchmark Assessment.  As referenced previously, GRR enables teachers to individualize 
instruction to meet the needs of students of special populations.  During independent work 
sessions teachers may foster the engagement of accelerated learners on an individualized 
research project that requires their developing computer programming skills in order to gain 
advanced knowledge.  The project-based model provides numerous opportunities for the 
accelerated learner to thrive and grow. Classrooms will be equipped with appropriate resources 
and technology that will facilitate accelerated student’s academic engagement. 
 
Through PD teachers will develop the competencies to differentiate their lessons to meet the 
needs of all learners, including accelerated learners.  Teachers will be expected to demonstrate 
through their lesson plans how they have differentiated the instruction to meet the needs of 
special student groups.  Lesson plans are expected to indicate how students will be assessed and 
how the goals and objectives of the lessons will be achieved.  SET and teachers will collaborate 
to identify strategies to continue student’s academic development.  In addition to the providing 
work that is advanced, targeted enrichment activities will be used to further develop the student. 
Throughout the year, with the supervision and support of the Principal, teachers and instructional 
specialist will analyze and review accelerated students’ progress. Assessment data will enable us 
to decide if academically accelerated students are being challenged on a consistent basis.    
 

Evaluation of Programs for Special Population: QPCS will engage in an on-going process of 
evaluation for its program and services to all students, including those programs and services 
specifically for its special populations.  The evaluation system described in  III.D. Evaluation, 
will allow us to adjust and review goals and expectations of our programs for special education 
students, ELLs, students at-risk of academic failure and academically accelerated students.  
These programs and services will be continually assessed using student performance data. 
 
QPCs will use data to determine the progress of special education students and LEP/ELLs, 
against not only the stated goals of their IEPs or level of English language proficiency but 
against QPCS overall accountability goals and will make changes as necessary.  The special 
education teacher (Special Education Coordinator when hired) will provide reports to the 
Principal on an ongoing basis on the academic progress of SWD.  Progress reports will be 
analyzed and reviewed in contrast to the stated goals on the student’s IEPs. Monitoring of 
student progress will be standard procedure at QPCS and by the Education Committee of the 
Board.  Additionally, the Principal or his/her designee will conduct a comprehensive evaluation 
of the ELLs’ participation in extra-curricular activities semiannually, to identify any evidence of 
their full participation.  The results of this evaluation along with recommendation for 
improvement if needed will be presented to the Education Committee of the Board. 
 
For students at-risk of academic failure and for students who are academically advanced, QPCS 
will use this information to determine student progress against QPCS’ overall goals. 
Modifications will be to programs and services for student as is necessary. This information will 
be shared with the QPCS Board. Performance indicators will determine if student data is in line 
with the expected goals which the Board will use to evaluate the school’s overall performance.  

 
 
 



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Page 39 
 

III. ORGANIZATIONAL AND FISCAL PLAN 
 

A. Applicant(s)/Founding Group Capacity 

Name  

 

Current Employment 

 

Relevant experience/skills and role on 

founding group 

 

Proposed 

Role (s) if 

Any 

Dr. Smita Guha 

 

St. John's University 

 

Experience: Professor, Coordinator of 

Childhood & Early Childhood Programs, 

Faculty Advisor of NYC ACEI, 

published author                                          

Expertise: Curriculum development, 

program evaluation, Project-based 

learning, grant writing, professional 

development                                                                   

School 

Adviser 

 

Jeremiah Grant 

 

The Learning Solution 

Center, Ultimate 

Aircraft  

 

Experience: Adjunct professor for Penn 

Valley Community College; K-12 school 

administrator, teacher evaluation, teacher 

training, math tutor and YMCA Site 

Director, Head Start Director for KCMC, 

HR management.                                                                              

Expertise:  School administrator, 

budgeting, data analysis, facility 

management, community outreach 

CEO  

Phillip Stanford 

 

Medgar Evers College 

 

Experience: Teacher director-Grand 

Academy CSD I, assistant principal, 

principal, administrator of alternative 

school program, adjunct professor   

Expertise: School 

administration, curriculum development, 

teacher training, teacher evaluation, 

personnel and HR management, 

program evaluation, community 

outreach and advocacy, public relations 

& communications 

Trustee 

 

Horace Aiken 

 

Trey Whitfield School 

 

Experience: Chief Financial Officer, 

licensed certified public accountant, 

finance                                                                                 

Expertise: Finance, Accounting, non-

profit financial management, policy 

development, administration 

Board 

Treasurer 

 

 

Dr. Christine 

Keefe 

 

 

Two Bridges Neighbor 

Council 

 

 

Experience: Community Program 

Director, taught primary through 

university levels, STEM Curriculum 

design and development, created 

instructional DVD on integrated literacy 

and using ELL methods for teaching 

science in middle school, designed and 

piloted scientific writing course for 

biology majors, cognitive ecology 

research; conducted research for 

 
Trustee 
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Name  

 

Current Employment 

 

Relevant experience/skills and role on 

founding group 

 

Proposed 

Role (s) if 

Any 

American Museum of Natural History, 

Yale Peabody Museum, New York Hall 

of Science and PBS                                        

Expertise: Cognitive Ecology, research, 

curriculum development community 

outreach, public relations  

Lorna Lightfoot Marlin Mechanical Inc. 

 

Experience: Accounts 

Payable/Receivable Manager, paralegal, 

college admission, notary public                                                                                                             

Expertise: administration, personnel and 

HR management 

None 

Lenora Allen-

Hines 

 

Black Entertainment 

Television Network 

(BET) 

 

Experience: Administrative Assistant to 

director, scheduling and appointment 

management, data management and 

correspondence                            

Expertise: Schedule development and 

management, information tracking and 

communications 

None 

 

Lycia Grant The Learning Solution 

Center, LLC 

Experience: Teaching, training & staff 

development, marketing, public 

relations, community outreach, real 

estate, contract negotiation curriculum 

development, development of policy and 

procedures, research & data analysis, 

quality assurance management 

Board 

Chair 

Dr. Scherly Leon New York Hospital of 

Queens 

Experience: Medicine, patient care, 

health management, medical research, 

community outreach & public advocacy, 

fundraising, public relations and data 

analysis and management 

Expertise: Health care management, 

patient care, community outreach, public 

relations, research and data analysis and 

management 

Trustee 

Gregory Pietrzak Macina & Pietrzak, 

LLC 

Experience: Attorney, legal matters 

ranging from immigration, family-based 

petitions, employment related petitions, 

I-9 compliance, asylum, citizenship & 

naturalization, marketing, community 

outreach & advocacy, legal research 

Expertise: Law, public outreach & 

advocacy, public speaking, legal research 

and document preparation 

Board 

Vice-

Chair 

Carola Craig Department of 

Education 

Experience: Parent Coordinator, plan & 

facilitate parent workshops, increase 

parent involvement, community 

outreach, proposals & contracts, public 

Board 

Secretary 
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Name  

 

Current Employment 

 

Relevant experience/skills and role on 

founding group 

 

Proposed 

Role (s) if 

Any 

speaking, creating reports, financial 

documents and data management 

Expertise: Parent engagement, 

community outreach, public speaking, 

planning and facilitating parent 

workshops, data analysis 

Our founding group possesses a wide range of experiences/expertise that are relevant to the 
founding and start-up of a successful charter school. 
    

Applicant/Founding Group Origin: The founding group came together based on a shared vision 
to make a difference in the lives of children through education.  Questbridge Preparatory Charter 
School was initially conceived by Jeremiah and Lycia Grant after many years of working with 
children and families in various capacities.  Dr. Smita Guha, Lenora Allen-Hines, Lorna 
Lightfoot and Dr. Scherly Leon were then brought on board to help develop a curricular 
framework and key design elements. Gregory Pietrzak and Horace Aiken were also brought on 
to help with legal and operational components of the school design. Other board members were 
recruited in September and October in 2013 and Carola Craig, Dr. Christine Keefe and Phillip 
Stanford joined the Questbridge Preparatory Charter School team. This process brought together 
a unique group of people, some with ties to the community who were willing to work hard and 
make the necessary sacrifices to see this school become a reality.  Jeremiah Grant has been 
identified as the proposed CEO.  As CEO he will have general oversight of the school program 
and will focus on the business aspect of the school.  A Principal will be hired to oversee the 
instructional aspect of the school. Having conceived the idea of QPCS, Jeremiah has a thorough 
understanding of the vision, mission and philosophy of the school.  Additionally, he has the 
experience, skill and will to oversee, help develop and operate a high-quality school.   
 
Proposal Development: To develop the proposal QPCS founding group worked together and 
within committees in consultation with Dr. Alice Listi of St. John’s University, Dr. Yvonne 
Pratt-Johnson of St. John’s University and Education Consultant Mr. Simeon Stolzberg.  
Additionally, the founding group visited and sought advice from various charter school leaders, 
Columbia University Teachers College, Pace University STEM Consortium, The Bank Street 
School, ( Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School, Harlem Children’s Zone Promise Academy 
Charter School, South Bronx Classical Charter School), Leed Green Associates, Logo 
Foundation and the Behavioral Intervention Support Team. The founding group members 
worked in committees to do research and provide findings and input in the development of the 
proposal.  Members worked extensively on budget development, facility planning, curriculum, 
and educational plans.  Lycia Grant was the primary author of the final application.  Members of 
the founding group met frequently.  As a whole group, meetings were held once a month and 
committees met various times throughout the month to work on their areas of focus.   

 
Each member of the founding group contributed to the development of the charter proposal.  
Founding members also contributed by working within the community and seeking parental 
support which is a critical component of the application process. They conducted public 
meetings at local libraries, attended community outreach meetings, made phone calls, developed 
survey, flyer and a facebook page (https://m.facebook.com/profile.php?id=236009736569821). 
The founding group is committed to doing whatever it takes to help make a difference in the 
lives of children and the community.  
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B.  Board of Trustees and Governance 

Proposed Founding Board of Trustees 

Trustee Name Voting- Y/N Position on the board (e.g., officer 

or constituent representative 

Length of 

Initial 

Term 

Phillip Stanford 

 

Y Trustee 1yr 

Gregory B. 

Pietrzak 

 

Y Vice Chair 1yr 

M. Lycia Grant 

 

Y Chair 1yr 

Dr. Scherly Leon 

 

Y Trustee 1yr 

Carola Craig 

 

Y Secretary 1yr 

Horace Aiken 

 

Y Treasurer 1yr 

Dr. Christine 

Keefe 

 

Y Trustee 1yr 

 

Per the QPCS by-laws in Attachment 5 (B), The Board shall be not less than seven (7) or more 
than fifteen (15).  The By-laws provide more detail regarding the information requested by the 
Regents on the Method of Appointment or Election of Trustees, the Procedure for Conducting 
Board Meetings, and the Procedure for Providing Public Notice of Monthly Meetings to be held 
at the Charter School. 
 
Administrative Relationship between Trustees and the Board of Regents: It is our 
understanding that the charter agreement is between QPCS’ Board of Trustees and the Board of 
Regents.  All decisions will be guided by the approved charter agreement.  The trustees must 
seek approval prior to making a decision that differs from provisions in the charter.  QPCS 
anticipates that during each year of the charter term, and periodically in subsequent charter 
terms, inspection visits conducted by NYSED staff.  QPCS will submit to the Board of Regents 
an annual report detailing the academic and fiscal performance of the school.  This includes but 
is not limited to: (1) information related to student academic performance; (2) a description of 
QPCS’ progress in achieving its Accountability Plan Goals; (3) a certified financial statement 
and QPCS’ most recent independent audit report; and (4) a demonstration of QPCS’ success in 
meeting enrollment targets of special populations.  QPCS’ Board and leadership will also ensure 
that all reports and data required by the authorizer will be provided in a timely manner. 
 

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Its Officer: The Board of Trustees is the School’s 
oversight and policy-making body.  The Board may delegate certain responsibilities and duties to 
the School’s Chief Executive Officer and Principal or other staff directly related to the School’s 
daily operation, under the following conditions: (a) that the school staff will operate with 
oversight from the Board; and (b) that the Board is ultimately responsible and accountable for 
the actions of any person to whom responsibility has been delegated, and for any obligations, 
programs and policies of the school.  The organizational structure of the school is provided and 
discussed in III.C. Management and Staffing.  
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Board responsibilities include oversight of the education of all students at the school, setting the 
budget, determining annual priorities, formulating major policy, overseeing QPCS’ compliance 
with relevant laws and regulations, and raising funds to support the growth of QPCS.  
Specifically, among the Board’s responsibilities are: 

 Ensuring that QPCS implements its program in a manner consistent with the mission, 
goals, terms and conditions of its charter, including all applicable state and federal laws 
and regulations. 

 Operating at all times in compliance with QPCS’ Code of Ethics and overseeing the 
implementation of all policies governing the operation of the school. 

 Overseeing implementation of the educational program to ensure the charter school is 
educationally sound, including approving and ensuring that QPCS is making progress 
toward fulfilling its goals and objectives set forth in the charter and Accountability Plan. 

 Hiring the CEO and Principal and evaluating his or her performance annually. 
 Overseeing the evaluation of the staff by the Principal or his or her designee. 
 Approving QPCS annual budget, reviewing regular financial updates, and ensuring that 

the school operates in a fiscally sound manner, including adequate internal financial 
controls. 

 Providing support to the school with additional fundraising and marketing. 
 Advocating on behalf of the school by establishing partnership with community-based 

organizations, institutions of higher learning, and corporate entities. 
 Hearing and making determinations regarding complaints submitted to the Board in a 

timely manner. 
(additional details specifying the roles and responsibilities of the Board are included in 
the By-laws.) 

 

The Board will use data to drive decision-making. Student assessment and achievement data will 
be collected, managed and stored in a secure system that provides online access to data and 
provides a comprehensive report. The Board will require QPCS management to prepare reports 
and/or make Board presentations on a regular basis regarding a variety of data, including 
ongoing assessment results, state test results, attendance/disciplinary information and relevant 
personnel-related data. 
 
The officer positions on the Board are Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer (see by- laws for 
full position description).  Much of the work of the Board will be conducted in Committees.  
Initially, the Board will have the following standing committees, each consisting of at least three 
members, except for the executive Committee, which shall have at least five members.  Per the 
by-laws, the board may create ad hoc committees as needed, i.e. Education and Facility.   
 

The standing committees are:  
 The Executive Committee, chaired by the Board Chair, will facilitate the effective 
decision-making by the board.  Comprised of a subset of board members-i.e. the Chair and 
officers-the Executive Committee is responsible for meeting as needed to make decisions as 
delegated by the board and serving as a communication link with other board members.  
  The Finance Committee, chaired by the Treasurer, coordinates the board’s financial 
oversight responsibilities.  The Finance committee is responsible for developing annual 
budgets in conjunction with the short-and long-term plans of QPCS. The budget will then be 
reviewed periodically by the Finance Committee to be updated with current information.  
After the budget is developed, it will be presented to the Board of Trustees for review and 
vote. Additional responsibilities include oversight of the school’s auditing, facilities and 
financial management initiatives.        

Parent and Staff Involvement in School Governance: A seat on the Board will be reserved for a 
parent once QPCS is in full operation. 
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Board Development: The board is cognizant of the need to conduct on-going recruitment new 
members. The Board will create a Board Development Committee that will have the 
responsibility of prospecting, contacting, recruiting, orienting, supporting, training, and Board 
evaluation.  The Board Development Committee will ensure that the Board is sensitive to 
building strong relationships within the community served by the school. 
 

C.   Management and Staffing 

       Organization Chart: 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Description of Organizational Structure: Qualifications and job descriptions for staff positions 

on the organizational chart are provided in Attachment 8 (a). QPCS understands that clarity in 

roles and protocol is important to the success of any organization.  Well defined roles help each 

staff member to carry out his/her responsibilities with a clear understanding and confidence. 

Leaders who use their positions to empower and support others are able to create the type of 

team that works effectively for the well-being of students. QPCS will depend on a strong 

leadership team to oversee the school.  
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Staff Plan: The following table shows the staffing plan over the first charter term: 

 

Number (FTE) in Position 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Grades Served K-1 K-2 K-3 K-4 K-5 

Enrollment 144 216 284 350 410 

Chief Executive Officer  1 1 1 1 1 

Principal 1 1 1 1 1 

Curriculum Director 1 1 1 1 1 

Chief Financial Officer 0 1 1 1 1 

Bookkeeper 1 1 1 1 1 

Office Manager 1 1 1 1 1 

Special Ed. Coordinator 0 1 1 1 1 

Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 

General Ed. Teachers  6 9 12 15 18 

Assistant Teachers 6 9 12 15 18 

ESL 1 1 1 1 1 

Reading Specialist .5 1 1 1 1 

Special Education Teacher 1 1 1 2 2 

Physical Education Teacher .5 1 1 1 1 

Music Teacher .5 1 1 1 1 

Art Teacher .5 0 0 .5 1 

Summer ESL/Reading 

Specialist/General Ed. 

3 3 4 4 4 

Nurse .5 1 1 1 1 

Social Worker .5 1 1 1 1 

Custodian 1 2 2 2.5 3 

Security Guard 1 1 1 1 1 

Hall Monitor 1 1 3 3 3 

Total 29 40 49 57 64 
      

Our staffing structure over the charter term is aligned with the educational and operational 
model. The chart above includes the administrative and instructional staff necessary to operate 
the academic program for general education students, special education students, Title I students, 
ELL students and other students at-risk, and takes into consideration the needs of our projected 
student enrollment and growth plan.  As described in II.G. Special Populations, the school has a 
comprehensive approach to addressing the needs of at-risk populations.  The budget is aligned 
with the needs of our at-risk populations.  The budget also takes into account the need for 
staffing during the 4 week summer academic intervention program for struggling students.  
 
Recruiting School Leaders: QPCS’ recruitment, screening and selection process provide for the 
successful appointment of highly qualified school leaders with the necessary professional and 
management experience.  Prospective candidates will be recruited through various methods 
including but not limited to networking with relevant educational organizations and nonprofits, 
ads in newspapers, at graduate programs, and the New York City Charter School Center.  The 
recruitment and screening process will be coordinated by the Board, comprised of members of 
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the Founding Board. Qualified candidates for the position will meet the criteria in the Job 
Description contained in Attachment 8a - Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
Recruiting and Retaining Effective Teachers: The school will establish a diverse applicant pool 
by utilizing various methods of recruitment, which may include advertisements in newspapers; 
job posting at graduate education programs; leveraging relationships with colleges, Board 
members and supporters; teacher recruitment fairs; and through our partner institutions and 
organizations.  QPCS will promote diversity in its applicant pool by advertising positions in 
targeted media (e.g. minority newspapers), networking with minority organizations and 
participating in minority recruitment events. The school will comply with all federal, state and 
local laws and requirements regarding the hiring of staff and will not discriminate in hiring, 
employment, contracting, or retention for reasons of race, sex, age, religion, disability or other 
reason prohibited by local, state or federal law.  QPCS will recruit teachers enthusiastic about 
working in an environment where innovation and student diversity in which data is central, 
instruction is differentiated and success is valued. QPCS will incorporate effective teacher 
retention strategies such as pay, an attractive and caring environment, and a personal library to 
name a few.  Our professional development model and performance plan presents a structure that 
allows all teachers to grow and be recognized for their efforts. Staff compensation will be based 
on performance. QPCS will utilize the Charlotte Danielson’s Framework for evaluating and 
supporting teachers regarding academic growth, student academic achievement, closing gaps and 
meeting other relevant standards. As the school grows over the course of the charter term, 
staffing needs will be appropriately addressed to ensure success.   
 
D.   Evaluation 
 

Programmatic Audit Overview 
The school will provide NYSED with an Annual Report each year at the appropriate time which 
will include the School Report Card.  The Annual Report will include a Progress Report which 
evaluates the school’s progress in meeting its approved Accountability Plan goals. II.A. 
Achievement Goals provides detailed information on the data and process we will use to measure 
QPCS progress towards student achievement goals. QPCS anticipates programmatic audits 
related to any federal entitlement grants and competitive public grants it receives.  
 
Progress Monitoring: An on-going monitoring process will occur throughout the schoolo year to 
ensure the school is on target to meet its Accountability Plan goals.  As described in II.A. 
Achievement Goals, monitoring progress relating to meeting the Accountability Goals will be 
addressed at various levels. The levels include: student level, the classroom level, the school 
level and the authorizer level.  The school will use data to inform instruction on a regular basis 
every 6-8 weeks.  A comprehensive plan developed via collaboration will identify students not 
meeting standards. Areas needing improvement will be revealed as the instructional staff 
analyzes progress achievement goals for all students, including special student populations.  As 
discussed in III.E. Professional Development, this process plays a critical role in informing the 
school’s PD program.  The school’s assessment protocol includes assessments to be utilized with 
Grades K-5 to monitor foundational knowledge in reading, writing and mathematics, thus 
indicating whether or not they will be on track to meet proficiency standards beginning in Grade 
3.  The school’s instructional leadership will use various methods to assess student needs and 
tailor specific PD to address any instructional and curricular needs. 
 
The following data will be collected on a regular basis: attendance, demographic data, student 
assessment data, and student enrollment data.  The school will use OnCourse a dynamic student 
information management system, to house student data and provide users with the capability to 
view; analyze and report in real time regarding the performance of (1) individual students, (2) 
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classrooms of students, and (3) all students in order to tailor instruction to individual, 
disaggregated or aggregated student needs.  The system allows staff to track growth and master 
of content standards and make individual, classroom, or school-wide modifications as needed.  
School administrators will use data to evaluate teacher effectiveness as well as identify parts of 
the curriculum that may need strengthening.  Data will be used to reallocate human and financial 
resources to identified areas, PD, and retention and compensation decisions. 
 
Operational and Fiscal Health: The Board is committed to ensuring that it holds itself and the 
leadership accountable for the operational and fiscal health and viability of the organization.  
This includes sound budgeting practices.  The accountant, CEO, principal and bookkeeper will 
prepare the annual operating and capital budgets as well as cash flow projections, after working 
together to identify and prioritize needs.  The group will take under consideration student 
achievement and fiscal and operational need when prioritizing for budget purposes.  The budget 
will be presented to the Board of Trustees for final approval by May.  
 
Teacher Evaluation: QPCS will use the framework of teacher evaluation promoted by the 
Danielson Group’s Framework for Teaching, as described in Charlotte Danielson’s book 
Enhancing Professional Practice: A Framework for Teaching.  QPCS will use the Framework for 
teacher evaluation at the school.  The framework is aligned with our philosophy and is an 
approved rubric for teacher evaluation aligned with NYS standards of teaching practices.  
Teachers will be formally evaluated at least once per year, and informally throughout the year.  
Evaluations will involve continual feedback among the teachers and principal.  The feedback 
will involve pre and post conferences, formal and informal observations, finally, the summative 
evaluation.  QPCS will create a Performance Plan through collaboration which will include a set 
of goals to promote professional development.  This plan will allow teachers to express their 
needs for professional development that is aligned with better student outcomes, school mission, 
content and pedagogy. 
 
The summative evaluation is an annual process that uses data from all of the components in the 
evaluation system including artifacts, evidence collected, student assessment data and 
observations as a culmination of the total evaluation process and a source of feedback on the 
teacher’s performance and student learning in meeting the standards.  The school leaders will 
engage in discussions that support the development of teaching practices and improved student 
outcome by focusing on topics such as: student performance data; effective teacher practices; 
staff training and use in the classroom; teacher preparation time; lesson plan development and 
identification of staff development needs. Teachers’ compensation, performance-based 
incentives and annual renewal of their position with QPCS will be tied to performance 
evaluations.  These evaluations will place emphasis on each teacher’s performance as it relates to 
the areas of teaching responsibility as well as his/her students’ achievement of academic goals 
and/or students’ progress towards the achievement of the academic goals. 
 
School Leaders and Other Administrator Evaluation: The Board will carry out an annual 
evaluation of the school’s leaders that uses key instructional benchmarks, progress toward 
accountability goals, operational benchmarks, staff and parent satisfaction surveys and other 
criteria that measure the overall health of the school.  During the school’s start-up period, the 
CEO and Principal will work with the Board, and if necessary, outside consultants to design 
evaluation processes and tools that utilize data-driven measures and clear rubrics to assess the 
performance of staff.  Aspects of the Danielson Group’s model and ISLLC standards will be 
used in the evaluation of staff in management positions. If the goals established for performance 
are not met, the Board will establish an action plan with the school’s leaders to include 
mentoring, and a timeline for improvement.   
 



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Page 48 
 

Board Evaluation: QPCS’ success will have a direct correlation to the capacity and 
effectiveness of its Board of Trustees.  Therefore, it is critical that evaluation of the Board both 
collectively and individually takes place on an annual basis.  The process will involve the board 
members completing self-evaluation as well an evaluation of the Board based on how they 
perceive the effectiveness of the Board. The information will serve to inform Board development 
and training and to ensure that the Board has the competencies and skills to be responsible 
stewards of the charter school. 
 
Family and Student Satisfaction: QPCS will formally assess parent and teacher satisfaction 
through the use of the New York City Department of Education’s Learning Environment Survey.  
Even though the survey is designed for students in middle school and up, QPCS will assess 
student satisfaction through conversation with parents during parent teacher conferences.  All 
parents will receive the survey during the fourth quarter of the school year.  The results of the 
survey will be tabulated and made public in the QPCS School Report Card.  Additionally, results 
of the survey will published in our Annual Report to the NYSED.  Finally, satisfaction data will 
be reviewed and made available to the public. The data will be used to inform any changes to the 
school’s operations. 
 
Evaluation of Partners Services: QPCS will ensure all goals are met and students are 
progressing appropriately.  To this end, every aspect of the program needs to be evaluated on an 
ongoing basis.  All partners providing services to the school will be evaluated by the Board on an 
annual basis with input from the school’s leaders.  If deficiencies are found in the services being 
rendered, meetings will be held to address the deficiencies and appropriate steps will be taken to 
ensure that QPCS can meet its achievement goals. 
 

 
E.  Professional Development 
The CEO and principal will be responsible for identifying the needs of teachers throughout the 
school year through teacher surveys, teacher observation and analysis of student assessment data.  
In addition, certain processes and strategies will be established in the school to evaluate PD 
needs.  QPCS’ model of daily opportunities for PD combined with teachers’ schedules that allow 
for both individual and collaborative planning time facilitates the ability of the instructional 
leadership to address needs in real-time. PD needs may be revealed through gaps in student 
learning, teacher pedagogical skills and content knowledge, classroom management etc.  As 
necessary, the CEO and principal may engage outside consultants to provide specific training to 
teachers. QPCS will engage its partner institutions to help facilitate PD.  PD at QPCS will be 
designed and delivered in a manner consistent with the NYS Professional Teaching Standards, 
ISLLC Standards, and the NYS Professional Development Standards to ensure consistent high 
quality PD leading to increased student achievement.  A 2000 study by the National Staff 
Development Council found that in schools that had made measurable gains in student 
achievement, “the very nature of staff development [had] shifted from isolated learning and the 
occasional workshop to focused, ongoing organizational learning built on collaborative reflection 
and joint action.”

34
 The study found that the schools’ PD programs were characterized by 

collaborative structures, diverse and extensive professional learning opportunities, and an 
emphasis on accountability and student results. 
 
The process of designing and coordinating the PD program will be led by the Principal and 
supported by the CEO.  The school leaders will work on a daily basis during designated planning 
periods coaching the school’s instructional staff and providing training and guidance in their 
work with all learners, including special populations of ELLs, Special Needs, at-risk students and 

                                                           
34

 http://www.wested.org/online_pubs/modelIPD/11_thekey.shtml 
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academically advanced students.  PD will begin prior to the start of the school year and continue 
throughout the year.  Pre-opening PD time will involve reviewing the charter agreement with 
emphasis on expectations for student achievement. The principal, CEO and others will present 
workshops to prepare teachers to work with all students, emphasizing at-risk, ELL and special 
education students.  Topics being covered in pre-opening PD activities will support all teachers. 
Topics included in pre-opening PD include: (1) differentiating instruction through PB/DI 
learning, GRR and RWW; (2) assessing student needs and elevating student learning, (3) STEM 
and the classroom (4) special education procedures and services and the IEP and its use in 
guiding student learning; (5) Sheltered English Immersion; (6) the role of the general education 
teacher, ESL teacher and special education teachers and special service providers; (7) parent 
engagement; (8) school climate and culture (9) adapting instruction and adaptive technology; 
(10) Curriculum and the Comprehensive Plan for Success (11) classroom management and (12) 
legal issues governing schools. 
 
Evaluation of Professional Development: The ultimate benefit of PD for teachers is the role it 
plays in the improvement of student learning.  At QPCS, evaluation of the PD program will 
focus on two important goals: to improve program quality and to determine its overall 
effectiveness.  Formative evaluation will be used to modify and/or improve the PD Program and 
will take place at various intervals during the year.  Feedback and comments will be gathered via 
surveys from the instructional staff to determine its effectiveness.  Our model of on-going and 
embedded PD allows the school to implement modifications in real time.  At the end of the year 
a summative evaluation will be done to determine the overall effectiveness of the PD program.  
The two different levels of data to conduct a summative evaluation are: teacher instructional 
practice and student outcomes.  Summative evaluation is used to assess the changes in teacher 
performance as a result of participating in the PD program. Through the use of questionnaires, 
observations, self-assessment instructions and analysis of teacher evaluation records, the 
instructional leader will analyze how the program has improved teacher and student practices.  
The process will examine how the PD received has impacted teachers; instruction and 
approaches to classroom performance.  Summative evaluation will also be used to evaluate the 
effectiveness of PD on students’ outcomes. The school leadership will analyze student 
assessment data, including standardized assessments, quarterly assessments and teacher-
generated summative and formative assessments.  Student assessment data will be disaggregated 
to pin point areas in need of improvement among specific groups. The school’s leaders will reach 
conclusions regarding the effectiveness of the PD program data and make recommendations in 
order to improve teacher practice and student outcomes. These recommendations will be 
presented to the Board in the form of a report. 
 

 
F.    Facilities 
The desired location for QPCS is in the Queens area of CSD 29.  QPCS plans to locate in a non-
DOE facility.  QPCS is already engaged in the process of identifying sites that can serve the 
school at capacity with the Catholic Diocese and others.  The founding team has established a 
committee which includes Horace Aiken, Jeremiah Grant, Gregory Pietrzak and Lycia Grant to 
research and report on findings to determine the optimal facility for the school when approved. 
We are investigating funding opportunities to aid in obtaining adequate space.  Upon receiving 
its charter, the facility committee will work to negotiate a long-term lease with a landlord or 
developer that will include all renovations needed in order for the facility to be suitable to house 
QPCS and be in compliance with all legal requirements for a charter school facility.  Leed Green 
Associates will work with us to provide pro bono work in the preparation of a facility. QPCS will 
seek space adequate for 432 students in regards to classrooms; office space; resource rooms; 
accommodation for special needs students; kitchen and cafeteria accommodations; conference 
room; gym/auditorium; music room; library; computer room; janitorial and other storage space; 
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green space creation; etc. We are considering 80 sq. feet per student and a minimum of 34,560 
sq. ft of total space. We believe that there will be sufficient time between approval and opening 
of the school to secure suitable space. QPCS will negotiate leasing terms that are in the best 
interest of the school; complies with all legal requirements for a charter school and addresses the 
budgetary needs of a new or start-up school.  The school does not have a residential program so 
residential facilities are not needed. 
 

G.   Insurance 
QPCS will carry insurance that includes adequate insurance coverage for liability, property loss 
and personal injury to students.  The school has consulted with the insurance broker of Church 
Mutual Insurance Company which has provided QPCS with a quote for insurance that includes 
Property (300K), Employee Dishonesty (i.e. Surety Bond) (250K), Business Interruption (10K), 
Inland Marine (400K ), Crime ($50K) Blanket Bond, Sexual Misconduct or Molestation Liability 
(300K aggregate) General Liability (2 mil. per occurrence, 3 mil aggregate), Director and 
Officers Liability (1 mil ), Umbrella Liability (5 mil), Workers Compensation and Employers’ 
Liability (1.5 mil), Student Accident (500K), and Catastrophic Student Accident (1 mil).   
 
H.  Health, Food and Transportation Services 
Health Services: QPCS will comply with all health services requirements applicable to other 
public schools including all immunization requirements (in accordance with state requirements) 
and diagnostic testing requirements.  The school will provide on-site health care services similar 
to other public schools.  QPCS will hire a nurse to supervise the disbursement of medication, 
treat students who are ill or injured, collect and securely store student health records and train 
faculty and staff in first aid and mandated automated external defibrillators (AED) training.  The 
nurse will be responsible for all record keeping and correspondence related to these 
responsibilities.  The Office Manager will oversee the Nurse. 
 
Food Services: QPCS will participate in the Federal school breakfast and lunch program and will 
receive its meals for students through the Office of School Food (OSF) of the NYCDOE.  All 
students attending QPCS will be eligible for meals provided at the facility.  Breakfast, lunch and 
an afternoon snack will be served each day school is in session.  Meals will be in compliance 
with NYCDOD, state and federal regulations.  Although QPCS plans to utilize the food service 
provided by OSF, this does not preclude QPCS from exploring outside food vendors to provide 
food service to the school nor does it preclude the school from operating its own kitchen and 
providing its own meals.  QPCS may investigate other vendors who can provide healthy and 
appetizing menus for breakfast, lunch and snacks to the school’s students.  The factors that will 
guide QPCS’ decision to contract with an outside vendor and/or operate its own kitchen to 
provide meals will include cost, adherence to federal guidelines for free lunch, health and safety 
of children and workers, and menu choices. 
 
Transportation: The NYCDOE is responsible for providing transportation services to QPCS’ 
students.  QPCS’ students will receive the same transportation service as other New York City 
public school students.  Eligibility for busing and half-fare or full-fare Metrocards if needed is 
determined and provided by the Office of Pupil Transportation (OPT).  The NYCDOE 
determines the eligibility for transportation based on age and distance from the school.  QPCS 
will not guarantee parents a child will have yellow school bus service or half-fare or full-fare 
Metrocards until such service eligibility has been confirmed by OPT. On days when the regular 
NYCDOE public schools are not in session, the school will contract directly with a bus service 
provider and will pay for the buses out of the school budget.  Special education students often 
have different eligibility for transportation. Eligibility is dictated by the student’s IEP. 
Transportation for special education students will be provided in accordance with all applicable 
State and Federal laws.  The school’s students will receive transportation services for which they 
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are eligible under Education Law 2853(4) and 3635.  If a student is not eligible for transportation 
services, the child’s parents will be the responsible for transportation.  
 
 

I.   Family and Community Involvement 
QPCS has been engaged in family and community outreach since the Founding group began 
preparation for the charter school application. Through meetings at public forums, houses of 
worship, CBOs, preschool programs and other venues, the applicant team presented their plan to 
community stakeholders, including families.  Parents of school-age children were sought for 
their input and comments on the plans and school design.  Surveys were conducted in the 
community seeking input about the plans for the school. The comments of community 
stakeholders and parents informed the design of the school. QPCS will continue to engage 
parents and the community stakeholders in the evolution of the school if a charter is granted.  
QPCS parent involvement is based on the idea that parents are partners in their child’s academic 
success.  As such, parents will be welcomed and will have a voice in the school.  There would be 
a parent representative on the Board.  There will be activities designed for parent involvement 
such as parents get together and other activities as would be decided upon by parents to meet 
their needs.  To ensure all parents are engaged, particularly non-English speaking parents, all 
written materials for parents and families will be translated into Spanish and other languages 
required by our parent community.  Translators will be available when necessary to help ensure 
parents are able to participate during individual meetings as well as larger meetings of the parent 
body. 
 
Parents: QPCS believes that parents play a critical role in ensuring that their children are ready 
and able to learn and participate in school.  QPCS’ social worker will be knowledgeable about 
the community resources available to help parents.  Parents will be encouraged to participate in 
their children’s learning by helping with homework, providing study time and space, monitoring 
the distractions during study time and taking advantage of available resources aimed at 
supporting families.  
 
Communicating: There will be ongoing communication between staff and parents.  Parent will 
receive notices, phone calls, and other communications indicating upcoming school events, 
homework assignment and any planned tests or quizzes on a regular basis.  The school will 
maintain a website that provides information on important school matters that include the school 
calendar, testing dates, events, parent teacher conferences, etc. QPCS’ use of OnCourse 
described previously in this application will allow parents to follow the progress of their child in 
real time through the use of the web-portals, password controlled websites for each classroom 
where teachers can share information about the classroom activities through electronic means.  
For families without access to computers at home, computers will be made available at the 
school for parents who doe not have computer access at home. There will be four report cards 
annually, and parent/teacher conferences four times per year when report cards are released, plus 
“open-house” days for parents.  Parents will be invited to school events that capture students’ 
talents and engage parents as active participants in their child’s learning.  Parents will be 
encouraged to reach out to their children’s teachers as necessary. Voice mailboxes and email 
addresses will be made available to families. 
 
 Volunteering: QPCS believes that a successful school values and utilizes volunteerism to 
promote shared vision and cultivate a deep sense of community.  Parents working together for a 
common goal that benefits all children helps develop a culture of trust and open communication 
and provides opportunities to help children learn and grow. QPCS will establish various ways in 
which parents can volunteer by helping teachers, administrators, and student, such as inviting 
parents to read to students, to join the PTA or assist in planning school events.    
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Learning at Home; QPCS committed to expanding learning at home by providing parents with 
support that will enable to be engaged in their children’s learning. In order to assist parents in 
supporting their children’s learning at home QPCS will provide comprehensive information in its 
Parent Handbook that they can use to be engaged in their children's academic success. 
Information will be provided regarding school’s standards; curriculum; discipline policy; 
homework policy; and other topics important to our academic and school culture.  The school 
will host orientation sessions for parents to review the material as well as workshops that focus 
on how parents can communicate effectively with their children at home. 
 
Decision Making: As described previously in III.G., QPCS plans to have an active role for 
parents in the governance and administration of the school. The school will facilitate the 
development of a PTA to be governed by the parents of the children at the school.  Each October, 
parents will elect a PTA president by a simple majority vote.  The PTA will be free to organize 
its own governance and committee structure.  The PTA will be involved in a variety of activities 
in the school, including fundraising events, field trips, and school promotion in the community. 
At Board meetings, there will be a regular item on the agenda for the PTA President and/or 
parent representative to report on their work or any school related issues they would like to 
address. 
 
Collaborating with Community; QPCS is committed to community involvement by 
acknowledge the voice of the community in decision making and leveraging resources of the 
community to help in the development of the school. This collaboration will support student 
learning, as well as, issues relevant to family.  As discussed earlier, the social worker will 
compile and share information with students and families on community health, social support 
and other programs and services, as well as community activities available to them that link to 
skill development and support.  The community outreach discussed in I.B. Public Outreach and 
in Attachment 2 Sample of Evidence of Community Outreach highlights the relationship the 
school is building with community organizations. These relationships will continue to be 
cultivated through on-going meetings and discussions.   

 

J.   Financial Management 
The CFO will have oversight responsibilities for the financial management of the school and will 
be responsible for the safe keeping of the school’s financial records with oversight from the 
Board Treasurer.  The CFO will be supported in implementing all financial matters by the 
bookkeeper and by the contracted accounting professional. The CFO will prepare the School’s 
financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) each 
fiscal year and would include a statement of financial position, a statement of activities, a 
statement of cash flow, a schedule of functional expenses, and notes to the financial statements. 
 
Independent Audit: The Board will be responsible for hiring an independent auditor to perform 
an annual audit of the school’s finances. The audit will be performed by the independent auditor 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS).  Upon completion of 
the audit, the Board will meet with the independent auditor to discuss the report and any 
findings.  The CFO will developed corrective action plan as a result of the audit findings, the 
plan should be discussed and approved by the Board before being implemented. A copy of the 
audit report and findings as well as the corrective action plan will be provided to the NYSED by 
the deadline established. 
 
Accounting Policies and Procedures Define the Fiscal Controls of the School; QPCS will 
develop and maintain fiscal policies and procedures that ensure sound internal controls, fiscal 
responsibility and accountability in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles; 
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and adherence to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) rules and regulations.  The 
following explains the Internal Control System that QPCS will implement. 
  
 Internal Control System: The control structure is composed of the following two basic 
elements: (1) the environment and (2) the procedures. 
 

1. The Environment: Environment control will be reflected in day-to-day activities.  

Factors impacting the environmental controls include management and Board 

philosophy, organizational structure, assignment of authority and responsibility, methods 

of management control and personnel policies and practices.  The Board will ensure that 

the organization’s structure allows for sufficient checks and balances. 

 
2. The Procedures: Procedures will be implemented to strengthen QPCS’ internal control 

structure and thus safeguard the school’s assets.  They are divided into the following: 
 

Segregation of Duties: No one person would control all key aspects of a transaction or event, 
and the functions performed by one person may be checked by the functions performed by the 
other.  In general, the transaction approval function, the accounting/reconciliation function and 
the asset custody function would be separated among employees (CFO, bookkeeper) and any 
contracted financial consultant (who is overseen by the CFO) whenever possible.  When these 
functions are not or cannot be separated, then a detail supervisory review or related activities 
should be undertaken as a compensatory control. 
Restricted Access: Physical access to make changes in accounting records will be restricted to 
authorized personnel.  Systems access to make changes in accounting records will be restricted 
to authorized personnel (Board Treasure and CFO) with changes and explanation for changes in 
document as a safeguard. 
Document Control: To ensure that all documents are captured by the accounting system, all 
documents will be pre-numbered and the sequence for documents must be accounted for. 
Processing Control: Various processing controls will be designed to catch errors before they are 
posted to the general ledger.  Common processing controls that QPCS expects to implement 
include: source document matching; clerical accuracy of documents; and general ledger account 
code checking. 
Reconciliation Controls: Various reconciliation controls will be designed to catch errors after 
transactions have been posted to the general ledger.  All bank statements will be reviewed by the 
Treasurer. 
Fraud Prevention: The school will seek to include measures in its banking relationship to deter 
check fraud such as Positive Pay.  All purchase orders and checks over an established amount 
will require approval by the Board. 
Cash Handling Controls: All cash receipts will be handled exclusively by the employee not 
responsible for recording transaction in the general.  On a periodic basis, the CFO will perform 
unannounced review of the cash.  Such review may involves the reconciling of cash on hand and 
the expected balance calculated using the opening cash balance and accounting for the receipts 
and disbursements of cash.  Such review is performed at least on a bi-monthly basis. 
 
The Board Treasurer and the CFO will develop fiscal policies and procedures with support from 
the independent accountant.  QPCS will adopt those fiscal policies and procedures and 
implement the above mentioned control structures. The independent auditor will be engaged to 
form an opinion about the proposed internal controls, policies and procedures.  Adjustments will 
be made to the policies and procedures based on any weakness identified by the auditor.  Fiscal 
policies and procedures will be ratified by the school’s board and adopted by the school no later 
than January of that year. 
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Student Records: The Office Manager will be responsible for tracking enrollment and 
attendance, maintaining school lunch program records, including student eligibility and other 
data to ensure accurate billing and reimbursements.  The Office Manager will ensure all data 
relevant to compliance with laws contract and grant agreement is collected and maintained to 
ensure accuracy in program reporting and reimbursement.  The school will have an appropriate 
student information system in place that will be utilized to store, analyze and produce needed 
reports on all relevant student data.  The Office Manager will be responsible for the protection of 
student records under the supervision of the CEO.  As it relates to the special education program 
and IEPs, until the SEC is hired the Principal or his/her designee will have the responsibility for 
maintaining and securing all records.  He/she will be responsible for submitting all required 
reporting on SWD and service provided to the SWD in accordance with their IEPs to the 
appropriate agencies including necessary reporting for special education reimbursement.  QPCS 
is cognizant of its responsibility to comply with Family Education Rights & Privacy Act 
(FERPA) and will follow all appropriate procedures to comply with the New York State 
Freedom of Information Law (Article 6 of the New York Public Officers Law). 
 

K. Budget and Cash Flow 
     QPCS’ start-up budget plan, first-year budget and the five-year budget plan use conservative 
assumptions.  QPCS will use the accrual basis of accounting in all its financial statements, but 
the budget prepared in Attachment 9 has been prepared on a cash basis, thus major assets have 
not been capitalized and depreciation expenses are not charged in the budgets.  
 
The budgets reflect the following conservative revenue assumptions: 

 $13,527 per pupil revenue from the District over the life of the charter. 
 We expect on average 11percent special education students, based on charter schools 

calculated norms, with a 30% reimbursement rate.  This is because for revenue budgeting 
purposes we assume that 10% of special education students will receive services for 
greater than 60% of the day and only a small percentage (20%) of the special education 
students will receive services between 20% and 60% of the day.  Thus, the school is only 
assuming it will receive special education reimbursement for 30% of its special needs 
students-a conservative assumption-with 70% of its students receiving services less than 
20% of the day for which the school receives no special education reimbursement.  The 
budget also includes PD and staff training related to serving special needs students and 
curriculum and instructional materials needed by students with special needs.  The school 
does assume that it will receive the Federal IDEA funding it is entitled to for each Special 
Needs student for the year a special education coordinator is scheduled to be hired. 

 QPCS assumes it will receive funding for NYSTL, NYSSL and NYSLIBL. 
 While QPCS will apply for all eligible Title I funding, for budgeting purposes QPCS is 

only assuming receipt of Title I. 
 While QPCS will apply for all competitive public grants available for start-up and 

implementation including CSP and State Stimulus Funds (SSF), we only assume CSP in 
the total amount of $500,000 over the start-up and first two years of operation. 
 

The budget reflects the following conservative expense assumptions: 
 The school has projected a realistic staffing structure over the five years, incorporating all 

administrative and instructional staff contemplated in its operational and academic 
program for general education students, special education students, Title I students, ELL 
students and other students at risk (see Staffing Table in III.C. Management and 
Staffing).  In addition, the five –year budgets contemplates the need for staffing during 
the 4 week summer academic program.  Furthermore, specialty teachers including art and 
physical education teachers are assumed within the five-year budget, as is administrative, 
office, business, and support staff.  



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Page 55 
 

 The school has received an estimate for the type of property being sought, employee and 
other insurance coverage which forms the basis for our insurance assumptions.  

 The budget rent line item reflects the anticipated lease amount expected based on current 
going rates for properties similar to what we desire. 

 In each of the five operational years beyond the start-up period, the school’s budgets 
reflect very conservative assumptions.  All revenue-including the largest revenue source 
State and Local per pupil aid remains flat while most expenses will probably see an 
increase of at least 3%. 

     

We have incorporated as many possible costs anticipated by our educational, fiscal and 

operational program.  The one-year budget plan reflects a breakdown of revenues and expenses 

between Program Services and Support Services, as well as, Regular Education, Special 

Education, Other, Management and General, and Fundraising.  All revenues and expenses have 

been allocated to each of the main categories and subcategories using general assumptions based 

on the expected student demographic and the expected percentage of time administrators, 

instructional and non-instructional staff would devote to these areas. Once the school is 

established and accounting systems are developed, there will be formal systems and procedures 

to track the allocation of expenditures into the required categories and subcategories.   

 

L. Pre-Opening Plan 
 

Activity Stat Date End Date Responsibility Notes 
File for Federal 501 (c ) (3 ) status 

for school and State Tax Exempt 

Status 

Upon 

Approval  

See Notes Board, Legal 

Council 

The school is aware 

that the IRS may take 

several months to 

review the application 

before awarding 501(c) 

(3 ). 

Recruit new board members with 

specific experience valuable to 

school start up and implementation 

Ongoing Ongoing  Board  This process ensures a 

pipeline of qualified 

future board members. 

Elect board officers if needed, 

ratify by-laws, establish 

committees and membership 

At first 

board 

meeting 

At first 

board 

meeting 

Board First board meeting 

after approval of 

charter within one 

month of authorization 

Hold board training sessions Ongoing Ongoing Board    

Research and apply for available 

competitive public funding 

opportunity and private grant 

opportunities 

Ongoing Ongoing Board, Grant 

Writer, CEO & 

Principal 

The start-up activities 

will require financial 

resources as reflected 

in the start-up budgets.  

Develop and finalize employee 

benefits package 

Upon 

Approval  

Dec. 2014 Board   
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Activity Stat Date End Date Responsibility Notes 
Recruit and hire principal Upon 

Approval  

Dec. 2014 Board Principal should be on 

staff by 1/1/2015 

Contract with account Nov. 2014 Dec. 2014 Board & CEO This will occur in time 

for the school to begin 

formal start-up 1/2015 

Develop and adopt internal 

financial controls 

Upon 

Approval  

Dec. 2014 Treasurer, 

contracted 

accountant, CEO, 

Principal 

  

Establish all relevant financial 

systems, payroll, billing, other 

disbursements as per internal 

controls policy 

Nov. 2014 Dec. 2014 Treasurer, 

contracted 

accountant, CEO, 

Principal 

  

Establish checking account with 

financial institution 

Upon 

Approval  

  Treasurer   

Recruit and hire Office Manager Jan. 2015 Feb. 2015 CEO, Principal This should be don as 

soon as possible to 

support start-up 

activities 

Recruit and hire Curriculum 

Director 

Jan. 2015 Mar. 2015 CEO, Principal This position should be 

filled ideally by 

3/1/2015 

Recruit and hire other 

administrative and instructional 

staff required for first year of 

operation. Complete necessary 

background checks and finger 

prints.  

Jan. 2015 Jun-15 CEO, Principal, 

HR 

The goal is to have 

signed hiring letters 

with all administrative, 

support and 

instructional staff by 

7/1/2015.   

Select and contract with nursing 

service 

Jul-15 Aug. 2015 CEO & Principal 

  

Apply for Consolidated Title 

Funds 

Jul-15 Aug. 2015 CEO & Principal 

  

Develop evaluation tools for 

school leaders, other 

administrative and instructional 

staff. 

Apr-15 Aug. 2015 Board, CEO, 

Principal 

  

Conduct staff orientation activities 

and pre-opening staff development 

Aug-15 Aug-15 CEO & Principal   

Conduct Student/Family Outreach 

Marketing 

Upon 

Approval  

Mar.2015 Board, CEO, 

Principal, Office 

Manager 
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Activity Stat Date End Date Responsibility Notes 
Conduct Student Lottery, generate 

acceptance list and waitlist  

Apr-15 Apr-15 Board, CEO, 

Principal, Office 

Manager 

  

Send out acceptance packages to 

students/families, obtain all student 

information, and create school 

calendar and other necessary 

paperwork. 

Apr-15 Ongoing CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 

This will be ongoing 

starting with 

completion of the 

lottery and continuing 

throughout the school 

year as families may 

decide the acceptance 

or withdraw their child 

form that school. 

Secure school facility Ongoing Jan-15   Securing a lease by this 

time will allow enough 

time to prepare initial 

facility for opening. 

Arrange accounts for phone, 

internet connectivity, and utilities 

as necessary. 

Jun-15 Jul-15 CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 

  

Purchase and accept delivery of 

necessary furniture, fixtures, 

equipment, and technology 

necessary for school operations. 

Jun-15 Jul-15 CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 

  

Further develop and refine and 

ultimately formally adopt, by 

board actions, the school's policies 

including but not limited to 

Discipline, Personnel, Grievance, 

Medications Administration Plan, 

Health Services Plan, Tech Plan, 

Open Meetings Law, Code of 

Ethics and distribute to appropriate 

parties. 

Upon 

Approval  

Aug. 2015 Board, CEO, 

Principal, Office 

Manager, legal 

counsel 

These should all be 

vetted by legal counsel 

and other professional 

consultants as 

appropriate.  Certain 

policies should be 

approved by certain 

times, i.e. Personnel 

Policies should be 

ratified by 1/1/2015 as 

employees are expected 

to join the staff by 

1/1/2015 

Communicate with NYCDOE 

regarding transportation and food 

services. 

Jun-15 Aug. 2015 CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 
  

Arrange for required CPR training 

of staff and obtain defibrillators 

Jul-15 Aug.2015 CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 
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Activity Stat Date End Date Responsibility Notes 
Secure necessary insurance Jan. 2015 Jan.2015 Board   

Purchase and install student 

information system and conduct 

training 

Jan. 2015 Jun-15 Board, CEO, 

Principal, 

Curriculum 

Director 

 

Develop and approve final first 

year budget based on known 

revenue streams and expenses. Apr-15 

Jun-15 Board, CEO, 

contracted 

accountant, 

Bookkeeper   

Contract with security 

Jun-15 Jul-15 Board, CEO, 

Principal   
Planning for first year academic 

program, development of 

assessment protocol, curriculum 

and instructional resources. 

Mar-15 Jul-15 CEO, Principal, 

Curriculum 

Director 
  

Develop full curriculum for school Mar-15 Jul-15 Board, CEO, 

Principal, 

Curriculum 

Director   

Select, order and accept delivery of 

all curriculum, instructional and 

assessment material. 

Jun-15 Jul-15 Board, CEO, 

Principal, 

Curriculum 

Director   

Develop agenda, engage 

appropriate consultants for pre-

opening PD. Develop PD Plan for 

Year 1 

Apr-15 Aug. 2015 CEO, Principal, 

Curriculum 

Director, 

teachers, Office 

Manager 
  

Develop Special Education 

policies and procedures, including 

record keeping process, pre-

referral and referral process 

Jun-15 Jul-15 Curriculum 

Director, special 

education teacher 

   

Create class lists, schedules and 

disseminate information to 

teachers and students/families 

July 2015  Aug. 2015 CEO, Principal, 

Office Manager 

  
M. Dissolution Plan 
In the event of closure or dissolution of QPCS, the Board will delegate to the CEO and principal 
the responsibility to manage the dissolution process in accordance with Education Law 
2851(2)(t).  This process will include notification to parents of children enrolled in QPCS.  A 
list of QPCS’ students will be sent to the local district where QPCS is located.  QPCS will 
transfer students’ records to the student’s school of residence, and the parents of the enrolled 
students will be notified of the transfer of records.  The budget will maintain an escrow fund of 
$75,000 to be used for legal and audit expenses in the event of its dissolution.   
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The dissolution process will begin with a meeting of the leadership team of QPCS that will 
include at least the Board Chair, the Board Treasurer, CEO, principal and legal counsel.  The 
purpose of this meeting will be to form a consensus on a plan and timeline that will be used to 
guide the dissolution process.  Upon approval of the plan and timeline, the school leaders and 
the assigned Board members would meet with representatives from the NYSED Office of 
Charter Schools or other appropriate staff to review and discuss the dissolution plan and 
timeline.  The outcome of this meeting will be a final dissolution plan and timeline that will be 
used to manage the dissolution process of QPCS. 
 
Days 1-5: (1) QPCS will deliver a current student list to the NYCDOE; (2) The school leaders 
will conduct a meeting with NYCDOE to discuss openings and availability for students being 
displaced by the closure or dissolution; (3) A meeting involving all school financial officers, the 
Board, accountant and auditors to begin the process of identifying assets required for transfer; 
(4) The Principal will meet with the students and parents to discuss the school’s closing and the 
ensuing placement process; (5) QPCS will schedule an information sessions for families and 
students about the possible schools available and identify the assistance that will be provided 
during the transfer process; (6) QPCS’ will schedule a placement meeting with families of 
enrolled students to discuss their placement.     
Days 5-15: (1) QPCS staff will prepare a written report for the Principal confirming the 
scheduling of placement meetings for each student/parent; (2) QPCS will commence student 
placement meetings; (3) Written notices will be provided to the NYCDOE Departments such as 
transportation, food services and school safety of the closure to ensure adequate time for 
modification to existing practices and procedures; (4) QPCS staff will provide written notices to 
school principals likely to receive transfers from QPCS of the closure and provide contact 
information for school personnel handling transfers. 
Days 15-30:  (1) QPCS staff will continue with student placement meetings; (2) a list of 
students and their known preference for relocation will be prepared by the staff and provided to 
the Principal; (3) QPCS will transfer students’ records to the NYCDOE upon completion of the 
placement meetings; (4) Parents of enrolled students will be informed of the transfer of their 
students’ records to the NYCDOE and provided with a copy of those records; and (5) QPCS 
will conduct a final meeting with the NYCDOE to ensure that each student has been properly 
enrolled in a local public school or has confirmed their enrollment in a non-public school. 
Transfer of Assets: A contracted accountant, with support from the school leadership team, 
will be responsible for developing a plan that will oversee the transfer of assets.  The contracted 
accountant will maintain an up-to-date inventory list of the assets of the school.  The 
accountant, with the assistance of the Board financial designee (s) will attend to the payment of 
all QPCS’ outstanding debts.  Once all debts are satisfied, a distribution of assets process will be 
initiated that complies with a prescribed plan that has been developed by the contracted 
accountant with the cooperation of the NYSED and NYCDOE Offices of Charter Schools. This 
plan will eventually detail what assets will be dispersed to whom, when, how and by whom.  
This plan will be presented to the Board for review and approval prior to its implementation.  
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Attachment 1:                       Admission Policies and Procedures 

Introduction 

QPCS’ admission policy does not discriminate against any student on the basis of ethnicity, 

national origin, gender, disability, race, creed, religion, ancestry or any other ground that would 

be unlawful if done by a school.  Any child who is qualified under New York State law for 

admission to a public school is qualified for admission to QPCS.  The school will ensure 

compliance with all applicable anti-discrimination laws governing public schools, including Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act and 2854(2) of the New York Education Law, governing admission to 

a charter school. 

 For admission to QPCs during the school’s initial year, a child/student must be eligible to enter 

Kindergarten or 1
st
 grade in September 2015.  Seventy-two (72) Kindergarten and 72 1st grade 

students will be accepted in the inaugural lottery.  Every year thereafter, QPCS admissions will 

be open to both entering kindergarten students as well as students in every grade above 

Kindergarten that the school is currently serving through Grade 2, in the event that seats are 

available in those grades.  Admission to QPCS will be limited each year to pupils within the 

grade levels to be served by the school.  In order to be eligible to apply for Kindergarten, 

students must turn 5 by December 31
st
 of the year in which they will enter Kindergarten.  The 

law allows preference for siblings of students and students residing in CSD 29 in Queens. 

In its admission policies and procedures, QPCS will not engage in any of the following: 

1. Requiring parents to attend meetings or information workshops as a condition of 

enrollment 

2. Having an unduly narrow enrollment period (e.g. fewer than 30 days) 

3. Giving enrollment preference to children of members of the QPCS board or founding 

group 

4. Requiring parents to sign agreements or contract imposing certain responsibilities or 

commitment to QPCS, regardless of their virtue, as a condition of enrolling their children 

(e.g. volunteering) 
5. Giving preference to students interested or talented in a particular QPCS program (e.g. 

science) 
 
Enrollment period, Admission Lottery, Registration and Withdrawal 
 

Formal recruitment of incoming students will begin after the charter school is authorized.  It is 
important to note that all aspects of this process will be carried out in English and Spanish (and 
any other dominant language in the community).  Beginning on or before January 1 of each year, 
the charter school will advertise open registration and families, if they choose, will have 
opportunities to meet with staff and learn additional details about the school.  Interested families 
may submit applications beginning on or before January 15 through April 1 or thereafter (the 
date will be set and publicized each year).  If as of the application deadline, the number of 
applicants to the charter school exceeds capacity, a random selection process (lottery) will be 
used to admit students.  This lottery, if necessary, will be held annually on or about April 15.  
Names will be drawn from the lottery drum by an individual or organization unaffiliated with 
QPCS.  Students who do not secure a seat through the random lottery will be placed on a waiting 
list in the order that their names were drawn.  QPCS will include a description of the public 
lottery in its application material distributed to families during the outreach phase of the process.  
if a lottery is required, all families who applied to the school will be informed of the details of 
the lottery, including the date, time and location that is will be held. 
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Admission preference shall be granted to applicants in the following manner: 

 First preference (after the first year) will be given to returning students, who will 
automatically be assigned a space at the school and whose families will be formally 
contacted prior to the beginning of the school year to confirm automatic admission of 
their child. 

 Second preference will be given to siblings of students already enrolled in the charter 
school or siblings or a student whose name is drawn in the lottery whose names are also 
in the current year’s lottery. 

 Third preference will be given to residents of CSD 29Q. 
 
Lottery Process 
In the event that a lottery process is necessary, names will be drawn randomly by grade to fill 
available seats (72 seats in Kindergarten and 72 seats in Grade 1 for the inaugural lottery, and for 
expected vacancies in the upper grades during the next academic year).  After those names are 
drawn, names will continue to be drawn after all available spaces have been filled in order to 
form a waiting list at each grade level for the school.  This waiting list will be the only official, 
legal document identifying the names of grade-eligible students with applications to the charter 
school pending acceptance when vacancies arise, based upon the order of random selection from 
the lottery.  The previous year’s waiting list will expire annually at the lottery drawing. 
Whenever a vacancy occurs, either prior to the start of a particular school year or during the 
course of that school year, QPCS will contact the parents of the student next on the appropriate 
waiting list.  Reasonable and multiple attempts will be made to contact the family of the student 
on the top of the waiting list and get confirmation of whether the student is still interested in 
enrolling at QPCS before proceeding to the next name on the list.  If reasonable and multiple 
attempts to contact the student’s parents are unsuccessful, then the school may remove that 
student from the waiting list.  Documentation of the attempts made to contact the parents of any 
student removed for the waiting list will be maintained by the school.  Waiting lists will not be 
carried over from year to year.  Instead, the annual admission lotteries will be used to create 
newly randomized waiting lists.  The school will send a new enrollment application directly to 
the parents of each child on the prior year’s waiting list to fill out if they are still interested in 
enrollment. 
 
Procedures for Student Registration and Parental Intent to Enroll  
Once a lottery has been conducted, QPCS will notify parents and guardians of applicants by mail 
whether their child has been granted a seat at the school or if they are on the waiting list.  The 
mailing will include an admission acceptance form that each parent of a child who has been 
selected for admission will fill out to confirm his or her intent to enroll the child in QPCS.  The 
school will also contact the parents of students currently enrolled and require them to confirm 
their intent for the student to remain in the school the next year.  Reasonable and multiple 
attempts will be made to reach parents regarding their decision to re-enroll their children and 
parents will be given a reasonable amount of time to re-enroll their child before the school 
determines that they do not intent to enroll and makes that seat available to a new student for the 
next academic year. 
Prior to the commencement of each academic year, families of children who enroll at the school 

must complete the student registration process.  As part of this process, parents must provide 

verification of residency, adult photo identification, NYC notice of transfer for (if available), IEP 

record if applicable, home language survey, photo media release for, ethnic identification survey, 

additional medical restrictions form if applicable, parent/guardian consent to request for the 

release of student records and/or a copy of the student’s prior year academic record, birth 

certificate and immunization record, and student health insurance for indicating what coverage 
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the student has.  Parents will also complete student registration forms, lunch program 

applications, emergency contact information, and transportation forms.  QPCS staff will be 

available to assist parents in understanding the registration requirements, obtaining required 

information and completing the required forms.  In addition, forms and instructions will be 

published in languages other than English to facilitate successful registration by ELL parents and 

families. 

All families of students currently enrolled in QPCS will be sent a renewal form by February of 

each year in order to indicate whether or not they will re-enroll their child for the next academic 

year.  This process will inform the school as to any planned vacancies in Grades 1-2 that will 

need to be filled through the current year’s application and lottery process. 

 
Voluntary Withdrawal 
QPCS is a public school of choice, both for application and withdrawal.  At any time, a parent 
may wish to transfer their child to a different school.  A parent wishing to withdraw his/her child 
form the school will be asked to complete a request for the student withdrawal form.  QPCS 
personnel will offer to meet with the family and discuss their reasons for withdrawing from the 
school, as well as to seek solutions to any problems that arise from these discussions.  If the 
parents still wish to transfer their child to another school, QPCS staff will make every reasonable 
effort to help the student find a school that better serves the family’s needs.  QPCS will ensure 
the timely transfer of any necessary school records to the student’s new school.  Upon 
withdrawal of any student, QPCS will seek to fill that vacancy in a timely manner with the next 
student on the relevant grade’s waiting list. 

 



 
 

 

QUESTBRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

Proposed Free Charter School Coming to District 29Q!!! 

 

 Grades K-5 

 Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM) focused 
 
 

 
 

 
WHY STEM? 
STEM stands for science, technology, engineering, and mathematics. 
STEM focuses on these subjects to help our nation’s youth gain the skills 
required to succeed in today’s challenging world. This includes the ability to 
think critically, solve complex problems, and drive advancements in science 
and technology. 
 
 
 
 
 

YOUR CHILD, YOUR CHOICE! 
 

For Information or Comments  

 

Email 
questbridgeprepcs@gmail.com 

 

Facebook Page 

https://m.facebook.com/profile.php?id=236009736569821 
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Attachment 3 (a):            Sample Daily Schedule 

GRADE K Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:00-7:45 Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast 

7:45-8:00 Assembly Assembly Assembly Assembly Assembly 

8:00-9:30 
Readers/Writers 

Workshop 
Readers/Writers 

Workshop 
Readers/Writers 

Workshop 
Readers/Writers 

Workshop 
Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

9:30-11:00 Math Math Math Math Math 

11:00-
12:00 Science Science Science Engineering Science 

12:00-
12:45 Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess 

12:45-2:15 
Academic 

Service Learning Music/Art Physical Ed. Spanish Physical Ed. 

2:15-3:45 
Computer 

Science Social Studies 
Computer 

Science Social Studies 
Computer 

Science 

3:45-4:00 Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal 

      GRADE 5 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:00-7:45 Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast 

7:45-8:00 Assembly Assembly Assembly Assembly Assembly 

8:00-9:30 
Readers/Writers  

Workshop 
Readers/Writers  

Workshop 
Readers/Writers  

Workshop 
Readers/Writers  

Workshop 
Readers/Writers  

Workshop 

9:30-11:00 Math Math Math Math Math 

11:0012:00 
Computer 

Science 
Computer 

Science Music 
Computer 

Science 
Academic 

Service Learning 

12:0012:45 Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess Lunch/Recess 

12:45-2:15 Science Science Engineering Science Science 

2:15-3:45 Social Studies Visual Art Physical Ed. Social Studies Physical Ed. 

3:45-4:00 Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal 

Social Studies and Computer Science will also be woven throughout the other subjects as well. 

Teachers will be involved in planning and collaboration from 4:00-4:45pm. 
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Time Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:45-

8:00 

Planning Planning Planning Planning Planning 

8:00-

9:30 

Readers/Write

rs Workshop 

Readers/Writers  

Workshop 

Readers/Writers  

Workshop 

Readers/Writers  

Workshop 

Readers/Writers  

Workshop 

9:30-

11:00 

Math Math Math Math Math 

12:00-

12:45 

Personal 

Lunch 

Personal Lunch Personal Lunch Personal Lunch Personal Lunch 

12:45-

2:15 

Academic 

Service 

Learning 

Music/Art Planning  

(gym)  

Spanish Planning  

(gym) 

2:15-

3:45 

Computer 

Science 

Social Studies Computer 

Science 

Social Studies Computer 

Science 

3:45-

4:00 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

4:00-

4:45 

Planning  Planning  Planning Planning Planning 

GRADE K TEACHER SAMPLE SCHEDULE 

7:45 AM-4:45 PM School Day 
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Time Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

      

7:45-

8:00 

Planning Planning Planning Planning Planning 

8:00-

9:30 

Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

Readers/Writers 

Workshop 

9:30-

11:00 

Math Math Math Math Math 

11:00-

12:00 

Computer 

Science 

Computer 

Science 

Music Computer 

Science 

Academic 

Service 

Learning 

12:00-

12:45 

Personal Lunch Personal Lunch Personal Lunch Personal Lunch Personal Lunch 

12:45-

2:15 

Science Science Engineering Science Science 

2:15-

3:45 

Social Studies Visual Art Planning  

(gym)  

Social Studies Planning 

 (gym) 

3:45-

4:00 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

Student 

Dismissal 

4:00-

4:45 

Planning Planning Planning Planning Planning 

 

 

GRADE 5 TEACHER SAMPLE SCHEDULE 

7:45 AM-4:45 PM School Day 
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Attachment 3 (b):           First Year Calendar 

Month Holidays Number of Days School is 

in Session 

August 2015  6 

September 2015 
September 7: Labor Day 

September 14: Rosh Hashanah 
20 

October 2015 October 12: Columbus Day 21 

November 2015 
November 3: Election Day 

November 26-27: Thanksgiving 
18 

December 2015 December 24-31: Winter Break 17 

January 2016 
January 1: New Year’s Day 

January 18: Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
19 

February 2016 February 15-19: Mid-Winter Break 16 

March 2016  22 

April 2016 April 11-15: Spring Break 16 

May 2016 May 30: Memorial Day 21 

June 2016  14 

Total  190 

 

 

July 4
th

 – July 29
th

  Student Day runs from 8:30 am-11:30 am 

Teacher day runs from 8:00 am-12:00pm 

20 

 

 The first day of school for teachers will be Monday, August 10, 2015 and they will be 

engaged in ten days of pre-opening professional development. 

 The first day of school for students will be Monday, August 24
th

 , 2015 

 The last day of school for students will be Monday, June 20
th 

, 2016 

 The last day of school for teachers will be Friday, June 24
th

 , 2016 

 The school year will be broken into four marking periods: 

 The first marking period ending on or about November 11
th

 , 2015  

 The second marking period ending on or about February 5
th

, 2016 

 The third Marking period ending on or about April 15
th

 , 2016 

 The fourth marking period ending a week before the last day of school. 

 Every report card will be distributed to parents at individual parent teacher conferences. 

 Summer School begins on July 4, 2016 and runs through July 29, 2016 

 
 

Summer School Program 
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Attachment 4:            Student Discipline Policy 
 

The following Student Discipline Code, including the policy for disciplining students with 
disabilities is outlined.  The Student Discipline Code that follows is modeled after the 
NYCDOE’s Citywide Standards of Discipline and Intervention Procedures.  Should QPCS be 
authorized, these policies will be published and distributed appropriately.  
 
DRAFT QPCS Discipline Code 
Understanding discipline as a “teachable moment” is fundamental to a positive approach to 
discipline. Progressive discipline uses incremental interventions to address inappropriate 
behavior with the ultimate goal of teaching pro-social behavior. Progressive discipline does not 
seek punishment. Instead, progressive discipline seeks concurrent accountability and behavioral 
change. The goal is prevention of a recurrence of negative behavior by helping students learn 
from their mistakes. Essential to the implementation of progressive discipline is helping students 
who have engaged in unacceptable behavior to:  
• understand why the behavior is unacceptable and the harm it has caused  
• understand what they could have done differently in the same situation  
• take responsibility for their actions  
• be given the opportunity to learn pro-social strategies and skills to use in the future  
• understand the progression of more stringent consequences if the behavior reoccurs 
 
Determining the Disciplinary Response 
In determining how to best address inappropriate conduct, it is necessary to evaluate the totality 
of the circumstances surrounding the conduct. The following facts must be considered prior to 
determining the appropriate disciplinary measures: 
• The student’s age and maturity; 
• The student’s disciplinary record (including the nature of any prior misconduct, the number of 

prior instances of misconduct, and the disciplinary and guidance intervention measures applied 
for each); 

• The nature, severity and scope of the behavior; 
• The circumstances/context in which the conduct occurred; 
• The frequency and duration of the behavior; 
• The number of persons involved in the behavior; 
• The student’s IEP (Individualized Education Plan), BIP (Behavioral Intervention Plan) and 504 

Accommodation Plan, if applicable. 
 
Guidance interventions are an essential adjunct to disciplinary measures. 
Every reasonable effort must be made to correct student behavior through guidance interventions 
and other school-based resources. Guidance interventions are essential because inappropriate 
behavior or violations of the Discipline Code may be symptomatic of more serious problems that 
students are experiencing. It is, therefore, important that school personnel be sensitive to issues 
that may influence the behavior of students and respond in a manner that is most supportive of 
their needs. Appropriate disciplinary responses should emphasize prevention and effective 
intervention, prevent disruption to students’ education, and promote the development of a 
positive school culture. For students with disabilities whose behavior impedes the student’s 
participation in school, a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) is an essential tool to 
understand the causes of the student’s behavior. A behavioral intervention plan (BIP) after an 
FBA provides specific approaches to address the student’s behavior. 
 
DISCIPLINE MEASURES 
Infraction Levels 
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Some infractions may not apply to students in grades K-3. 
 
  

Level 1 Uncooperative/Noncompliant Behavior 

Level 2 Disorderly Behavior 

Level 3 Disruptive Behavior 

Level 4 Aggressive or Injurious/Harmful Behavior 

Level 5 Seriously Dangerous or Violent Behavior 
 
Each level of infractions contains possible guidance interventions as well as a minimum to a 
maximum range of possible disciplinary responses that may be imposed by a teacher, principal, 
the Chief Executive Officer.  
 

Where and When the Discipline Code Applies 
The standards set forth in the Discipline Code apply to behavior: 
• In school during school hours,  
• Before and after school, while on school property,  
• While traveling on vehicles funded by the NYC DOE,  
• At all school-sponsored events and on other-than-school property when such behavior can be 
demonstrated to negatively affect the educational process or to endanger the health, safety, 
morals, or welfare of the school community. 

 

When misbehavior involves communication, gestures or expressive behavior, the infraction 
applies to oral, written or electronic communications, including but not limited to texting, 
emailing, and social networking.  The enumerated infractions are not all-inclusive. Students who 
engage in misconduct which is not listed are subject to appropriate disciplinary measures by the 
teacher, principal or the Chief Executive Officer.   
 
GUIDANCE INTERVENTIONS 
To promote positive behavior QPCS will provide a range of prevention and intervention strategies 
and support services for students. Support services may include any of the interventions or a 
combination of such services that best meet the needs of the individual student. 

Types of Guidance Interventions 

Parent Outreach: School staff should keep 

parents informed of their child’s behavior and 

enlist parents as partners in addressing areas of 

concern. Outreach to parents can include, but is 

not limited to, a phone call and/or written 

communication. 

Short-Term Behavioral Progress Reports: 

Teachers and/or principals may send 

behavioral progress reports to parents on a 

regular basis until they feel that the student is 

in control of his/her behavior and working in 

the classroom successfully. 

Guidance Conference: Principals and 

teachers may request a guidance conference 

with the student and, where appropriate, with 

the parent. The purpose of the conference is to 

review the behavior, find solutions to the 

problem and address academic, personal and 

social issues that might have caused or contrib-

uted to the behavior. 

Development of Individual Behavior 

Contract: The student meets with teachers to 

create a written contract that includes 

objectives and the specific performance tasks 

that the student will accomplish to meet those 

objectives. The contract is signed by the 

student and teacher and, where appropriate, by 

the parent. 

Progressive Infraction Levels 
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ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

A functional behavioral assessment (FBA) is the process of determining why a student engages 

in behaviors that impede learning and how the behavior relates to the environment. An FBA is 

based on direct observation, information from teachers, providers and parents to understand the 

student’s behavior, and when and why it occurs and to develop recommendations to address the 

behavior. An FBA must be considered when a student with a disability or a student who is 

presumed to have a disability (1) exhibits persistent behaviors that impede his or her learning or 

that of others, despite consistently implemented general school-wide or classroom-wide 

interventions; (2) engages in behavior that puts the student or others at risk of harm; or (3) is 

being considered by the CSE for a more restrictive program because of the student’s behavior. A 

student is presumed to have a disability if the parent has expressed concern in writing that the 

student needs special education and related services or school staff express concern about a 

pattern of behavior or the student has been referred for an initial evaluation. An FBA must be 

conducted or updated after a finding in a manifestation determination review (MDR) that 

behavior is a manifestation of a student’s disability.  

 
QPCS will ensure that when the suspension or removal of a student with a disability will 
constitute a disciplinary change of placement, the CSE will be immediately notified so that the 
CSE can meet its required obligations to: 

1. Convene a CSE meeting within 10 school days to make a manifestation determination. 
2. Convene a CSE meeting within 10 business days to develop a plan to conduct a 

functional behavioral assessment or review an existing functional behavioral assessment 
or behavioral intervention plan. 

3. Provide the student’s parents with a copy of their procedural due process rights. 
4. Work closely with the CSE of the student’s district of residence in determining education 

services or the interim alternative educational setting consistent with the FAPE 
requirements. 

 
Provision of Service During Removal 
Those students removed for a period fewer than ten days will receive all classroom assignments 
and a schedule to complete such assignments during the time of his or her suspension. Provisions 

Intervention by Counseling Staff: Where 

available, school-based counseling personnel 

and/or School-Based Mental Health programs 

offer a wide range of comprehensive and 

confidential mental health services and 

interventions including, but not limited to: 

assessments, individual, group and family 

therapy, teacher consultations and educational 

strategies for parents and staff. 

Individual/Group Counseling: Counseling 

provides students with an outlet to share issues 

in privacy that may be negatively impacting 

their attendance, behavior, and/or academic 

success. Students discuss and formulate goals, 

and learn problem solving strategies that will 

enable them to overcome a variety of personal 

challenges. Counselors will conference with 

parents on a regular basis to discuss the 

student’s academic and personal progress. 

Bias-Based Bullying, Intimidation or 
Harassment: When a student or group of students 

engages in bias-based bullying, intimidation or 

harassment of another student or group of students, 

both the victim and the student who engages in this 

behavior should be referred to separate appropriate 

counseling and support provided by school staff 

Mentoring Program: A mentoring program 

matches a mentor who may be a counselor, 

teacher, student and/or leader with a protégé. 

The object of this relationship is to help the 

protégé in his/her personal, academic and 

social development. 
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will be made to permit a suspended student to make up assignments or tests missed as a result of 
the suspension.  QPCS shall provide additional alternative instruction with reasonable 
promptness and by appropriate means to assist the student, so that the student is given full 
opportunity to complete assignments. During any subsequent removal that, combined with 
previous removals equals ten or more school days during the school year, but does not constitute 
a change in placement, services must be provided to the extent determined necessary to enable 
the child to appropriately progress in the general curriculum and in achieving the goals of his or 
her IEP.  In these cases, school personnel, in consultation with the child’s special education 
teacher, shall make the service determination. 
 
RESTORATIVE APPROACHES 
A restorative approach can be used as both a prevention and intervention measure. Restorative 
processes can help schools build relationships and empower community members to take 
responsibility for the well-being of others; prevent or deal with conflict before it escalates; 
address underlying factors that lead youth to engage in inappropriate behavior and build 
resiliency; increase the pro-social skills of those who have harmed others; and provide wrong 
doers with the opportunity to be accountable to those they have harmed and enable them to repair 
the harm to the extent possible.  
When used as an intervention measure, taking a restorative approach to discipline changes the 
fundamental questions that are asked when a behavioral incident occurs. Instead of asking who is 
to blame and how those engaged in the misbehavior will be punished, a restorative approach asks 
four key questions:  
• What happened?  
• Who was harmed or affected by the behavior?  
• What needs to be done to make things right?  
• How can people behave differently in the future?  
QPCS will include a restorative approach to discipline in its model. 
 
THE RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS 
Every student has the right to be treated fairly.  Students have the right to: be provided with the 
Discipline Code and rules and regulations of the school; know what appropriate behavior is and 
what behaviors may result in disciplinary actions; be counseled by members of the professional 
staff in matters related to their behavior as it affects their education and welfare in the school; 
know possible dispositions and outcomes for specific offenses; due process of law in instances of 
disciplinary action for alleged violations of school regulations for which they may be suspended 
or removed from class by their teachers; students with disabilities, 504 plans, or who are 
“presumed to have a disability” have the right to certain protections under IDEA; know the 
procedures for appealing the actions and decisions of school officials. Be accompanied by a 
parent and/or representative at conferences and hearings; the presence of school staff in 
situations where there may be police involvement. 
 

Kindergarten – Grade 5   Level 1 
Infractions – Uncooperative/Noncompliant 
Behavior 
 

Guidance Interventions 

 

 Unexcused absence from school  
 Failing to wear the required school 

uniform  
 Being late for school  
 Bringing prohibited equipment or items 

to school without authorization (e.g., 

 Parent outreach 

 Intervention by counseling staff 

 Guidance conference(s) 

 Restorative Approaches 

 Positive Behavioral Interventions and 
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cell phone, or other electronic 
communication/entertainment device)  

 Failing to be in one’s assigned place on 
school premises  

 Behaving in a manner which disrupts 
the educational process (e.g., making 
excessive noise in a classroom, library 
or hallway) 

 Engaging in verbally rude or 
disrespectful behavior 

 Wearing clothing, headgear (e.g., caps 
or hats), or other items that are unsafe 
or disruptive to the educational process 

 Posting or distributing material on 
school premises in violation of written 
school rules 

 Using school computers, fax machines, 
telephones or other electronic 
equipment or devices without 
appropriate permission 

 

Supports (BIST) 

 Individual/group counseling 

 Peer mediation 

 Mentoring program 

 Conflict resolution 

 Development of individual behavior 

contract 

 Short-term behavioral progress reports 

 Community service (with parental 

consent) 

 Functional Behavioral Assessment 

(FBA)/Behavioral Intervention Plan 

(BIP) 

 

 
If there is a question regarding whether or not clothing or headgear is representative of religious 
expression, QPCS will contact the appropriate DOE office. 

 

Range of Possible Disciplinary Responses to Be Used in Addition to Guidance Interventions 

A. Admonishment by pedagogical school staff 

B. Student/teacher conference 

C. Reprimand by appropriate supervisor (e.g. principal, CEO) 

D. Parent conference 

E. In-school disciplinary action (e.g., exclusion from extracurricular activities or communal  

lunchtime) 

F. Removal from classroom by teacher (After a student is removed from any classroom by any 

teacher three times during a semester or twice in a trimester, a principal’s suspension must be 

sought if the student engages in subsequent behavior that would otherwise result in a removal 

by a teacher.) 

Kindergarten – Grade 5   Level 2 & 3 
Infractions – Disorderly and Dangerous Behavior 

Disorderly behaviors include but are not limited to:  
Using profane, obscene, vulgar, or lewd language, gestures, or behavior; lying to, giving false 
information to, and/or misleading school personnel; misusing property belonging to others; 
engaging in or causing disruptive behavior on the school bus; knowingly possessing property 
belonging to another without authorization; leaving class or school premises without permission 
of supervising school personnel; engaging in inappropriate or unwanted physical contact or 
touching someone in a private part of body; shoving; pushing; engaging in vandalism, graffiti or 
other intentional damage to school property. 
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Horace J. Aiken
Objective 

Board Member 

Experience 

08/2003-Present Trey Whitfield School Brooklyn, NY

Chief Financial Officer 
 Manage School’s Finance 
 Prepare annual and Quarterly Finance Statement 
 Interface with Board and other Stakeholders (Auditors, Funders, Government and Vendors) 

04/1996-05/2002 Bedford Stuyvesant Restoration Brooklyn, NY

Chief Financial Officer 
 
 Manage Corporation Finance 
 Prepare annual and Quarterly Finance Statement 
 Interface with Board and other Stakeholders 

03/1994-04/1996 Associated Black Charities New York, NY

Controller 
 Manage Corporation Finance 
 Prepare annual and Quarterly Finance Statement 
 Interface with Board and other Stakeholders 

04/1986-03/1994 Mitchell Titus and Company, CPA New York, NY

Audit Supervisor 
 Supervised and Management Audit Engagements in various industries (Government, Not-for-

profits and For-Profits) 
 Supervised and Perform Financial and Compliance Audits 
 Supervised and Perform Internal Controls Evaluation. 

Education 

1980-1986 Bernard M. Baruch New York, NY

BBA Accounting Major 
 NYS CPA License (Currently Inactive). 

References 

References are available on request. 
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School Trustee nd lnformation

Each proposed or prospective charter school board member must provide the
information requested below.

Name: Garola

Gharter School Name: _Questbridge Gharter Preparatory School

Charter School Address: To Be Determined

To which charter school board position(s) and/or offices(s) are you asking to be
appointed? (e.9., member, parent representative, vice-president, Finance
committee, etc.): _member

As you may know, serving on a public charter school board of trustees ("board")
is a position of great trust and responsibility. As a member of a public charter
school's board, you are charged with overseeing the education of all students
enrolled in the school, as well as the expenditure of public monies directed to the
charter school.

The Department's consent is required before any new member may serve on the
board. Accordingly, and in order to properly evaluate proposed board members,
we ask that you please provide full and complete answers to each of the items
below and provide the required assurance indicated. Note that providing false,
misleading, and/or incomplete information may lead to a withdrawal of the
Department's approval, nullifying your appointment to the board.

Background

1. Please provide your educational and employment history. You may do so by
attaching a r6sum6. Xfl Resume Attached

2. Please affirm that you are or will be at least eighteen years old at the time of
your appointmenUelection to the board. Xf] I affirm.

3. Please affirm that you have read Article 56 of the New York State Education
Law, and understand the relationship between a charter school and the
authorized chartering entity as defined in that statute. Xf] I affirm.

4. Please indicate how you became aware of the charter school and the
opportunity to serve as a member of its board.
I became aware of the charter school through Mr. and Mrs. Grant. I have
known them since their son attended Queens Gateway to Health
Sciences Secondary School, where I am the Parent Goordinator.
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5. Please explain why you wish to serve on the board.
I would like to serve on the board of Questbridge Preparatory Charter
School because of the integral part that parents have in their child's
education. The school and community must understand that parenb are
the first teacher for children and endeavor to have them active in the
school in a meaningful way. Through the years, I have learned
techniques that encourage parents to be more involved in their child's
education and I am honored to bring this perspective to the school.

Please indicate whether you have previously served or are currently serving
on a board of a school district, a non-public school or any not-for-profit
corporation (to the extent not otherwise indicated in your response to ltem 1,

above). ln addition, please describe any other experience, knowledge or
skills you feel is relevant to service on the charter school board. XE ffris
does not apply to me. fl yes. (lnclude description here):

Please indicate whether or not you have ever been convicted of a
misdemeanor and/or felony in state or federal court in any jurisdiction.
xE fnis does not apply to me. flYes.
lf the answer to this question is yes, please provide the following details
regarding your conviction(s): (1) the name of the criminal offense(s); (2)
whether the criminal offense(s) was a misdemeanor or felony; (3) the facts
and circumstances surrounding your conviction(s); (4) the date(s) of your
conviction(s); and (5) the date(s) of disposition(s).

Your response to question seven may also include any relevant written
information that you wish to be considered in support of your application,
including, but not limited to: certificates of conviction; any parole and/or
probation documentation; any certificates, including any certificate of relief
from disabilities; any proof of counseling and/or rehabilitation; any
documentation attesting to your good conduct or your good character; and
any letters of support from friends, family, co-workers, employers, etc.

8. Please indicate if you currently have any criminal charge(s) pending against
you in state or federal court in any jurisdiction.
XE fnis does not apply to me. n Yes.
lf the answer to this question is yes, please provide an explanation.

6.

7.

Conflict of lnterest

9. Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family member knows
any of the other prospective or current board members.
XI | / we do not know any such persons. f, Yes.
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10.

11.

lf your answer is yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship
here:

Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family member knows
any person who is a prospective or current charter school employee.
Xn 1/ we do not know any such persons. n yes.
lf yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship here:

Please indicate if you, your spouse, or other family member or any
corporation, business or other entity in which you, your spouse or other
family member serve as an employee, officer, or director or own a
controlling interest in, contracts or does business with, or plans to contract
or do business with, the charter school, including but not limited to, the
lease of real or personal property to the charter school.
XI No. tr Yes.
lf yes, please describe the nature of the contract or business and, if
applicable, the relationship of the person to the corporation, business or
entity involved:

12. lf the charter school is partnered with an educational service provider (a
management company, whether for-profit or not-for-profit), please indicate
whether you, your spouse, or any family member knows any employees,
officers, owners, directors or agents of that provider. lf your answer is in the
affirmative, please describe any such relationship.
I Not applicable because the School does noUwill not contract with a

management company or charter management organization.
Xtr | / we do not know any such persons. f] Yes.

13. lf the charter school is partnered with an educational service provider,
please indicate whether you, your spouse or other family member has a
direct or indirect ownership, employment, contractual or management
interest in the provider. For any interest indicated, please provide a detailed
description.
n Not applicable because the School does notlwill not contract with a

management company or charter management organization.
Xf] I / we have no such interest. I yes.

14. lf the charter school is partnered with an educational services provider,
please indicate if you, your spouse or other family member'anticipates
conducting, or is conducting, any business with the provider. lf so, please
indicate the precise nature of the business that is being or will be
conducted.
n Not applicable because the School does not/will not contract with a
management company or charter management organization.
Xn I / we do not anticipate conducting any such business. fl Yes.

15. Please indicate whether you, your spouse or other family member is a
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16.

17.

director, officer, employee, partner or member of, or is otherwise associated
with, any organization which filed an application in conjunction with the
charter school, i.e., is partnered with the charter school. To the extent you
have provided this information in response to items 9-12, you may so
indicate. Xtr fnis does not apply to me, my spouse or other family
members. f] ves.

Please indicate the potential ethical or legal conflicts of interests (if any) that
would, or are likely to, exist should you be approved for service on the
charter school's board.
Xf] None E Yes

Please explain how you would handle a situation in which you believe one
or more members of the charter school's board are involved in working for
their own benefit, or the benefit of their friends and family.
lf I thought that a Board member was working for their own benefit, I

would bring it to the attention of the entire Board in a meeting so that
everyone can hear my concern and get clarification, if necessary, of
the action being taken. Article Xl of the Questbridge Preparatory
Charter School's bylaws, clearly outlines the process that must be
followed if a conflict of interest arise, and the appropriate action to be
taken by the Board as a whole. lt is important to follow the written
process to ensure fairness and transparency.

Educational Philosophy

Please explain your understanding of the charter school's mission and/or
philosophy.
The philosophy of Questbridge Preparatory Charter School is to give
our students the tools that will promote a love of learning at an early
age. ln addition, students must understand the necessity to pursue
learning and exploring from now through to higher education.

Please explain your understanding of the educational program of the charter
school.
At the Questbridge Preparatory Charter School students will have an
opportunity to explore and understand their learning style through the
use of the Science, Technology Engineering & Math (STEM) and
Project Based programs in the school. ln addition, langua$e such as
Spanish will be introduced early to help build a better understanding
of the global community in which they will have to function
seamlessly.

Please indicate what you believe to be the characteristics of a successful
charter school. ln particular, please provide the specific steps you think the

18.

19.

24.
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21.

board of the charter school will need to take to ensure that this charter
school is and remains successful.
A successful charter school will ensure that all constituents, staff,
students and parents are working toward a unified goal; the high
achievement of students. The on-going operation of the school will be
done by administrators, teacher and staff, however, the Board has the
responsibility to set the guidelines that will ensure that the mission
and goals of the school are achieved. The Board of the charter school
has to use the creative freedom it is empowered with, to encourage
staff to explore instructional techniques that will ensure that students
excel using a rigorous curriculum.

ln addition, the Board must continually encourage engagement of
residents, parents, and businesses in the community. This will
guarantee that there is a clear understanding that we are all
stakeholders in the success of the school. The Board has
responsibility for continued oversight and sound judgment to tweak
and adjust policies as needed. Since we are all working for the
success of students, the Board also has to be flexible enough to give
consideration to suggestions from staff and parents.

Other

Please explain your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter
school board member.
The role of a public charter school board member is work in a unified
way with all Board members to create policies and guidelines that will
ensure that the mission and objectives of the school are met. Each
member has to be mindful of the duty that we have to work together
cohesively. The board member has to be readily available to work with
the entire board so at we can be responsive to the school's
administration and to be an example of how the school is expected to
operate.

Please affirm that you have read and understand the charter school
application, the charter school board's by-laws and all proposed policies.
I do.

Please provide any other information that you feel is pertiflent to the
Department's review.

22.

23.
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,, Cav,rlq e rl, (*L|Y ()l q v Y q lL/ (name of
proposed board member) state thatl I am the applicant for board member

A Statement of Assurance must be sigr.red by and submitted for each proposed
Board Member.

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

approval and I have read the questionnaire and any supporting documents and
know the contents thereof; that the same is true to my knowledge except as to
the matters therein stated to be alleged upon information and belief, and as to
those matters I believe it to be true and further acknowledge that I am aware of
the fact that, pursuant to Penal Law $175.30, a person who knowingly offers a
false instrument for filing to a public official or public servant is guilty of Offering a
Fatse fistrument for Filing in the 2nd Degree, a Class A Misdemeanor.

Signature

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
lnformation Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

Busi ness Telephon e: _  
Business Address:

E-Mail Address :

I

Home Telephone:
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Carola Craig 

EXPERIENCE: DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION  New York 
 8/03-present Parent Coordinator 
 • Plan and facilitate workshops around topics of interest or concern to parents that include 

curriculum night, college information night and computer software training. 
 • Increase parents’ participation in students’ education and the school community as a whole. 
 • Work with the parents association to help increase involvement in the school and present 

critical information in a timely manner. 
 • Conduct outreach to community based organizations so that their resources are available for 

parents at workshops. 
 
 FISERV - BANKLINK  New York 
 97-4/03 Implementation Administrator 
 • Supported sales in the bidding process by preparing presentations, proposals and contracts. 
 • Responded to inquiries, resolved problems and functioned as back up for account executives 

while they were out of the office. 
 • Worked closely with the Marketing Department to fulfill requests from financial institutions. 

Followed-up with customers in order to finalize requests and ensure satisfaction. 
 • Gathered information from various departments in order to produce several monthly 

management reports. 
 
 03/95-97 Administrative Assistant 
 • Managed preparation of training documents for on-site training at financial institutions. 
 • Responsible for the initial input of customers on the cash management system and ensured 

that the software, user manuals and related documentation were shipped. 
 • Prepared PowerPoint presentations for conferences, clients and quarterly meetings. 
 • Provided the Finance Department with monthly expense reports.  
 • Assisted with the Banklink annual conference, Association for Financial Professionals (AFP) 

annual conference and mass mailings as needed. 
 
 02/91-3/95 Senior Secretary 
 • Assisted four Sr. Product Managers and three Jr. Product Managers with all proposals, 

presentations and correspondence. 
 • Updated monthly reports on the status of projects. 
 • Scheduled meetings with clients, prepared expense reports and coordinated travel 

arrangements. 
 

 12/89-02/91 FIRST MANHATTAN COMPANY  New York 
 Research Assistant 
 • Assisted two Investment Analysts with administrative tasks. 
 • Updated spreadsheets, balanced accounts, researched and presented reports on various 

companies. 
 

 01/89-12/89 Various Temporary Agencies  New York 
 Administrative/Word Processing Secretary 
 • Provided administrative support. 
 

 1985-1988 CITIGROUP, INC.  New York 
 Recruiting Coordinator 
 • Coordinated approximately 450 recruiting schedules and d pre-recruiting events at targeted 

colleges and universities across the country. 
 • Managed Summer Intern Program for third year college students and scheduled senior 

management for the intern orientation and other presentations throughout the summer.  
 
 SOFTWARE: Proficient in Microsoft Excel, PowerPoint and Word; familiar with Access 
 
 EDUCATION: Bernard M. Baruch College, BBA in Marketing Management 
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M. LYCIA GRANT 
   M:  

       

 

EDUCATOR & TRAINER 
Core competencies include: 
 Strategic Planning  Curriculum Development  Assessment Design & Administration   
Collaboration  Identify & Analyze Needs  Effective Communication  Project Management 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 

THE LEARNING SOLUTION CENTER  Elmont, NY  2010 – Present 
A company who mission it is to prepare students to excel in school and life. Children are inspired 
to learn and grow in a caring and nurturing environment. 
Director 
Exhibit confidence and commitment in the center’s mission; provide leadership by building and 
maintaining a coherent instructional vision and direction.  Develop and implement the strategic 
plan for the center’s educational program and curriculum.  Assure academic outcomes that 
meet or exceed grade level.  Design and manage assessment of all students. Manage all 
reporting needs for the center.  Manage and oversee budget and forecasting for the center.  
Hire and supervise staff.  Oversee and implement robust orientation and training program for 
all staff.  Conduct needs analysis.  Create policies and procedures for effective operation of the 
center.  Ensure that staff exhibit and maintain a high level of professionalism, instructional 
support and customer service.  Conduct teambuilding exercises. Develop and maintain 
partnerships with parents, educational programs and community. Engage local officials and 
community leader for support.   
 
OXFORD CHRISTIAN ACADEMY  Richmond Hill, NY  2006 ‐ 2010        
A non‐profit private elementary school determined to make an impact in the community. 
Serving children in Kindergarten through 6th grade, students consistently scored 1‐2 grade levels 
above their current grades. 
Assistant Principal     
Chair meetings for the purpose of coordinating activities and ensuring that outcomes are 
achieved. Assist in the evaluation of personnel. Facilitate communication between personnel, 
students and/or parents. Work with staff when there is a need for conflict resolution. Lead 
collaboration sessions with teachers. Implement policies and proceed for effective operation of 
the school. Taught Kindergarten and 1st grade classes and developed tracking systems for 
operation efficiency.  Conduct workshops and seminars for the purpose of teambuilding and 
family engagement.   
 

 

REECE & NICHOLS REALTOR, INC. Lee’s Summit, MO 2002‐2004 

The leading real estate company in the Kansas City area.   

Licensed Real Estate Agent 
Facilitate the sale and purchase of real estate  in Missouri & Kansas.   Negotiate contracts and 
complete real estate transactions. Created and maintain client  list.   Work with clients to meet 
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their  housing  goals.  Follow  up with  clients  to  establish  client  satisfaction.  Collaborate with 
various real estates companies and agents to meet client needs. 
 

HALLMARK CARDS, INC. Kansas City, MO 2000‐2003  

The largest manufacturer of greeting cards in the United State. Hallmark Cards was 
awarded the National Medal of Arts in 1985. 
Quality Assurance Administrator 
Monitor and coach technology analysts. Successfully led the development of the Quality 
program for Technology Service that led to a 40% improvement in customer service.  
Successfully piloted two major programs for better customer service.  Responsible for 
supporting computer systems for Hallmark Cards stores utilizing Windows NT platform.  Work 
with various levels of management. Create and prepare various types of reports. 
 
 

THE SIGNATURE GROUP/GE, Independence, MO 1998‐1999  
A premiere company making a difference in the Kansas City area.        
Training Coordinator 
Responsible for conducting initial and on‐going training.  Develop training tools for sales 
representatives and managerial staff.  Provide supervisory assistance. Assist Quality Assurance 
department with strategic planning for quality customer service and sales verification. 
 

 

EDUCATION 
M.S. Education 
St. John’s University, Queens, NY 2012‐Present 
 

M.A. Marketing 
Webster University, Kansas City, MO. 2005 
 

B.A. Communication Studies 
University of Missouri, Kansas City, MO. 1994 
 

Certificate: Microcomputer Training  
 Penn Valley College, 2000 
 

NY State Certified Community Mediator  
NYC Mediation Center, Jamaica, NY 2010 
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School Trustee Background Information 
 

Each proposed or prospective charter school board member must provide the 
information requested below.   
 
Name: _________Christine Keefe, PhD______________________________ 
 
Charter School Name: __Questbridge Prepatory Charter School_________ 
 
Charter School Address: __________________________________________ 
 
To which charter school board position(s) and/or offices(s) are you asking to be 
appointed? (e.g., member, parent representative, vice-president, Finance 
committee, etc.): _______Education Committee__________________________ 
 
As you may know, serving on a public charter school board of trustees (“board”) 
is a position of great trust and responsibility. As a member of a public charter 
school’s board, you are charged with overseeing the education of all students 
enrolled in the school, as well as the expenditure of public monies directed to the 
charter school.   

 
The Department’s consent is required before any new member may serve on the 
board. Accordingly, and in order to properly evaluate proposed board members, 
we ask that you please provide full and complete answers to each of the items 
below and provide the required assurance indicated. Note that providing false, 
misleading, and/or incomplete information may lead to a withdrawal of the 
Department’s approval, nullifying your appointment to the board. 
  

Background 
 

1. Please provide your educational and employment history. You may do so by 
attaching a résumé.  Resume Attached 

 
2. Please affirm that you are or will be at least eighteen years old at the time of 

your appointment/election to the board.   I affirm. 
 
3. Please affirm that you have read Article 56 of the New York State Education 

Law, and understand the relationship between a charter school and the 
authorized chartering entity as defined in that statute.   I affirm. 

 
4. Please indicate how you became aware of the charter school and the 

opportunity to serve as a member of its board. 
 

I was approached by Lycia Grant. 
 
5. Please explain why you wish to serve on the board. 
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I am passionate about educational equality and social justice. I believe that by 
serving on the Education Committee, I can offer valuable advice/feedback on 
the development of STEM curriculum and school culture. 

 
6. Please indicate whether you have previously served or are currently serving 

on a board of a school district, a non-public school or any not-for-profit 
corporation (to the extent not otherwise indicated in your response to Item 1, 
above).   In addition, please describe any other experience, knowledge or 
skills you feel is relevant to service on the charter school board.   This does 
not apply to me.  Yes. (Include description here):  

 
I have served on Teach for America’s STEM advisory board. Additionally, I 
have 13+ years experience as a STEM educator, founded STEM based after-
school and summer camp programs, and most recently founded my own 
participatory STEM research company. 
 

7. Please indicate whether or not you have ever been convicted of a 
misdemeanor and/or felony in state or federal court in any jurisdiction.  

 This does not apply to me.   Yes.  
If the answer to this question is yes, please provide the following details 
regarding your conviction(s): (1) the name of the criminal offense(s); (2) 
whether the criminal offense(s) was a misdemeanor or felony; (3) the facts 
and circumstances surrounding your conviction(s); (4) the date(s) of your 
conviction(s); and (5) the date(s) of disposition(s).   
 
Your response to question seven may also include any relevant written 
information that you wish to be considered in support of your application, 
including, but not limited to: certificates of conviction; any parole and/or 
probation documentation; any certificates, including any certificate of relief 
from disabilities; any proof of counseling and/or rehabilitation; any 
documentation attesting to your good conduct or your good character; and 
any letters of support from friends, family, co-workers, employers, etc. 

 
8.  Please indicate if you currently have any criminal charge(s) pending against 

you in state or federal court in any jurisdiction.  
       This does not apply to me.  Yes.  
      If the answer to this question is yes, please provide an explanation. 
 
 

Conflict of Interest 
 

9.   Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family member knows 
any of the other prospective or current board members.   

  I / we do not know any such persons.  Yes.   
 If your answer is yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship 

here: 
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10. Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family member knows 

any person who is a prospective or current charter school employee.  
  I / we do not know any such persons.  Yes.   
 If yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship here:   
 
11. Please indicate if you, your spouse, or other family member or any 

corporation, business or other entity in which you, your spouse or other 
family member serve as an employee, officer, or director or own a 
controlling interest in, contracts or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, including but not limited to, the 
lease of real or personal property to the charter school.   

  No.  Yes.  
 If yes, please describe the nature of the contract or business and, if 

applicable, the relationship of the person to the corporation, business or 
entity involved:   

 
 12. If the charter school is partnered with an educational service provider (a 

management company, whether for-profit or not-for-profit), please indicate 
whether you, your spouse, or any family member knows any employees, 
officers, owners, directors or agents of that provider.  If your answer is in the 
affirmative, please describe any such relationship.         

  Not applicable because the School does not/will not contract with a 
management company or charter management organization. 

  I / we do not know any such persons.    Yes. 
 
13. If the charter school is partnered with an educational service provider, 

please indicate whether you, your spouse or other family member has a 
direct or indirect ownership, employment, contractual or management 
interest in the provider.  For any interest indicated, please provide a detailed 
description.   

  Not applicable because the School does not/will not contract with a 
management company or charter management organization. 

  I / we have no such interest.    Yes. 
 
14. If the charter school is partnered with an educational services provider, 

please indicate if you, your spouse or other family member anticipates 
conducting, or is conducting, any business with the provider.  If so, please 
indicate the precise nature of the business that is being or will be 
conducted. 

  Not applicable because the School does not/will not contract with a 
management company or charter management organization. 

  I / we do not anticipate conducting any such business.    Yes. 
 
15. Please indicate whether you, your spouse or other family member is a 

director, officer, employee, partner or member of, or is otherwise associated 
with, any organization which filed an application in conjunction with the 
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charter school, i.e., is partnered with the charter school. To the extent you 
have provided this information in response to items 9-12, you may so 
indicate.   This does not apply to me, my spouse or other family 
members.          Yes. 

 
16. Please indicate the potential ethical or legal conflicts of interests (if any) that 

would, or are likely to, exist should you be approved for service on the 
charter school’s board. 

  None   Yes 
 
17. Please explain how you would handle a situation in which you believe one 

or more members of the charter school’s board are involved in working for 
their own benefit, or the benefit of their friends and family. 

 
I would first ask the member in question directly about the situation.  If I was not 
able to get a direct or satisfactory answer, I would then refer the issue to the rest 
of the board. 
 

Educational Philosophy 
 

18. Please explain your understanding of the charter school’s mission and/or    
        philosophy. 
 
QPCS’s mission is to create a community of life-long learners and critical 
thinkers. The school will cater to a diverse group of students by offering project-
based curriculum that is delivered via a block-scheduled school day. By engaging 
in project-based learning, students will gradually assume responsibility from the 
teacher for their own learning (both within subject and across school-years). 
 
19. Please explain your understanding of the educational program of the charter 

school. 
 
QPCS places an emphasis on STEM principles, but proposes to teach them in 
integrated thematic units that unify concepts of global and national history, 
literacy, citizenship, and strength-of-character. These integrated units based on 
real-life issues promote deeper, more holistic levels of comprehension. 
 
20. Please indicate what you believe to be the characteristics of a successful 

charter school.  In particular, please provide the specific steps you think the 
board of the charter school will need to take to ensure that this charter 
school is and remains successful. 

 
A successful charter school creates a community of life-long learners by 
encouraging standards of excellence in all aspects of school life. From orderly 
halls to raucous, passionate classrooms, a successful charter school uses 
mindful, innovative methods to invest children in their own success. 
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To meet this end, each decision made by the board will have to be a deliberate, 
strategic move towards the final vision of a school where teachers have fiscal, 
temporal, and behavioral freedom to create challenging and engaging projects 
for a diverse classroom, and students are self-motivated to maintain standards of 
excellence and integrity. 
 
Teachers are free to innovate when: 
 

1) Behavioral challenges are at a minimum.  
a. All teachers employed by QPCS should be masters at procedure 

(rather than creating “rules”), and have proven track records of 
creating safe, supportive, cheerful and inspiring classroom cultures.  

b. Likewise, school procedures should be detailed and reinforced in 
order to prevent the formation of “rules” which can only be broken.   

c. Administrative personnel should be available to provide back-up 
discipline and support for teachers. 

2) Time is available for planning and implementation. 
a. Teachers must have ample planning time built into the school 

schedule. 
b. Block-scheduling allows for a minimum of 70 minutes of continuous 

student engagement (and computerized or otherwise automated 
attendance records minimize teaching time lost). 

3) Funding is available for technology enrichment, or real-life experiences 
(such as field work, field trips, invited speakers, etc.) 

 
Students are motivated to excellence when: 

1) Consistent standards of excellence are communicated throughout the 
entire school day. 

a. A minimum of time is wasted changing classrooms, retrieving 
books, visiting the restroom, etc. 

b. Cleanliness and respect for one’s surroundings is assumed (and 
reinforced, as necessary). 

c. Professionalism, integrity, and respect are modeled by all teachers 
and staff. 

2) Authentic feedback and positive reinforcement are delivered regularly. 
a. Students learn resiliency and self-reflection when offered genuine 

feedback in a non-threatening manner. 
b. Students learn confidence and self-reliance when empowered by 

positive feedback. 
 

Other 
 

21.   Please explain your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter 
school board member. 

 
As a board member, I am obligated to offer quality and timely feedback on any 
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issues presented to the board. If I recognize a conflict of interest, I am obligated 
to report said conflict, and possibly recuse myself if necessary. I should use my 
connections, experience, and expertise to guide QPCS towards its ultimate 
goals. 

 
22. Please affirm that you have read and understand the charter school 

application, the charter school board’s by-laws and all proposed policies. 
 
I have. 
 
23. Please provide any other information that you feel is pertinent to the 

Department’s review. 
 
N/A
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A Statement of Assurance must be signed by and submitted for each 
proposed Board Member. 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 
 
I, _____________Christine Keefe_______________________________(name 
of proposed board member) state that I am the applicant for board member 
approval and I have read the questionnaire and any supporting documents and 
know the contents thereof; that the same is true to my knowledge except as to 
the matters therein stated to be alleged upon information and belief, and as to 
those matters I believe it to be true and further acknowledge that  I am aware of 
the fact that, pursuant to Penal Law §175.30, a person who knowingly offers a 
false instrument for filing to a public official or public servant is guilty of Offering a 
False Instrument for Filing in the 2nd Degree, a Class A Misdemeanor. 
 
             

          Signature                                                        Date 
 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 
 
Business 
 
Business Address: ____
 
E-Mail Address: ___ _______________ 
 
Home Telephone: 
 
Home Address: ____Same as above.________________________________ 
 

3/10/14
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CHRISTINE L. KEEFE 
 

    
 

 

EDUCATION 
 

 PhD University of Nebraska, Lincoln: Cognitive Ecology (2011)  

 BA  Rice University, Houston: Ecology and Evolutionary Biology (2002)  

 BA  Rice University, Houston: Art and Art History (2002)  
 

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 
 

  Director of Community Programs Two Bridges Neighborhood Council (2011 – Present) 

 Crafted vision and administered strategy for Community Program Department: formed culturally 

relevant programs focused around STEM education, arts & culture, health & wellness, skills 

development, and recreation 

o Introduced consistent, objective program performance standards to guide data-based 

decisions on program activity and development 

o Communicated as primary contact for public in the highly diverse, under-resourced Two 

Bridges Neighborhood: increased community engagement by over 200% inaugural year, 

fostered the formation of 2 resident-lead groups. 

 Developed and advanced financial, human, and partnership resources  

o Secured city, state, and federal grants to provide services at no cost to residents including 

NY Department of Environmental Conservation Community Impact Grant and Department 

of Environmental Protection Green Infrastructure Grant 
 

 Site Director 2 Bridges Kids! After School Program & Summer Day Camp (2012 - Present) 

 Conceived and developed youth STEM achievement programs, including standards-based 

curricula, assessments, and field trips 

o Developed partnerships with Cornell University, Pace University, CUNY, the Columbia 

Earth Institute, PBS Kids, STEM from Dance, and the Lower East Side Ecology Center to 

offer hands-on STEM training  

o Secured all city, state, transportation, and federal permits ahead of schedule 

o Obtained necessary support to offer full 5-week camp + 2 meals/day, and year-round after 

school program free for Two Bridges residents 

 Managed and coached counselors, tutors, and instructors to maximize student engagement during 

project-based learning 

 Increased student enrollment by 100%, expanded capacity by 50% (max. capacity allowed), 

maintained 95% approval rating 

 

Education Consultant (2009 - Present) 

 Guided clients in establishing research goals; designed appropriately balanced/controlled studies 

and managed cross—institutional data collection 

 Translated and summarized complex data into easily digestible findings for policy makers and 

producers of educational material, prepared written reports and executive summaries for 

professional audiences including NOVA, the Yale Peabody Museum, PBS, the New York Hall 

of Science, and the American Museum of Natural History 
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STEM EDUCATION 
 

Curriculum Specialist STEMScopes (Present) 

Created comprehensive, inquiry-based, and standards-aligned STEM curriculum: Delivered student-lead 

project based learning materials, complete with supplemental teacher trainings 

 

Instructor  University of Nebraska (2005, 2010) 

 Co-taught month-long animal behavior intensive at Ogallala field station. Assembled curriculum 

covering experimental design, behavioral observation/scoring techniques, catch-and-release 

techniques, statistical analyses, and scientific writing 

 Collaborated with professors across Biology and English departments to develop and deliver 

Ecology, Evolution, and Introductory Biology curriculum, including a scientific writing 

curriculum which was permanently adopted by the Biology department for graduate and 

undergraduate students 

o Introduced “classroom 2.0” techniques to facilitate the student peer review process, 

including wikkis, twitter forums, and cloud computing via Google Drive (Google Docs at 

the time) 

 

Science Teacher Teach for America (2002 – 2004) 

 Produced standards-based, hands-on, inquiry-lead curriculum for Earth Science, Chemistry, and 

Biology. Brought 75% of students to grade level or above first year (N = 200), and 95% of 

students to grade level or above second year (N = 197) (pooled, mainstreamed classes) 
 

 

Classroom Presentations 

 Are you as clever as a Pinyon Jay? Exploring the evolution of intelligence.  Inquiry-based lab 

activity presented to Lincoln middle & high schools (2009)   

 Sexual selection in primates and other systems. Guest lecturer to Behavioral Ecology of Primates 

class at the University of Nebraska (2009) 

 Cognition, behavior, and evolution. Guest lecturer to Behavioral Ecology of Primates class at the 

University of Nebraska (2009) 

 In Your Backyard: Let’s Look at Pinyon Jays! Presented to Phoenix primary classes (2008)  

 Species interactions: competition, coevolution, and mutualism. Three-day lecture series presented 

to Ecology and Evolution classes at the University of Nebraska (2008, 2006) 

 

Selected Publications/Presentations 

 The importance of STEM recruiting.  Teach for America panel discussion, Panel Member; August 

28, 2013 

 Preparing for your STEM placement.  Teach for America’s Webinar Orientation, Panel Member; 

April 24, 2013 

 Keefe, C. (2013) Engaging under-represented populations in STEM: A place-based approach. 

Presented to Experimental Biology Conference on April 20 & 22 in Boston, Massachusetts. 

 Keefe, C. (2011) The effects of social context and cache survival on pinyon jay caching behavior. 

PhD dissertation, University of Nebraska, Lincoln.  

 Keefe, C. (2009) Creating Digital Learning Resources from Secrets Beneath the Ice: A front-end 

evaluation. Lincoln, Nebraska pp.39 
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School Trustee Background lnformation

Each proposed or prospective chader school board member must provide the
information requested below.

Name:

Charter School Narne: Qi s l-brt"l V+- {re P at*!.ry cl'" |g schua I

Gharter School Address:

To which charter
appointed? (e.9.,
committee, etc.):

school board position(s) andior offices(s) are you asking to be
member, parent representative, vice-president, Finance

fl cm b.ozt

As you may know, serving on a public charter school board of trustees ("board")
is a position of great trust and responsibility. As a member of a public charter
school's board, you are charged with overseeing the education of all students
enrolled in the school, as well as the expenditure of public monies directed lo the
charter school.

The Departrnent's consent is required before any new rnember may serve on the
board. Accordingly, and in order to properly evaluate proposed board members,
we ask that you please provide full and complete answers to each of the items
below and provide the required assurance indicated. Note that providing false,
misleading, and/or incomplete information may lead to a withdrawal of the
Departmenl's approval, nullifying your appointmenl to the board.

Background

1. Please provide your edycational and ernployment history. You may do so by
attaching a r6sum6. B[ Resume Attached

2. Please affirm that you are or will be at leasj*ighteen years old at the time of
your appointmenVelection to the board. El atttm.

3. Please affirm that you have read Article 56 of the New York State Education
Law, and understand the relationship between a charter school and the
authorized chartering entity as defined in that statute. frl altrr^,

4. Please indicate how you became aware of the charter
opportunity to serve as a member of its board. H e f Hf- t
l$vt ,, # a Fl u,lvtrn tr lrv y1a dl -t- nt l--* kut

5. Please explain why you wish to serve on the board.

school and the
4rt (aa n I
*.r14 Stoc? Aoo{

Po rt t a-ac- k oLoul s6/v c a ho-, *+d O's*'*q'* z? rt

vl ra K-t ol . r1nc { t^cl ua-,* {o c-cr.. F.nJ Ja +-

tct itcl. r Fa,t

*1 ce*wtua t h7.
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Please indicate whether you have previously served or are currently serving
on a board of a school district, a non-public school or any not-for-profit
corporation (to the extent not othennrise indicated in your response to ltem 1,

above). ln addition, please describe any other experience, klguledge or
skills you feel is relevant to service on the charter school board. ['zJ This does
not apply to me, I Yes. {lnclude description here):

Please indicate whether or not you have ever been convicted of a
mi;idemeanor and/or felony in state or {ederal court in any iurisdiction.
Elffris does not apply to rne. fJ Yes.
lf the answer to this question is yes, please provide the iollowing details
regarding your conviction(s): (1) the name of the criminal offense(s); (2)
whether the criminal offense(s) was a misdemeanor or felony; (3) the facts
and circumstances surrounding your conviction(s); (4) the date(s) of your
conviction(s); and (5) the date(s) of disposition(s).

Your response to question seven may also include any relevant written
inlormation that you wish to be considered in support of your application,
including, but not lirnited to: certificates of conviction; any parole and/or
probation documentation; any certificates, including any certificate of relief

f rom disabilities; any proof of counseling and/or rehabilitation; any
documentation attesting to your good conduct or your good character, and
any letters of support f rom friends, family, co-workers, employers, etc.

Please indicate if you currently have any criminal charge(s) pending against
you)n state or federal court in any jurisdiction.
pfrnis does not apply to me. flYes.
lf the answer to this question is yes, please provide an explanation.

Conllict ol lnterest

Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family member knows
any,of the other prospective or current board members.

ill twe do not know any such persons- [J Yes.
lf your answor is yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship
here:

Please indicate whether you, your spouse, or other family rnember knows
an)r.person who is a prospectiva or current charter school emplqyee.
V I t we do not know any such persons. ! Yes.
lf yes, please indicate the precise nature of your relationship here:

Plaase indicate if you, your sporJse, or other family member or any
corporation, business or other entity in which you, your spouse or other
family member serve as an empioyee, officer, or director or own a

6.

7.

9.

10.

8.

11.

TDTFL P.A2
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12.

controlling interest in, contracts or does business with, or ptans to conlract
or do business with, the charter school, including but not timited to, the

ffftt:Hal 
or personal propartv to the chadar school-

lf yes, please describe the nature of the contract or business and, if
applicable, the relationship of the person to the corporation, business or
entity involved:

lf the charter school is partnered with an educational service provider (a
management company, whether for-profit or not-for-profit), please indicate
whether you, your spouse, or any family member knows any employees,
officers, owners, directors or agents of that provider. lf your answer is in the
affirmative, please describe any such relationship.
LJ Not applicable because the school does novwilt not contract with a
malagement company or charter management organization.
fufl I we do not know any such persons. I yes.

lf ths charter school is partnered with an educational seruice provider,
please indicate whether you, your spouse or other family member has a
direct or indirect ownership, employment, contractual or management
interest in the provider. For any interest indicated, pleass provide a detailed
description,
f Not applicable because the School does noVwill not contract with a
$alagement company or cha(er management organization_
WT lwe have no such interest. I yei.

lf the charter school is partnered with an educational services provider,
please indicate if you, your spouse or other family member anticipates
conducting, or is conducting, any business with the provider. lf so, piease
indicale the precise nature of the business thai is being or will be
conducted.
fl Not applicable because the School does noVwill not contract with a
Enagement company or charter management organization.
lAl lwe do not anticipate conducling any such business. ! yas.

Please indicate whether you, your spouse or olher family member is a
director, officer, employee, partner or member of , or is olhennrise associated
with, any organization which filed an application in conjunction w1h tha
charter school, i.e., is partnered with the charter school. To the extent you
have provi{gl'{his informarion in response to items g-12, you may so
indicate. M Ini= does not apply to ffi€, my spouse or other family
rnembers. fl Yes.

Please indicate the potential ethical or legal conflicts of interests (if any) that
would, or are likely to, exist shoutd you be approved for service on lhe
char(er school's board.J

flf None [_] Yes

13.

14.

15.

16.
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17. Please explain how you would handle a situation in which you believe one

or more members of the charter school's board are involved in working for

their own benefit' or the benefit of their friends and family' Aal'sn csac,"''t -'t4-
boa.rol dtb gectA *t Pos:'Lfg'

23.

Educational Philosophy

Ptease explain your understandino of the charter schoolp TP%"L1+dtolo u* t ,n
philosophy . fo pr<.?a < s t n i.re oa ^tfi'\ ,i,r-c> a+t4 .*-r-ry.T'J-e'', 

t- ,to

'iJf#upr;;fi 
b,'d#""#r;rdte'ff"gi;im;'"ii'a;r'ilr;irn'Lac.cc!'coatctc4

school- f+.(<-' t-+ (-u'tt eA 9<.tztt-.n , 1or-hntlofr.€nAtm c'ttrtlg o^J
Ha[hC Sf Er1) {'l*cL -r1[ Uc alrftatcol n,(4n Lo'ttrttun e-u:re sttla'clotdt

Please indicale what you believe to be the characteristics of a successful
charter school. ln particular, please provide the specific steps you think the
board of the charter school will need to take to ensure that this charter
school is and remains successful. A yra.l,. oullveL -\/q-/t^, o'll,!6,?t 

^u.,t?At^t4td,rvc.n a^A 00hmtrhc- *eo"tori r^,r*r ir-vd&r B1 swssrtt* Ol'jl;JtrI#;_u^
r;^',<I Tuas'. qlna ll0'vr t"'^k
r^^1rl< fusl.<n,^1 ,rna i'o^rQlQE 
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Please affirm that you have read and understand the charter school
application, the charter school board's by-laws and all proposed policies.

t1 eS, I har/c.
Please provide any other information that you feel is pertinent to the
Department's review.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.
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A Statement of Assurance must be signed by and submitted for each proposed

Board Member.

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE

t, Ch e r (name ol
proposed board meinUer) state that I am the applicant for board mernber

approval and I have read the questionnaire and any supporling documents and

know the conlents thereof; that the same is true to my knowledge except as to
the matters therein stated to be alleged upon information and belief, and as to
those matters I believe it to be true and further acknowledge that I am aware of

the fact that, pursuant to Penal Law $175.30, a person who knowingly offers a
false instrument for filing to a public official or public servant is guilty of Offering a

False lnstrument for Filing in the 2nd Degree, a Class A Misdemeanor.

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may
be made available to members of the pubtic upon request under the Freedom of
lnfarmation Law. Personalcontact information provided below will be redacted.

Business    ,

       

Home Telephonet 

-.-fu 
.a t etre

Home Address: S atvre r.,-. o,\p_+ (n< rt'ta,lrn| _.y-g!!LS.
         

     

TOTFL P.E3
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SCHERLYLEON
   

EDUCATION

State Univenity of New York Stony Brook School of Medicine, StonyBroob IrIY
D mnr { M dirirv, IvIay 20 t0

Batty Unirrenity, Miami Shores, FL
Maser f Scinw inBiudirzl Scierw,IvIay2002

State University of New Yor{< Stony Brook -

School of Health Technology and Managemenf StonyBroolq I{Y
Ba&elnr {SciErre i"R"pr*tory C-are,NIay L999

INTERNSHIP AND RESIDENCY

NewYor{r. Hospital of Queens, Flushing, NY
NewYor{<-Presbyterian Healthcare System/\fleill C-omell Medical CrnterAffiliate
M didrp Raifut Q0 10 - present)

HONORS
o American Federation forltzledical Research (AFIvR) Regional ScholarAward Q}LL)

. . American Thoracic Society(ATS) MinorityTrainee Travel Award (2005)
. Societyof Teachen of Famiiylt[edicine Student Conference Participant'Scholanhip (2005)
. National Institutes of Flealth Outstanding Service Award Q004). Leopold Schepp Foundation Scholanhip,2005- 20L0
. Frances Peterson Avrard, 2005,2006

RESEARCH E)GERTENCE

Inflammation Section - Vinthrcp Research Institute
Deparlrnent of Medicine, Vinthrcp Univenity Hospital, Mineola, NY
Raeatdt A ss istart Q0 L0- present) - M ertnr. Dr. Allison B. Reiss

. C-onducted independent laboratory research on cholesterol metabolism in TFIP-I macrophages

exposed to COX-2 selective inhibiton.
o funIryzed and presented research findings at the American Federation for Medical Research

Eastem Regional NGeting.

National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, MD
Biurediml Raeardt TrainirgFellnu!)l2- 2004) - Mator Dr. Joel Moss

. Conducted independent laboratory research on Mycobacterium avium and Psudryrwws aen'ginaa.
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. funlryzed data andproduced poster report of research findings and implications: "Adult
Mycobacterium avium Patients Efibit Increased Serological Reactivityto Psatdurmas aengilrna
Type III Apparatus and Exotoxin A"

PUBLICATIONS AND PRE SENTATIONS

. Camacho-Flalili M, Leon S., Fonacier LS., A multi-center, retrospective review of patch testing
for contact dermatitis in allergypractices. ArnAllagtAsthrra Inrnad, t07(6):487-92,20L1,Dec.

o kon S., Voloshyna I., Liulefield M, Reiss AB. Atherogenic properties of coxibs in human
monocytes/macrophages. Paper presented at American Federation for l\[edical Research
Eastem Regional ltleeting; 2011 April 26-27;'Washington, DC

. kon S., Shapiro I{.,IVtcCormackJE. Bltrnt Traumatic PulmonaryC-ontusion: ARegional
Comparison. Poster session presented au 5th Annual Academic Surgical Congress; 2010
February3-5; San Antonio, Texas

o Leon S., \[S,'Wynter S., Moss J., MD, Ph.D. Adult Wfuoerl.wnaziwnPatients Exhibit
Increased Serological Reactivityto Pseudsrwws am'Eir6a, Tlpe III Apparatus and Exotoxin A
American Thoracic SocietyAnnual Meeting; 2005lvlay20-25; San Diego, Califomia

PROFE SSIONAL AND LEADERSHIP E)GERIENCE

Mentoring in Medicine
/, dds ory B urd Q00 6-2009)
Mator Q006-present)

Stony Brcok University School of Medicine Committee on Admissions
Stu&m Rqtuaatiu Q006- 2010)

Medical Student C-ongrcss Class of 2009
Dean. L iaisort (2005- 200 8)

Student National Medical Association (SNMA)
Rqtst IX Rqi&al S wetary QOOZ -ZOO9)

Student National Medical Association (SNMA)
C-ollwidett {Stuty Bre Unitmity Chapter Q006-2007)

American Medical Student Association(AIVISA)
GltulHuhh Rep Q00s-07)

VOLUNTEER E)GERIENCE
Anhur Ashe Institute for UrSan llealtVJackie Robinson Foundation Fleakh Fatr 20L3
Flarlem Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Irutntive 20L2
StonyBrook HOME (Flealth Outreach and Medical Education) student-run clinic 2009-2010
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"Yes,I can be a Flealth C-are Professional!! Conference 2009,20L0,20L1
AIDS CommunityTeaching (ACT) 2006
Flealth Occupations Parurenhip for Excellence (HOPE) program Pre-medical Forum 2006
The Mke James Foundation-2nd Annual Ml€ James DayCrlebration "Empowering Families,
Strengthening Commtnities " Fleahh F at 2006
LimaKids Peru 2006
Suffolk CountyDepartment of Flealth Services Office of MinorityFlealth
Conversations about cancerwith the African-American Community-Iong Island's East End 2005
MurderMysteryEvent Fundraiser in support of The Urtan kague Katrina Fund 200

OTHERE)GERIENCE
Student/Resident Experiences and Rotations in CommunityFlealth (SEARGI) progr:am 2010
SummerPreceptorship in Familyl\tledicine, St. Vincent Catholic l\zledical Crnten 2006

PROFE SSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

. Artemis lVtedical Society

. Empire State l\fedical Association

. It&dical Sociery of the State of New York

. National Flaitian American Flealth Alliance

. National tvledical Association

. Association of Clinicians forthe Undenerved
o American Federation forl\[edical Research
. American ltzledical Srudent Association
. American lvledical Association
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BYLAWS OF QUESTBRIDGE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 

 

A New York Not-for-Profit Education Corporation 

ARTICLE I  NAME 
The name of the Corporation is Questbridge Preparatory Charter School (hereinafter referred to 

as “the School”). 

ARTICLE II  MEMBERSHIP 
The corporation has no members.  The rights which would otherwise vest in the members vest in 

the directors of the corporation (hereinafter “Trustees”) of Questbridge Preparatory Charter 

School.  Actions which would otherwise require approval by a majority of all members or 

approval by the members require only approval of a majority of all Trustees or approval by the 

Board of Trustees (hereinafter “Board”). 

ARTICLE III  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

A. Powers and Responsibilities 

The business of the corporation shall be overseen by the Board and shall be managed and 

implemented by the School’s Principal and the Chief Executive Officer.  The Board shall 

conduct or direct the affairs of the corporation and exercise its powers, subject to the limitations 

of applicable Education Law, Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, the Corporation’s Charter and 

these Bylaws.  The Board may delegate the management of the activities of the corporation to 

others, so long as the affairs of the corporation are managed, and its powers are exercised, under 

the Board’s ultimate jurisdiction.  Trustees shall act only through the Board of Trustees, and 

shall have no power as individual trustees. 

The Board of holds three areas of responsibility: fiduciary; policy; and employment of the 

Principal, the Chief Executive Officer and all staff.  The Board shall have all the powers 

enumerated in these Bylaws and the Board’s general responsibilities may include, but are not 

restricted, to the following: 

1. Ratifying the School’s mission and vision statements, and the modification thereof. 

2. Approving any management, operational, and service contracts. 

3. Authorizing the broad curricular guidelines and the delegation and oversight of 

specific program implementation. 

4. Approving assessment measures and performance standards. 

5. Providing ongoing support and oversight of the academic program and performance of 

the School. 

6. Approving all school policies so as to ensure that the School is operated pursuant to the 

mission of the School. 

7. Hearing appeals on student disciplinary and special education matters. 

8. Hearing complaints from any individual or group alleging any violation of the 

provisions of the Charter School Act, the charter itself, or any other provision of law 

relating to the management or operation of the Charter School. 

9. Preparing and approving the annual budget. 

10. Ensuring that necessary accountability measures are in place, including the 

performance of audits and annual reports (including a monthly financial report by the 
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Business Manager and Treasurer) and the transmission of all necessary records and 

reports to the proper charter school oversight entities. 

11. Providing necessary and proper oversight of all financial aspects of the Charter 

School. 

12. Providing supervision and evaluation of the Principal and the Chief Executive 

Officer. 

13. Carry out such other duties as required or described in the School’s Charter 

B. Number of Trustees 

The number of Trustees of the corporation shall be not less than seven (7) not more than fifteen 

(15).  The Board shall fix the exact number of Trustees, within these limits, by Board resolution 

or amendment of the Bylaws. 

The Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Principal and the Chief Executive Officer shall 

automatically be ex officio nonvoting Trustees.  The Board will choose one (1) ex officio 

nonvoting Trustee from both of the following groups: 

1. A parent of an active Questbridge Preparatory Charter School student, who is 

designated by the Parents' Association to represent that Association (the"Parent 

Representative"); and 

2. A Questbridge Preparatory Charter School teacher, selected by the faculty (the 

“Faculty Representative”). 

These two ex officio nonvoting Trustees will be chosen from a group of at least three (3) 

candidates recommended for consideration by the stakeholder group.  These two (2) ex 

officio Trustees shall serve a term of one year, and will be nonvoting members who do 

not count toward quorum or the number of Trustees described in this paragraph. 

C. Election and Term of Trustees 

1. Election.  Except as otherwise provided by law, the Education Law of the State of New York, 

the Charter or these Bylaws, the Board shall elect the Trustees by the vote of a majority of the 

Trustees then in office, whether or not the number of Trustees in office is sufficient to constitute 

a quorum, or by the sole remaining Trustee. Trustees-elect assume office subject to approval by 

the Charter Entity.  Election of Trustees to fill expired terms shall take place at the annual 

meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

Any newly created Trustee resulting from an increase in the number of positions for Trustees or 

vacancies occurring in the Board of Trustees for any reason shall be filled by vote of a majority 

of the Trustees in office, regardless of the number. 

2. Eligibility.  The Board may elect any person who in its discretion it believes will serve the 

interests of the School faithfully and effectively. 

3. Interested Persons.  Not more than 49% of the persons serving on the Board may be 

interested persons. An "interested person" is: (1) any person currently being compensated by the 

School for services rendered to it within the previous twelve (12) months, whether as an 

independent contractor or otherwise; or (2) any sister, brother, ancestor, descendant, spouse, 

sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, mother-in-law or father-in-law of any 

such person. 

4. Term of Office. 

 a. The term of all members of the initial Board of Trustees shall be one year. 
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b. At the end of the first year, the Board shall provide for staggered terms of its Trustees, 

by designating approximately one-third (1/3) of the Trustees to one-, two- and three-year 

terms.  Following the expiration of those designated terms, the term of each Trustee shall 

continue for three years, except the term of any Trustee who is the Parent or Faculty 

Representative shall be one (1) year, provided further that such Representatives’ terms 

shall cease upon no longer being a parent or faculty member of the School, respectively, 

in which case a vacancy shall occur. 

c. The term of office of a Trustee elected to fill a vacancy in the Board begins on the date 

of the Trustee's election, and continues: (1) for the balance of the unexpired term in the 

case of a vacancy created because of the resignation, removal, or death of a Trustee, or 

(2) for the term specified by the Board in the case of a vacancy resulting from the 

increase of the number of Trustees authorized. 

d. A Trustee’s term of office shall not be shortened by any reduction in the number of 

Trustees resulting from amendment of the Charter, the Bylaws or other Board action. 

f. A Trustee's term of office shall not be extended beyond that for which the Trustee was 

elected by amendment of the Charter or the Bylaws or other Board action. 

D. Removal of Trustees 

The Board may remove a Trustee with cause as provided by the applicable provisions of the 

Education Law and the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law by vote of a majority of the entire Board. 

Such cause includes, but is not limited to, cases where any Trustee: 

1. Has failed to attend three or more of the Board's Regular Meetings in any calendar year 

without excuse accepted as satisfactory by the Board; 

2. Has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court; 

3. Has been convicted of a felony; or 

4. Has been found by a final order or judgment of any court to have breached any duty 

imposed by the Education Law. 

Notice of the proposed action to remove a Trustee shall be communicated to the Subject Trustee 

by first-class mail at least (10) days prior to the proposed vote. 

E. Resignation of a Trustee 

A Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board Chair or Secretary. The 

resignation is effective on the giving of notice, or at any later date specified in the notice. The 

acceptance of a resignation by the Board Chair or Secretary shall not be necessary to make it 

effective, but no resignation shall discharge any accrued obligation or duty of a Trustee. 

F. Vacancies 

A vacancy is deemed to occur on the effective date of the resignation of a Trustee, upon the 

removal of a Trustee, upon declaration of vacancy pursuant to these Bylaws, or upon a Trustee's 

death. A vacancy is also deemed to exist upon the increase by the Board of the authorized 

number of Trustees. 

G. Compensation of Trustees 

Trustees shall serve without compensation.  However, the Board may approve reimbursement of 

a Trustee's actual and necessary expenses while conducting corporation business. 

H. Interpretation 

To the extent there are any conflicts between the terms of the School’s Charter and the terms of 

these Bylaws, the terms of the Charter will control. 
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ARTICLE IV  PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

The corporation's principal office shall be the location of the School, or such other place as the 

Board may select by resolution or amendment of the Bylaws. The Secretary shall note any 

change in principal office on the copy of the Bylaws maintained by the Secretary. 

ARTICLE V  MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

A. Place of Meetings 

Board Meetings shall be held at the corporation's principal office or at any other reasonably 

convenient place as the Board may designate. 

B. Annual Meetings 

An Annual Meeting shall be held in July of each year for the purpose of electing Trustees, 

making and receiving reports on corporate affairs, and transacting other business as comes before 

the Board. 

C.  Regular Meetings 

Regular Meetings shall be held at various times within the year as the Board determines. 

D. Special Meetings 
A Special Meeting shall be held at any time (1) called by the Chair or (2) called by a majority of 

Trustees.  The notice for such meetings shall state the purpose or purposes thereof and indicate at 

whose request the meeting is being called. 

E. Adjournment 

A majority of the Trustees present at a meeting, whether or not a quorum, may adjourn the 

meeting to another time and place. 

F. Notices 

Notices of the time and place of every Board Meeting shall be mailed at least ten (10) days 

before the meeting to the usual address of every trustee. Notices will be deemed given when 

deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the recipient at the address shown for the 

recipient in the corporation's records, first-class postage prepaid, or when personally delivered in 

writing to the recipient. E-mail notification may also be used in addition to or in place of regular 

mail if a Trustee expresses such a preference and consents in writing to receipt of notifications in 

such a manner. Current e-mail addresses for each Trustee shall be kept in the corporation’s 

records. 

G. Board Meeting by Video Conference 
Trustees may participate in a Board meeting through use of video conference or similar 

communication equipment, so long as all Trustees participating in such meeting can see and hear 

one another and the public can attend at every videoconference site. Participation in a meeting 

pursuant to this section constitutes presence in person at such meeting. 

H. Open Meetings 

All meetings of the Board and all committees and subcommittees thereof shall be conducted in 

accordance with the New York Open Meetings Law (N.Y. Public Officers’ Law §§ 100-111), as 

the same may be amended from time to time.  To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency 

between any provision of these Bylaws and the Open Meetings Law, the Open Meetings Law 

shall prevail and control. 

ARTICLE VI  ACTION BY THE BOARD 

A. Quorum 
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A majority of the entire Board of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any 

business or of any specified item of business. 

B. Voting 

Every Trustee of record shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote by the 

Board of Trustees.  All corporate action to be taken by vote requires a majority vote (51%) of the 

quorum of voting Trustees. 

C. Action by the Board 

The actions done and decisions made by a majority of the Trustees present at a meeting duly held 

at which a quorum is present are the actions and decisions of the Board, except for purposes of 

electing Trustees, appointing committees and delegating authority thereto, or amending the 

corporation's Bylaws, where the action of a majority of Trustees then in office is required as set 

out in these Bylaws. 

If at any meeting of the Board there shall be less than a quorum present, the Trustees present 

may adjourn the meeting until a quorum is obtained. 

D. Committees 

1. Appointment of Committees. The Board may designate one or more Board 

Committees by vote of the majority of the entire Board.  A Board Standing Committee 

will consist of not less than three (3) Trustees, who shall serve at the pleasure of the 

Board, except that any executive committee of the Board shall comprise not fewer than 

five (5) trustees. 

2. Finance Standing Committee.  The Board shall have a standing Finance Committee, 

chaired by the Treasurer.  Additional members of the Finance Committee will be 

appointed by the Chairman of the Board. 

3. Authority and Procedures of Board Committees.  A Board Committee shall have 

and may exercise such authority in the management of the School as shall be provided in 

such resolution to create the Committee or in these Bylaws.  Any delegated activity or 

decision making authority may be unilaterally revoked at any time.  All committee 

meeting shall be governed by the provisions of these Bylaws and the Open Meetings Law 

with respect to the calling of meetings, notice, media advisory, public attendance and 

minutes. 

E. Standard of Care 
Each Trustee shall perform all duties of a Trustee, including duties on any Board Committee, in 

good faith, in a manner the Trustee believes to be in the School's best interest and with such care, 

including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary prudent person in a like position would use under 

similar circumstances. 

F. Rights of Inspection 

Every Trustee has the right to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind 

and to inspect the physical properties of the School, provided that such inspection is conducted at 

a reasonable time after reasonable notice, and provided that such right of inspection and copying 

is subject to the obligation to maintain the confidentiality of the reviewed information, in 

addition to any obligations imposed by any applicable federal, state or local law. 

G. Participation in Discussions and Voting 

Every Trustee has the right to participate in the discussion on all issues before the Board or any 

Board Committee, except as noted below: 
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1. The Faculty and Parent Representatives shall not be present for the discussion and vote 

on any matter involving: (a) the performance evaluation or discipline of any administrator 

or faculty member; (b) administrator or faculty compensation; (c) Executive Sessions of 

the Board; or (d) any other matter at the discretion of a majority of the Trustees then 

present. 

2. Any Trustee shall be excused from the discussion and vote on any matter involving: (a) 

a self-dealing transaction; (b) a conflict of interest, or (c) indemnification of that Trustee. 

H. Duty to Maintain Board Confidences 

Every Trustee has a duty to maintain the confidentiality of all non-public Board actions and 

student identifiable information, including discussions and votes. Any Trustee violating this 

confidence may be removed from the Board.  Moreover, the Faculty Representative may be 

disciplined, including immediate dismissal or short-term suspension (after minimal due process), 

respectively, if Board information is disclosed without the Board’s or the Chair's prior approval. 

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS 

A. Number 

The number of Officers of the Corporation shall be four (4), namely: President (hereinafter 

“Chair”), Vice President (hereinafter “Vice Chair”), Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer 

(hereinafter “Treasurer”).  The corporation also may have such other officers as the Board deems 

advisable. 

B. Election and Term of Office 

All Officers shall be elected by the Board of Trustees at the Annual Meeting. Officers shall serve 

a term of one year with the right to succeed themselves in office and until his/her successor has 

been elected, appointed, and qualified. 

C. Officers: Positions and Responsibilities 

1. Chair.  Subject to Board control, the Chair has general supervision, direction and 

control of the affairs of the corporation, and such other powers and duties as the Board 

may prescribe. If present, the Chair shall preside at Board meetings. 

2. Vice Chair.  If the Chair is absent or disabled, the Vice Chair shall perform all the 

Chair's duties and, when so acting, shall have all the Chair's powers and be subject to the 

same restrictions. The Vice Chair shall have other such powers and perform such other 

duties as the Board may prescribe. 

3. Secretary.  The Secretary shall: (a) keep or cause to be kept, at the corporation's 

principal office, or such other place as the Board may direct, a book of minutes of all 

meetings of the Board and Board Committees, noting the time and place of the meeting, 

whether it was regular or special (and if special, how authorized), the notice given, the 

names of those present, and the proceedings; (b) keep or cause to be kept a copy of the 

corporation's Charter and Bylaws, with amendments; (c) give or cause to be given notice 

of the Board and Committee meetings as required by the Bylaws; and (d) have such other 

powers and perform such other duties as the Board may prescribe. 

4. Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall: (a) keep or cause to be kept adequate and correct 

accounts of the corporation's properties, receipts and disbursements; (b) make the books 

of account available at all times for inspection by any Trustee; (c) deposit or cause to be 

deposited the corporation's monies and other valuables in the corporation's name and to 

its credit, with the depositories the Board designates; (d) disburse or cause to be 
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disbursed the corporation's funds as the Board directs; (e) render to the Chair and the 

Board, as requested but no less frequently than once every fiscal year, an account of the 

corporation's financial transactions and financial condition; (f) prepare or cause to be 

prepared any reports on financial issues required by an agreement on loans; (g) serve as 

Chairperson of the Finance Committee, and (h) have such other powers and perform such 

other duties as the Board may prescribe. 

D. Removal and Resignation 
Any officer elected by the Board of Trustees may be removed for cause shown, by a simple 

majority of Trustees.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the 

corporation, the resignation taking effect on receipt of the notice or at a later date of specified in 

the notice. 

E. Vacancies 

If the office of any officer becomes vacant, the Trustees may elect any qualified Trustee to fill 

such vacancy, who will hold office for the unexpired term of the predecessor and until a 

successor is elected. 

ARTICLE VIII NON-LIABILITY OF TRUSTEES 
The Trustees shall not be personally liable for the corporation's debts, liabilities or other 

obligations. 

ARTICLE IX  INDEMNIFICATION OF CORPORATE AGENTS 

The Charter School may, to the fullest extent now or hereafter permitted by and in accordance 

with standards and procedures provided by Sections 721 through 726 of the Not-for-Profit 

Corporation Law and any amendments thereto, indemnify any person made, or threatened to be 

made, a party to any action or proceeding by reason of the fact that he, his testate or intestate was 

a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, against judgments, fines, amounts paid 

in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorney’s fees. 

If the corporate agent either settles any such claim or sustains a judgment against him/her, then 

indemnification against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts reasonably 

incurred in connection with such proceedings shall be provided by this corporation but only to 

the extent allowed by, and in accordance with the requirements of, the Not-for-Profit 

Corporation Law. 

ARTICLE X  INSURANCE FOR CORPORATE AGENTS 

The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on 

behalf of any Trustee, officer, employee or other agent of the corporation, against any liability 

other than for violating provisions of law relating to self-dealing asserted against or incurred by 

the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the 

corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the 

provisions of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. 

ARTICLE XI  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

A. Purpose  

The purpose of the conflicts of interest policy is to protect the School’s interest when it is 

contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of 

an officer or Trustee. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace the Code of Conduct 

of the School and any applicable state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit 

and charitable corporation. 
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B. Definitions  

1. Interested Person.  Any Trustee, principal officer, or member of a committee with 

Board-delegated power who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is 

an interested person. 

2. Financial Interest.  A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or 

indirectly, through business, investment or family  

a) an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the School has a 

transaction or arrangement, or 

b) a compensation arrangement with the School or with any entity or individual 

with which the School has a transaction or arrangement, or  

c) a potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement 

with, any entity or individual with which the School is negotiating a transaction or 

arrangement. 

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are 

substantial in nature. 

C. Procedures 

1. Duty to Disclose.  In connection with any actual or possible conflicts of interest, an 

interested person must make a prompt, full and frank disclosure of the existence of his or 

her financial interest and all relevant and material facts relating thereto to the Board of 

Trustees and members of committees with Board-delegated powers considering the 

proposed transaction or arrangement. 

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.  After disclosure of the financial 

interest and all material facts relating thereto, and after any discussion thereof, the 

interested person shall leave the Board of Trustees or committee meeting while the 

financial interest is discussed and voted upon.  The remaining Board of Trustees or 

committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. Appropriate disclosures 

must be made to the State Education Department if a conflict of interest does exist.  

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest  

a) An interested person may make a presentation at the Board of Trustees or 

committee meeting, but after such presentation, he or she shall leave the meeting 

during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement that 

result in the conflict of interest. 

b) The President of the Board or chairperson of the committee shall, if 

appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternative 

to the proposed transaction or arrangement. 

c) After exercising due diligence, the Board of Trustees or committee shall 

determine whether the School can obtain a more advantageous transaction or 

arrangement with reasonable efforts from a person or entity that would not give 

rise to a conflict of interest. 

d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably attainable 

under circumstances that would not give rise to a conflict of interest, the Board of 

Trustees or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested 

Trustees whether the transaction or arrangement is in the School’s best interest 

and for its own benefit and whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the 

154



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School  
 

School and shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or 

arrangement in conformity with such determination. 

 4. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy 

a) If the Board of Trustees or a committee has reasonable cause to believe that a 

member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall 

inform the member for the basis for such belief and afford the member an 

opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.  

b) If, after hearing the response of the member and making such further 

investigation as may be warranted in the circumstances, the Board of Trustees or 

committee determines that the member has in fact failed to disclose an actual or 

possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective 

action.  

D. Records of Proceedings 
The minutes of the Board of Trustees and all committees with Board-delegated powers shall 

contain:  

1. Names of Persons with Financial Interest.  The names of the persons who disclosed 

or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or 

possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to 

determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Board of Trustees’ or 

committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.  

2. Names of Persons Present.  The names of the persons who were present for 

discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the 

discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a 

record of any votes taken in connection therewith.  

E. Compensation Committees 

A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who 

receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the School for services is precluded from 

voting on matters pertaining to that member’s compensation. 

ARTICLE XII SELF-DEALING TRANSACTIONS 

The corporation shall not engage in any self-dealing transactions, except as approved by the 

Board.  "Self-dealing transaction" means a transaction to which the corporation is a party in 

which one or more of the Trustees have a material financial interest ("interested Trustee(s)").  

Notwithstanding this definition, the following transactions are not self-dealing transactions, and 

are subject to the Board's general standard of care: 

A transaction which is part of a public or charitable program of the corporation, if the 

transaction (a) is approved or authorized by the Board in good faith and without 

unjustified favoritism, and (b) results in a benefit to one or more Trustees or their families 

because they are in a class of persons intended to be benefited by the program. 

ARTICLE XIII CODE OF ETHICS FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 
Notwithstanding any provision contained herein, each member of the Board of Trustees, each 

Officer and every Employee is to abide by the following code of ethical conduct:  

1. No Trustee, Officer, or Employee of any single organization shall hold more than 40 

percent of total seats comprising the Board. 
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2. No Trustee may serve on more than two (2) separate Charter School Boards as a 

Trustee and/or Officer. 

3. Each Trustee will disclose when they have a financial, organizational or personal 

interest in a matter before the Board. 

4. Each Trustee will abstain from voting on matters in which they may have a financial, 

organizational or personal interest. 

5. No Trustee, Officer, Employee or Individual Associated with a For-Profit Corporation, 

Limited Liability Corporation or Partnership having a business relationship with the 

Charter School involving the provision of educational management services shall serve as 

a voting member of the Board of Trustees. 

ARTICLE XIV MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Fiscal Year 

The fiscal year of the corporation begins on July 1 of each year and ends on June 30 of the 

following year. 

B. Execution of Instruments 

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board may adopt a resolution authorizing any 

officer or agent of the corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any 

instrument in the name of or on behalf of the corporation. Such authority may be general or 

confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent or employee shall have any 

power to bind the corporation by any contract or engagement, to pledge the corporation's credit, 

or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or any amount. 

C. Checks and Notes 

Except as otherwise specifically provided by Board resolution, checks, drafts, promissory notes, 

orders for the payment of money, and other evidence of indebtedness of the corporation may be 

signed by the Chair, Treasurer or Principal. 

D. Construction and Definitions 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provisions, rules of construction, and 

definitions contained in the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and the Education Law shall govern 

the construction of these Bylaws.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, words in 

these Bylaws shall be read as the masculine or feminine gender, and as the singular or plural, as 

the context requires, and the word "person" includes both a corporation and a natural person.  

The captions and headings in these Bylaws are for convenience of reference only and are not 

intended to limit or define the scope or effect of any provisions. 

F. Interpretation of Charter 

Whenever any provision of these Bylaws is in conflict with the provisions of the Charter or 

Provisional Charter, the provisions of the Charter or Provisional Charter shall control. 

ARTICLE XV AMENDMENTS 
A majority of the Trustees may adopt, amend or repeal these Bylaws, but such amendment, if 

material, shall not be effective until approved by the Charter Entity.  To determine materiality, 

all such amendments shall be forwarded to the Charter Entity after approval. 

ARTICLE XVI DISSOLUTION 

A. Dissolution  

In the event of termination or revocation of the Charter School, the School shall follow the 

procedures set forth in the Application and § 2851(2)(t) of the Act, for the transfer of students 
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and student records to the school district in which the Charter School is located and for the 

disposition of the Charter School’s assets to the school district in which the Charter School is 

located or to another charter school located within the school district. In addition, in case of such 

an event, the Charter School will follow any additional procedures required by the New York 

State Education Department to ensure an orderly dissolution process, including compliance with 

the applicable requirements of Education Law §§ 219 and 220.  

B. Escrow Account for Dissolution  

The Charter School agrees to establish an escrow account of no less than $75,000 to pay for legal 

and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it occur.  

To the extent there are any conflicts between the terms of the School’s Charter and the terms of 

these by-laws, the terms of the Charter will control. 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

The undersigned does hereby certify that the undersigned is the Secretary of the Questbridge 

Preparatory Charter School, an education corporation duly organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of New York, that the foregoing Bylaws of said corporation were duly and regularly 

adopted as such by the Board of Trustees of said corporation, which Trustees are the only 

members of said corporation; and that the above and foregoing Bylaws are now in full force and 

effect. 

_______________________   _____________ 

Secretary        Date 
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Code of Ethics 
 

The Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Board of Trustees (“the Board”) recognizes that 
sound ethical standards of conduct serve to increase the effectiveness of the Board and the 
School’s staff.  Actions based on an ethical code of conduct promote public confidence and the 
attainment of QPCS’ goals and objectives.  The Board also recognizes its obligation to adopt a 
Code of Ethics consistent with the provisions of the General Municipal Law and as required 
under Article 56 of the Education Law. 
 

The Trustees, officers and employees of Questbridge Preparatory Charter School shall at all 
times comply with the letter and spirit of this Code of Ethics.  Trustees, officers and employees, 
as part of their service to or employment by the School, shall be furnished with a copy of and 
shall agree to adhere to this Code of Ethics.  The Chair of the Board shall cause a copy of this 
Code of Ethics to be distributed annually to every Trustee, officer and employee of the School.  
This Code of Ethics includes in its entirety the Conflict of Interest Policy attached hereto as 
Exhibit 1. 

1. Management of the School: The Board shall conduct or direct the affairs of the School 
and exercise its power subject to the provisions of applicable law, including the 
Education Law and Not-for-Profit Corporation Law, as well as the requirements set forth 
in the School’s charter and By-laws.  The Board may delegate aspects of the management 
of school activities to others, so long as the affairs of the School are managed, and its 
powers are exercised, under the Board’s ultimate jurisdiction. 

2. Makeup of the Board: Not more than forty-nine (49) percent of the School’s Board may 
be comprised of: (a) People currently being compensated by the School for services 
rendered to it within the previous 12 months, whether as a full-time or part-time 
employee, independent contractor (“School-Compensated Person”) or who otherwise 
shall not generally be eligible to serve on the Board.  The Board may, however, vote to 
approve Board membership for such a person so long as such service is consistent with 
the applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law; or (b) any sister, brother, 
ancestor, descendant, spouse, domestic partner, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-
law, son-in-law, mother-in-law or father-in-law, cousin or cousin-in-law of any School-
Compensated Person. 

3. Representation before the Board for a Contingent Fee: A Trustee, officer or employee 
shall not receive or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for 
services to be rendered in relation to any matter before the Board, whereby the 
compensation is to be dependent or contingent upon any action by the School with 
respect to such matter, provided that this paragraph shall not prohibit the fixing at any 
time fees based upon the reasonable value of the services rendered. 

4. Participation in Board Discussions and Votes: Every trustee has the right to participate 
in the discussion and vote on all issues before the Board or any Board Committee, except 
that any Trustee shall recuse him or herself from the discussion and/or vote on any matter 
involving such Trustee relating to: (a) a “self-dealing transaction” (see below); (b) a 
potential Conflict of Interest (as defined in the Conflict of Interest Policy in Exhibit A); 
or (c) indemnification of that Trustee uniquely. 

5. Confidential Information: No Trustee, officer or employee shall disclose confidential 
information acquired by him or her in the course of his or her official duties or use such 
information regarding any matters discussed in an executive session of the Board, 
whether such information is deemed confidential or not. 

6. Self-Dealing Transactions: Neither members of the Board nor the employees of the 
School shall engage in any “self-dealing transactions,” except as approved by the Board 
and in compliance with the Conflict of Interest Policy in Exhibit A.  “Self-dealing 
transaction” means a transaction to which the School is a party and in which one or more 
of the individual Trustees, officers or employees have a financial interest.  
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Notwithstanding this definition, the following transaction is not a “self-dealing 
transaction”, and is subject to the Board’s general standard of care: a transaction that is 
part of a  public or charitable program of the School, if the transaction (a) is approved or 
authorized by the Board in good faith and determined by the Board to be in the best 
interest of the School  and without favoritism, and (b) results in a benefit to one or more 
Trustees or their families solely because they are in a class or persons intended to be 
benefited by the program. 

7. Disclosure of Interest in Matters before the board: Any Trustee, officer or employee, 
whether paid or unpaid, who participates in the discussion or give official opinion to the 
Board on any matter before the board shall publicly disclose on the official record the 
nature and extent of any direct or indirect financial or other interest he or she, will have 
or later acquires, or that his or her spouse has, will have or later acquires, in such matter.  
Such disclosure shall include all relevant and material facts known to such person about 
the contract or transaction that might reasonably be construed to be adverse to the 
Board’s interest.  A person shall be deemed to have an “interest” in a contract or other 
transaction if he or she is the party (or one of the parties) contracting or dealing with the 
School, or is a director, trustee, officer or employee of or has a significant financial or 
influential interest in the entity contracting or dealing with the School. 

8. Not-for Profit Disclosure: Trustees, officers or employees representing any not-for- 
profit corporation proposing to do business with the School shall disclose to the Board 
the nature and extent of such business propositions. 

9. Business Relationship with the School: No director, trustee, officer or employee or a 
for-profit corporation having a business relationship Questbridge Preparatory Charter 
School shall serve as a voting member of the Board for the duration of such business 
relationship, unless the business relationship qualifies under one of the exceptions to a 
Conflict of Interest of the Conflict of Interest Policy in Exhibit A and the approval of 
such relationship otherwise complies with the terms and procedures of the Conflict or 
Policy in Exhibit A. 

10. Investments Conflict with Official Duties: A Trustee, officer or employee shall not 
invest or hold any investment directly in any financial, business, commercial or other 
private transaction that creates a conflict with his or her official duties. 

11. Private Employment: A Trustee, officer or employee shall not engage in, solicit, 
negotiate for or promise to accept private employment when that employment or service 
creates a conflict with or impairs the proper discharge of his or her official duties. 

12. Future Employment: A Trustee, officer or employee shall not, after the termination of 
service or employment with the Board, appear before the board or any panel or 
committee or the Board in relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which he or 
she personally participated during the period of his or her service or employment or that 
was under his or her active consideration.  This shall not bar or prevent the timely filing 
by a present or former Trustee, officer or employee of any claim, account, demand or suit 
against the School or district on his or her behalf or on behalf of any member of his or her 
family arising out of any personal injury or property damage or for any lawful benefit 
authorized or permitted by law. 

13. Undue Influence: Trustees, officers or employee shall avoid at all times engaging in 
activities that would appear to be unduly influenced by other persons who have a special 
interest in matters under consideration by the Board.  If this occurs, the Trustee, officer or 
employee shall write a letter disclosing all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters and the Trustee’s interest in the matter will be reflected in the 
Board minutes. 

14. Financial Disclosure: Trustees, officers and employees shall make all appropriate 
financial disclosures whenever a grievance or conflict of interest is lodged against them. 
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15. Gifts: No Trustee, officer or employee shall, directly or indirectly, solicit any gift, nor 
shall a Trustee, officer or employee accept or receive any single gift having a value of 
fifty dollars ($50) or more over a twelve-month period, whether in the form of money, 
services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or any other form, if it 
could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence him/her in the 
performance of his/her official duties or was intended as a reward for any official action 
on his/her part.  Trustees, officers and employees shall report to the Board their 
acceptance of any gift or privilege worth fifty dollars ($50) or more from any person or 
organization that is doing business or may potentially do business with or provide 
services to the charter school.  Such reporting must occur at the next board meeting 
following receipt of the gift. 

16. Political Contributions: The Trustees, officers or employees of the School may never 
ask a subordinate, a student or a parent of a student to work on or give to any political 
campaign. 

17. Related Party Transactions: The School does not anticipate having any related party 
transactions that may occur as a result of a less than arm’s length relationship with a 
related party.  The School has established requirements and procedures in its By-laws, its 
Code of Ethics and its Conflict of Interest Policy to ensure that all transactions are at 
arm’s length and that, in the event that a less-than arm’s length agreement might occur, 
proper and timely disclosure are made and any interested party shall recuse him/herself 
form the decision-making process. 

18. Penalties: In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law, any person 
that knowingly and intentionally violates any of the provisions of this Code of Ethics may 
be suspended or removed from office or employment, as the case may be, in the manner 
provided by law. 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
ARTICLE XI  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

A. Purpose  
 

The purpose of the conflicts of interest policy is to protect the School’s interest when it is 
contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of 
an officer or Trustee. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace the Code of Conduct 
of the School and any applicable state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit 
and charitable corporations. 
 
B. Definitions  

 

1. Interested Person.  Any Trustee, principal officer, or member of a committee with 
Board-delegated power, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, 
is an interested person. 

 

2. Financial Interest.  A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or 
indirectly, through business, investment or family  

a) An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the School has a 
transaction or arrangement, or 
b) A compensation arrangement with the School or with any entity or individual with 
which the School has a transaction or arrangement, or  
c) A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, 
any entity or individual with which the School is negotiating a transaction or 
arrangement. 

160



Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School  
 

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are 
substantial in nature. 
 

C. Procedures 
1. Duty to Disclose.  In connection with any actual or possible conflicts of interest, an 
interested person must make a prompt, full and frank disclosure of the existence of his or 
her financial interest and all relevant and material facts relating thereto to the Board of 
Trustees and members of committees with Board-delegated powers considering the 
proposed transaction or arrangement. 
 

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.  After disclosure of the financial 
interest and all material facts relating thereto, and after any discussion thereof, the 
interested person shall leave the Board of Trustees or committee meeting while the 
financial interest is discussed and voted upon.  The remaining Board of Trustees or 
committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. Appropriate disclosures 
must be made to the State Education Department if a conflict of interest does exist.  

 

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest  
 

a) An interested person may make a presentation at the Board of Trustees or 
committee meeting, but after such presentation, he or she shall leave the meeting 
during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement that result in 
the conflict of interest. 
b) The President of the Board or chairman of the committee shall, if appropriate, 
appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed 
transaction or arrangement. 
c) After exercising due diligence, the Board of Trustees or committee shall determine 
whether the School can obtain a more advantageous transaction or arrangement with 
reasonable efforts from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of 
interest. 
d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably attainable 
under circumstances that would not give rise to a conflict of interest, the Board of 
Trustees or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested Trustees 
whether the transaction or arrangement is in the School’s best interest and for its own 
benefit and whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the School and shall make 
its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement in conformity 
with such determination. 

 
 4. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy 

a) If the Board of Trustees or a committee has reasonable cause to believe that a 
member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the 
member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain 
the alleged failure to disclose.  
 
b) If, after hearing the response of the member and making such further investigation 
as may be warranted in the circumstances, the Board of Trustees or committee 
determines that the member has in fact failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict 
of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.  

 
D. Records of Proceedings. 

The minutes of the Board of Trustees and all committees with Board-delegated powers 
shall contain:  
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1. Names of Persons with Financial Interest.  The names of the persons who disclosed 
or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or 
possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to 
determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Board of Trustees’ or 
committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.  
2. Names of Persons Present.  The names of the persons who were present for 
discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the 
discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a 
record of any votes taken in connection therewith.  

 
E. Compensation Committees 

A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters 
and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the School for services in 
precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member’s compensation. 
 
ARTICLE XII SELF-DEALING TRANSACTIONS 
The corporation shall not engage in any self-dealing transactions, except as approved by 
the Board.  "Self-dealing transaction" means a transaction to which the corporation is a 
party in which one or more of the Trustees have a material financial interest ("interested 
Trustee(s)").  Notwithstanding this definition, the following transactions are not self-
dealing transactions, and are subject to the Board's general standard of care: 
A transaction which is part of a public or charitable program of the corporation, if the 
transaction (a) is approved or authorized by the Board in good faith and without 
unjustified favoritism, and (b) results in a benefit to one or more Trustees or their families 
because they are in a class of persons intended to be benefited by the program. 

 
ARTICLE XIII   CODE OF ETHICS FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 
Notwithstanding any provision contained herein, each member of the Board of Trustees, 
each Officer and every Employee is to abide by the following code of ethical conduct:  
1. No Trustee, Officer, or Employee of any singled organization shall hold more than 40 

percent of total seats comprising the Board. 
2. No Trustee may serve on more than two (2) separate Charter School Boards as a 

Trustee and/or Officer. 
3. Each Trustee will disclose when they have a financial, organizational or personal 

interest in a matter before the Board. 
4. Each Trustee will abstain from voting on matters in which they may have a financial, 

organizational or personal interest. 
5. No Trustee, Officer, Employee or Individual Associated with a For-Profit Corporation, 

Limited Liability Corporation or Partnership having a business relationship with the 
Charter School involving the provision of educational management services shall 
serve as a voting member of the Board of Trustees. 
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New York State Education Department 

Charter School Office 

89 Washington Street 

Albany, NY 12234 

 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Donovan Gordon is President of D. Gordon Consulting, Inc., which provides consulting services for matters 

related to sustainability, on-Site renewable energy systems, and S.T.E.M. education project-based-learning 

initiatives. The company designs, develop, and facilitate STEM project-based-learning initiatives for grades K-12. 

Harold Hamilton is President of Global Resurrection, LLC that is a real estate development corporation focusing on 

the development of sustainable and work force housing, as well as designing and facilitating STEM project-based-

learning initiatives.   

We were the project managers for the Renewable Energy Project with the Cradle of Aviation Museum and 

Uniondale High School, which was a project-based-learning initiative designed to create a renewable energy 

showcase at the Cradle of Aviation Museum.  It was an interdisciplinary/cross-curricular project that included the 

Sciences, Technology, English-Language, Arts, Math, Social Studies, and Business. Gordon and Hamilton were 

also retained by Nassau Community College Department of Excellence in Education to design and facilitate a 

S.T.E.M summer program for a middle school in Freeport Long Island. We are being retained by Adelphi 

University to design and facilitate a summer STEM program for the Hempstead school district.  With our 

experience of designing STEM project-based learning programs, we will bring a lot of value to Questbridge 

Preparatory Charter School.   

Our programs meet common core standards, and engage students in science, technology, engineering, and 

math with a focus on sustainability, renewable energy, and other technologies.  Our goal is to help the students 

develop 21st century skills, which is consistent with the mission of Questbridge Preparatory Charter School.   

Donovan Gordon is an accredited LEED Green Associate, and member of the United States Green Building 

Council Long Island Chapter (USGBC-LI).  Gordon is also a member of the Long Island Geothermal Energy 

Organization (LI-GEO).  He received his undergraduate degree in Business Management from St. Francis College, 

and his Masters in Business Administration from NYU’s, Stern School of Business.    163
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Harold Hamilton is member of the United States Green Building Council Long Island Chapter (USGBC-

LI). Hamilton is also a member of the Long Island Geothermal Energy Organization (LI-GEO). He was selected 

by formal State Senator and now current Brooklyn Borough President Eric Adams to participate on his Borough 

Hall Education Committee, to facilitate engaging concepts in STEAM relating opportunities to prepare students 

for Career and College readiness. Hamilton also has a desire to create Green schools utilizing sustainable 

principles. 

 We are both committed to partnering with Questbridge Preparatory Charter School, and we are very 

excited to start giving the students a unique and fun learning experience, which will prepare them for the jobs 

of the 21st century. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Donovan Gordon 

President 

D. Gordon Consulting, Inc. 

 

 

Harold Hamilton 

President 

Global Resurrection, LLC 
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Questbridge Preparatory Charter School Partnership 

November 25, 2013 

Dear Board of Trustees, 

The Center for the Professional Education of Teachers, (CPET) is a non-profit organization based out of 

Teachers College, Columbia University that provides research on global education practices, inquiry-

based curricula as a path to student publication, and transformative professional development services 

through its three initiatives: Studies in Educational Innovation (SEI), Secondary Literacy Institute (SLI), 

and Student Press Initiative (SPI).   

In our professional development work with New York City schools, we provide engaging professional 

development for teachers and school leaders that deepens their expertise and helps schools to refine their 

curriculum, instruction, and assessment systems.  By supporting schools with experienced professional 

development coaches across content areas and grade range expertise, CPET is well equipped to support 

schools with topics such as STEM instruction, project based learning, and effective direct instruction to 

students.   

After extensive conversations, we are confident that a partnership with CPET will help Questbridge 

Preparatory Charter School towards their mission: 

Questbridge Preparatory Charter School’s (QPCS) mission is to prepare a diverse community of K-5 

students to excel in science, technology, engineering and math (STEM) for the 21 century, and to create an 

environment where students are inspired and supported to always do their best. In order to do so, students 

will be provided with a rigorous, well-rounded, project-based and experienced-centered curriculum that 

will prepare them for excellence in school and life. 

We are very happy to offer our partnership with Questbridge Preparatory Charter School and 

look forward to supporting this mission and vision through quality professional development 

services that work alongside the school community and in collaboration with the school’s 

leadership and charter. 

Sincerely,  

Roberta Lenger Kang 

SLI Director 
Secondary Literacy Initiative (SLI) 

Center for the Professional Education of Teachers (CPET) 
Teachers College, Columbia University 

525 W 120
th

, Box 182 / New York, NY 10027-6696 

Office Phone: 212-678-3161 

http://cpet.tc.columbia.edu/Website:  
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250 West 85th Street • Suite 4D • New York NY 10024 •USA • +1 212 579 8028 • info@logofoundation.org 

 

 
 
 
November 29, 2013 
 
Ms. Lycia Grant 
Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
218-19 100 Ave. 
Queens Village, NY 11429 
 
 
Dear Ms. Grant, 
 
The Logo Foundation is pleased to partner with Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
to provide a viable and successful school option in Community School District 29Q for 
students in grades K to 5. 
 
The mission and activities of the Logo Foundation offer a good fit with your focus on 
STEM education, and your constructionist approach to teaching and learning.  
 
We can work with you in the areas of program and curriculum design, and professional 
development. 
 
We look forward supporting you as you bring Questbridge Preparatory Charter School 
to life. 
 
Best regards, 

 
Michael Tempel 
President 
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Attachment 8 (a):   Hiring and Personnel Policies and Procedure 
 

Prior to hiring of staff, the board of trustees will establish and ratify formal personnel policies 
that will govern the recruitment, hiring, management and termination of school staff during the 
charter term.  These policies will be periodically reviewed by legal counsel and revised, as 
necessary, over this term.  The Employee Handbook will ultimately contain the ratified 
personnel policies of the school.  During the planning period, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
and Principal will develop draft personnel policies.  In order to develop these policies, the CEO 
and Principal will review existing charter school hiring policies and seek guidance from New 
York City Charter School Office and legal counsel with background in the area of labor law. The 
document will be reviewed and approved by the board.  This will occur prior to the hiring of 
staff for the 2015-2016 school year.  The employment policies should ultimately contain policies 
and procedures around areas including but not limited to: 

 Employment at will 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 
 Hiring 
 Nepotism 
 Fingerprinting/background checks 
 Arrest of employees 
 Immigration Reform and Control Act 
 Regular full-time and temporary 

employment 
 Adjustments to Employee Status 
 Phasing out and elimination of 

positions 
 Unauthorized absences 
 Resignation 
 Termination 
 Return of school property 
 Personnel records and files 
 Post-employment requests 
 Time and Attendance 
 Vacation Leave 
 Weather Days and Other Closures 
 Incentive pay 
 Final pay 
 Paid deductions and garnishment 
 Overtime 
 Personal Leave 
 Sick Leave 
 Unauthorized absence 
 Verification of absence 
 Overtime and Compensatory Time 

Leave 
 Family and Medical Leave of Absence 
 Medical or disability leave 
 Bereavement leave 
 General leave without pay 

 

 Time off to vote 
 Jury Duty 
 Military Duty 
 Unused Leave Accruals 
 Insurance Benefits 
 Workers Compensation 
 Disability Insurance 
 Retirement Benefits 
 Deferred Compensation 
 Unemployment Compensation 
 Travel Reimbursement 
 Professional conduct of employees 
 Code of Ethics and Standard of 

Conduct 
 Confidentiality 
 Copyrights 
 Conflict of Interest 
 Personal appearance/Dress Code 
 Solicitation 
 Team teaching 
 No Harassment policy 
 Sexual harassment 
 Violence in the workplace 
 Employee Evaluations 
 Confidentiality 
 Acceptance of Gifts  
 Problem/Conflict resolution 
 Outside employment 
 Unacceptable behaviors 
 Drug and Alcohol-free workplace 
 Safe environment 
 Maintenance of facility 
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Although the Employee Handbook will be developed, finalized and approved during the start-up 
period prior to the hiring of staff for 2015-16, QPCS has developed policies and procedures in 
the following areas: 
 
Procedures for hiring and dismissing school personnel: Questbridge Preparatory Charter 
School (QPCS) is firmly committed to equal employment opportunity.  QPCS will not 
discriminate in employment opportunities or practices for all qualified person on the basis of 
race, color, religion, creed, sex, gender, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin, ancestry, 
age, disability, marital status, military status, citizenship status, predisposing genetic 
characteristics, or any other characteristics protected by local, state, or federal law.  Employment 
decisions at QPCS will be made in a non-discriminatory manner and are based on qualifications, 
abilities, and merit.  This policy governs all aspects of employment at this school including 
recruitment, hiring, assignments, training, promotion, upgrading, demotion, downgrading, 
transfer, lay-off and termination, compensation, employee benefits, discipline, and other terms 
and conditions of employment.  If employees have any questions or concerns about any type of 
discrimination, they should bring these issues to the attention of the principal or CEO.  Anyone 
found to be engaging in any type of discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination of employment. 
     The CEO reports directly to the board of trustees and the board will shall have the sole 
authority to set conditions of employment (including, negotiating an appropriate employment 
contract), supervise, evaluate, discipline and terminate the CEO.  The CEO (or his or her 
designee), using this or her professional judgment, shall possess the requisite authority to hire, 
supervise, evaluate, discipline and terminate all other employees of the school, consistent with 
the Law and policies adopted by the board of trustees, as may be amended from time to time.  
Employee of QPCS are generally considered “at will”, with the exception of certain employees 
with which the board of trustees or the CEO may desire to enter into a contract.  Being 
designated an “at will” employee shall mean that either the employee or CEO may terminate the 
employment relationship with our without written notice of the exact date or termination and the 
exact date of the cancellation of employee benefits connected with the termination.  The 
terminated employee may be eligible for compensation for unused vacation time and may be 
eligible for unemployment compensation; however, employees shall not earn any additional 
benefits, rights, or privileges beyond the last day worked.  This notice applies to all employees 
regardless of date of hire. 
 
Qualifications for hiring teachers, school administrators and other employees: QPCS’ 
philosophy is that the quality of the school and services provided is directly tied to the quality of 
its employees.  Professional staff selection shall be based on professional competence, 
intellectual rigor, emotional maturity, enthusiastic professional attitude, knowledge of 
instructional or operational practices, and ability to contribute to the furtherance of QPCS’ 
mission and educational goals.  QPCS will consider the candidate’s academic record and 
previous relevant experience, among other factors.  Successful candidates for staff positions must 
demonstrate that they are prepared and able to support the educational and developmental needs 
of a diverse student population or the operational and administrative needs of the school, 
depending on the particular staff position being sought.  QPCS’ staff will be expected to fulfill 
their individual responsibilities and work effectively in concert with administrators and with the 
other members of the staff as required.  In selecting and hiring teachers, QPCS will comply with 
state laws regarding certification and with the requirement of the No Child Left Behind Act (or 
its successor laws, if applicable). 
     Critically important will be the selection of the CEO, Principal, Curriculum Director, and a 
talented, passionate, energetic and cohesive team of teachers.  Among the most important 
attributes, skills and characteristics QPCS will look for in successful teacher candidate are the 
following: (1) Understanding of and commitment to the school’s mission, goals, educational 
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philosophy and activities; (2) An unwavering belief that all children can learn and succeed at 
QPCS; (3) Fulfillment of all NCLB “highly qualified requirements; (4) Teaching experience in 
the classroom or in other relevant educational positions; (5) Bachelor’s Degree or equivalent, or 
higher degree in Education; (6) Appropriate New York State certification; (7) Demonstrated and 
successful record of prior employment in educational environments; (9) Experience working 
with diverse populations of students, parents and families; (10) Experience working with 
students at-risk or educational failure; (11) Commitment to continuous improvement and 
learning through professional development. 
 
Qualification for and Responsibilities of Staff by Position 
 
Chief Executive Officer: The CEO will serve as a central leadership figure within the school 
and will be responsible for the business operations side of the school.  The CEO will work 
closely with the Principal and the board, and report directly to the Board of Trustees in the 
manner in which the Board of Trustees shall require. The CEO is the leader of the school and 
bears the responsibility for the continuous operation of the school and all matters that concern 
the school including student achievement. 
Responsibilities:  
 Oversees the issues that concern the school as a whole and will facilitate communication and 

build consensus among the principal, teachers, staff, families and the board in support of the 
school’s mission.   

 Recruit and hire Principal or participate in such matters.  
 Oversee the Office Manager 
 Fosters a collaborative leadership culture and a share decision-making structure among the    
   school’s leadership team. 
 Responsible for the success of all school programs and will ensure that the school is in 

compliance with the school’s  approved charter, board policies, appropriate governmental 
statues, its authorizer’s and NYSED regulations and all other applicable governmental laws 
and regulations. 

 Maintains open communication with the school’s authorizer, and is the liaison between 
NYSED and QPCS’ board.  Oversees the production and submission of required reports to the 
school’s authorizer. 

 Communicates with the support of the Principal the vision of the school to the public and the 
press and represents the school to parents, community leaders and the general public and 
stakeholders.   

 Maintain system to address facility needs (technology, electrical, plumbing, custodial, supply) 
 Manage move out of or within facility (furniture, books, supplies, network technology, 

computers, office equipment, and phone system). 
 Oversee school environment so that it is ready and safe for students on a daily basis. 
 Manage contracted services for building maintenance and security. 
 Manage school nutrition program; reporting meal counts to appropriate state authorities for 

reimbursement for meals. 
 Ensure compliance with Department of Health standards. 
 Oversee administrative duties related to new employees including W-4s, I-9s, HR Manual, hire 

letters, direct deposit, and garnishment management. 
 Select and manage relationships with vendors/brokers and enrolls/withdraws staff members for 

benefits including insurance (health, dental, vision, disability and retirement plans) and all 
insurance matters related to the school. 

 Manage all compliance responsibilities including Title I-V, teacher certification, safety, fire 
drill coordination, health, fingerprinting, software compliance, COBRA letters, student lottery, 
annual Sexual Harassment seminars. 
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 Manage compliance related to By-laws and charter renewal 
 Attend Board of Trustees meeting. 
 Works directly with the contracted accounting professionals and bookkeeper to ensure 

financial stability, sound fiscal planning, effective asset management and full compliance with 
government and charter audit requirements. 
 

The CEO will Have Knowledge and Understanding of: 
 QPCS’ vision and mission including its commitment to educate a diverse students body in   
   STEM and to promote the physical, cognitive, psychological, social, and ethical development    
   of students. 
 Processes and strategies for blending the diverse values and expectations of the school 

community into a shared understanding of desired student learning and development outcomes. 
 Child and adult learning and development, the teaching-learning process, and educational 

change. 
 Relevant research findings and strategies for using data to develop, implement, and maintain 

the school’s vision. 
 

Demonstrated Capacity and Experience in the Ability to: 
 Use shared decision-making effectively in the management of the school. 
 Work collaboratively with the school community to develop and maintain a shared school 

vision. 
 Ensure that decision-making regarding school operations are consistent with and supportive of 

the school vision. 
 Oversee the Principal and staff in their day-to-day management of the operations of the school. 
 Foster a caring, growth-oriented environment for faculty and students, one in which high 

expectations and high standards for student achievement will be emphasized. 
 Manage fiscal resources responsibly, efficiently, and effectively. 
 Manage human resources responsibly by selecting and inducting new personnel appropriately, 

assigning and evaluating staff effectively, and taking other appropriate steps to build an 
effective school team. 

 Monitor ancillary student services such as transportation, food, health, and extended care 
responsibly. 

 Engage in community outreach and marketing to drive student recruitment efforts. 
 

Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) At minimum 5 years of experience in an educational 
or related organizational setting as a school leader, with strong knowledge of leadership 
principles and practices gained through work experienced and formal education; (2) Master’s 
Degree or higher in business or education; (3) Understanding of instructional practices; (4) 
Strong business and operational knowledge and skills; (5) Strong speaking and writing skills; (6) 
Exceptional interpersonal skills and a strong motivator; (7) A visionary who is a strong confident 
decision-maker; (8) Technology literate; (9) Knowledge and experience with diverse cultures.  
 
Principal: The Principal will serve as a central leadership figure within the school and will be 
responsible for the instructional operations side of the school.  The Principal will report to and 
work closely with the CEO to ensure the operation of a successful school program. 
Responsibilities: 
 Responsible for the overall instructional program of the school, its development, delivery and 

assessment. 
 Fosters a collaborative leadership culture and a share decision making structure among the    
   school’s leadership team. 
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 Accountable for the attainment of student achievement goals for all students and for the school   
   to achieve and maintain good standing by its authorizer as well as the continual renewal of its    
   charter. 
 Provides day-to-day management and oversight of QPCS’ instructional and related services 

and activities. 
 Communicates the vision of the school to the public and the press and represents the school to 

parents, community leaders, stakeholders and the general public.   
 Work with the Parent Teacher Association to ensure that all parents are engaged in all aspects 

of the life of the school and have the opportunity to provide input. 
 Create and generate reports relating to instructions 
 Recruit and hire staff with support of CEO or participate in such matters  
 Attend Board of Trustees meetings. 
 Remain current regarding laws, policies, trends and best practices related to education in 

general and sharing this knowledge with staff on a regular basis. 
 
The Principal will Have Knowledge and Understanding of: 
 QPCS’ vision and mission including its commitment to educate a diverse students body in   
   STEM and to promote the physical, cognitive, psychological, social, and ethical development    
   of students. 
 Processes and strategies for blending the diverse values and expectations of the school  
   community into a shared understanding of desired student learning and development outcomes. 
 Child and adult learning and development, the teaching-learning process, and educational 

change. 
 Relevant research findings and strategies for using data to develop, implement, and maintain 

the school’s vision. 
 

 Demonstrated Capacity and Experience in the Ability to: 
 Use shared decision-making effectively in the management of the school. 
 Work collaboratively with the school community to develop and maintain a shared school 

vision. 
 Ensure that decision-making regarding instructions are consistent with and supportive of the 

school vision. 
 Oversee the instructional staff in their day-to-day management of the instructional operations 

of the school. 
 Support the CEO in monitoring ancillary student services such as transportation, food, health, 

and extended care responsibilities. 
 Engage in community outreach and marketing to drive student recruitment efforts. 
 Direct a STEM based program 
 Implement the parent outreach and student recruitment process.  

 
Minimum Qualifications and Training: (1) At minimum 5 years of experience in an educational 
or related organizational setting, with strong knowledge of leadership principles and practices 
gained through work experienced and formal education; (2) Master’s Degree or higher in 
education with NYS certification preferred; (3) Exceptional understanding of instructional 
practices including those related to delivery of instruction, development of curriculum including 
STEM programs and assessment of student performance; (4) Exceptional speaking and writing 
skills; (5) Exceptional interpersonal skills and a strong motivator; (6) A visionary who is a strong 
confident decision-maker; (7) Facility with computer technology in gathering information and 
coordinating technical resources for students, teachers, and classroom; (8) Knowledge of project-
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based approach to learning; (9) Strong math and science skills (10) Knowledge and experience 
with diverse cultures.  
 
Curriculum Director: The Curriculum Director (CD) reports to the Principal and is responsible 
for the day-to-day management of the general studies educational program.   
Responsibilities 
The CD, with oversight and support of the Principal, will implement curriculum planning, 
student assessment, the professional development of teachers, and the evaluation of teachers.  
The CD responsibilities include, but not limited to: 
 Observation and performance evaluations of all teachers 
 Recommendations for hiring, retention, salary and merit-pay decisions of teachers 
 Teacher development, supervision, evaluation and reporting on a weekly, monthly, annually   
  basis. 
 Organization, implementation and documentation of all work with teachers. 
 Supervising the organization of learning units according to level and age of students. 
 Creation of a timetable for internal and state-mandated external assessments in core subjects    
  and supervision of its implementation. 
 Systematization of templates and mechanisms for documentation of teacher and student work. 
 Analysis of assessment data and report to teachers, parents, board and administration on the    
 overall efficacy of the instructional program in meeting student achievement goals. 
  Use of technological support for data gathering and analysis. 
 Development and implementation of clear communication strategies regarding the educational     
  program with board, parents, all teachers and administration and be present at all school-   
  related meeting. 
 Coordinating with the Special Education teacher regarding instruction of children with special   
  needs and overseeing implementation of services for students with special needs. 
 Integrate culture authentically and appropriately into Science, Social Studies, Art, Music and    
 Physical Education. 
 Development of performance plan for teachers with the support of the Principal. 
 Ensure coherency and connectedness across disciplines.  
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Master’s in Elementary Education or Master’s 
Degree from a Reading Specialist/Literacy Program; (2) A minimum of 3 years of experience 
in an elementary school as assistant principal or staff developer with strong knowledge on 
instructional principles and practices gained through work experience and formal education; 
(3) Minimum of 3-5 years of teaching experience in an elementary school setting preferred; (4) 
Facility with data analysis; (5) Demonstrated experience in working successfully with diverse 
populations of students, parents and families-including students, parents and families with 
limited English proficiency. 
 
General Studies Teachers: the general Studies Teachers are responsible for ensuring that all 
students in their classes are achieving at thigh levels both academically and socially.  General 
Studies Teachers report directly to the DC. 
Responsibilities:  
 Developing effective, standards-aligned lessons that support student learning, achievement of 

school academic objectives and benchmarks and state learning standards. 
 Planning purposefully to provide students with opportunities for constructing meaning and 

developing understandings of new concepts. 
 Utilizing developmentally appropriate and rigorous curricula and instructional materials and 

presenting students with new ideas and concepts thorough a variety of strategies that inspire 
and guide them to explore, express and uncover new ideas. 
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 Administering, collecting and analyzing qualitative and quantitative data gathered from a 
variety of assessments on each student. 

 Reflecting regularly on data from student assessments along with colleagues, administration, 
or students’ families in order to inform his/her work, modify practices and increase student 
achievement. 

 Collaborating with special education teachers to execute IEPs for students with special needs 
in order to ensure they achieve academically at high levels, and are fully included in the 
QPCS community. 

 Building relationships with families of QPCS students through frequent communication 
about students’ progress and ways families can support their children’s learning. 

 Creating a classroom community that maintains the school’s high academic and social 
expectations for students. 

 Actively working to improve his or her own practice, to acquire and enhance the skills and 
knowledge necessary for excellent instruction and to generally increase his/her effectiveness 
in the classroom and in the school community. 

 Maintain and secure students’ work and projects  
 Create portfolios for students  
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Fulfillment of all NCLB “highly qualified” 

requirements and appropriate NYS certification; (2) 2-3 of successful teaching experience in 
an elementary school as a teacher or in other relevant educational positions (e.g. Teach for 
America corps members); (3) Knowledge of the project-based approach; (4) Bachelor’s 
Degree or higher in education; (5) Knowledge of the Gradual Release of Responsibility and 
Readers and Writers Workshop models; (6) Knowledge of and experience with assessments 
and relevant technologies; (7) Experience and demonstrated success working with diverse 
population of students, at-risk students, parents and families. 

 
Teaching Assistant: The teaching assistant will report directly to the Lead teacher and are 
responsible for ensuring that all students in their classes are achieving at thigh levels both 
academically and socially. 
Responsibilities: 
 Assist lead teacher in developing effective, standards-aligned lessons that support student 

learning, achievement of school academic objectives and benchmarks and state learning 
standards. 

 Utilizing developmentally appropriate and rigorous curricula and instructional materials and 
with the support of the lead teacher and presenting students with new ideas and concepts 
thorough a variety of strategies that inspire and guide them to explore, express and uncover 
new ideas. 

 Assist lead teacher with administering, collecting and analyzing qualitative and quantitative 
data gathered from a variety of assessments on each student. 

 Collaborating with special education teachers to execute IEPs for students with special needs 
in order to ensure they achieve academically at high levels, and are fully included in the 
QPCS community. 

 Creating a classroom community that maintains the school’s high academic and social 
expectations for students. 

 Actively working to improve his or her own practice, to acquire and enhance the skills and 
knowledge necessary for excellent instruction and to generally increase his/her effectiveness 
in the classroom and in the school community. 

 Assist in any other duties requested by the lead teacher. 
 Assist in the creation, maintenance and security of student portfolios  
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Fulfillment of all NCLB “highly qualified” 
requirements and appropriate NYS certification preferred; (2) 1-2 years of successful teaching 
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experience in an elementary school as a teacher or in other relevant educational positions (e.g. 
Teach for America corps members); (3) Knowledge of the project-based approach; (4) 
Bachelor’s Degree in education; (5) Knowledge of the Gradual Release of Responsibility and 
Readers and Writers Workshop models will be helpful; (6) Knowledge of and experience with 
assessments and relevant technologies; (7) Experience and demonstrated success working with 
diverse population of students, at-risk students, parents and families. 
 
Special Education Teacher: The Special Education Teacher provides consultation with and 
support to all teachers in addressing the needs of their students with IEPs as well as providing 
resource room instruction for children whose IEP requires instructional time outside of an 
inclusion setting.  The Special Education Teacher will report to the CD until the Special 
Education Coordinator is hired.  Once the Special Education Coordinator is hired, the Special 
Education Teacher will report directly to him/her. 
Responsibilities:  
 Working closely with K-5 teachers to provide direct special education instruction to IEP 

students in both a push-in and pull-out model as mandated by the IEP. 
 Conducting ongoing training for regular and special education teachers and instructional 

assistance regarding inclusive education practices, curriculum modifications, differentiated 
instruction and behavior interventions for special needs students in general education 
classrooms. 

  Assisting General Studies teachers in adapting curriculum for special needs students, and 
providing modified curriculum and resources as needed by classroom teachers. 

 Assist teachers with developing daily reports, behavioral schedules and social skills 
curriculum for special needs students in general education classroom. 

 Modeling teaching strategies and techniques for teachers for special needs students. 
 Provide resource room instruction to students whose IEPs require instructional time outside 

of the classroom setting. 
 Provide consultation and support for parents of special needs students in general education 

classroom and helping to facilitate positive collaboration between parents and teachers. 
 Conferring frequently with the district’s special education support staff and administrators to 

provide needed services regarding inclusive education practices. 
 Attend IEP’s and staff/parent meetings of students who are mandated for related services, 

testing modifications and other information related to IEPs and Section 504 accommodations. 
 Assist teachers in problem-solving and program issues related to inclusive education 

practices. 
 Ensure all SWDs have access and participate fully in all curricular and extracurricular 

programming provided by the school. 
 Participation in all school related meetings. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Master’s Degree in Special Education; (2) 
Appropriate state certification as a special education teacher and any other credentialing 
required; (3) Knowledge of special education laws and requirements; (4) Knowledge of the 
project-based approach; (5) Knowledge of GRR and Readers and Writers Workshop Model; 
(6) At least 3 years of successful experience in special education classroom teaching; (7) 
Experience and demonstrated success working with diverse population of students. 
 
Reading Specialist: The Reading specialist reports to the CD and is responsible for (1) 
providing content knowledge and resources to instructional staff regarding learning and 
teaching literacy and (2) providing reading intervention instruction to struggling students 
through push-in and pull-out instruction. 
Responsibilities: 
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 Work closely with K-5 teachers to provide direct reading intervention to targeted students in 
both a push-in and pull-out model. 

 Research and provide content knowledge and resources to staff about learning and teaching 
literacy. 

 Research and prepare materials for use by teachers 
 Research and provide information and guidance regarding a range of effective and innovative 

literacy practices through various activities such as professional development activities. 
 Maintain all necessary paperwork and projects and report on and submit information to CD in 

a timely manner.   
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Must be “Highly Qualified” under the No Child 
Left Behind Act and any other New York State Education Law requirements; (2) Master’s 
Degree from Reading Specialist/Literacy Program and Appropriate state certification; (3) At 
least 3 years of successful experience as a reading specialist/literacy coach in a school 
environment; (4) Knowledge of and experience with a variety of reading intervention 
programs, methods and strategies; (5) Knowledge of and experience with assessment and 
relevant technologies; (6) Experience working with diverse populations of students, parents 
and families; (7) Demonstrated ability to communicate and work effectively and 
collaboratively with colleagues and parents; (8) Demonstrated agility to adapt to the specific 
needs of individuals students; (9) Demonstrated ability to utilize a variety of teaching 
methodologies to accommodate students’ unique learning styles; (10) Experience and 
demonstrated success working with diverse population of students. 
 
ESL Teacher: The ESL Teacher is responsible for the instruction of students with Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) and will report directly to the CD.  The ESL teacher will oversee 
the process of identifying, testing, classifying and declassifying ELL’s. 

Responsibilities: 
 Provide direct and indirect instruction to LEP students and evaluation LEP student progress. 
 Engage in long and short-term planning addressing individual needs of LEP students. 
 Teaching a multi-model approach. 
 Providing an inviting, dynamic, innovative learning environment. 
 Prepare timely and accurate written reports. 
 Communicate and consult effectively with parents, students, teachers and administrators. 
 Serve as advisor to students and their families. 
 Cooperate with the CD and comply with school rules regarding privacy of student records and 

information. 
 Perform such additional tasks and assume such additional responsibility as are assigned by the 

CD and are consistent with the goals and objectives of the position. 
 Serve as a resource to all teachers in the school. 

Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Must be “Highly Qualified” under the No Child 
Left Behind Act, subject to NYSED law, Article 56 requirement; (2) Appropriate state 
certifications; (3) At least 2 years of successful experience as an ESOL (English for Speakers 
of Other Languages) or ELL program teacher in a school environment; (4) Demonstrated 
proficiency in Sheltered English Immersion techniques and strategies; (5) Knowledge of GRR 
and Readers Writers Workshop models; (6) Demonstrated ability to communicate and work 
collaboratively/effectively with parents and colleagues; (7) Demonstrated ability to adapt to 
the specific needs of individual students; (8) Demonstrated ability to utilize varied teaching 
methodologies to accommodate students’ learning styles; (9) Demonstrated ability to evaluate, 
test and measure achievement; (10) Experience and demonstrated success working with 
diverse population of students. 
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Special Education Coordinator: The Special Education Coordinator oversees special 
education and related programs under the guidance of the CD.  This position will be filled in 
year 2. 
Responsibilities: 
 Oversee special education and related services, programs and grants, and ensure QPCS 

compliance with state and federal laws and regulations related to the implementation of 
IDEA. 

 Support implementation of NCLB and attainment of State standards. 
 Remain current regarding laws, policies, trends and best practices related to education in 

general and special education programs specifically, and sharing this knowledge with 
administrators and staff on a regular basis. 

 Interpret, explain and apply local, state and federal laws, guidelines, policies and procedures 
for staff, students, parents, and others in a timely and accurate manner. 

 Develop systems, tools and policies/procedure for effective implementation of special 
education services, and testing accommodations as needed with the support of and in 
collaboration with the CD. 

 Expand learning opportunities for students in an on-going effort to improve services and 
programs, offer instructional guidance based on best practices, and maximize progress. 

 Provide support with complex individualized education plans including facilitating meetings 
and advising the Principal for more involved IEP processes. 

 Supervise and evaluate classified and certified special education staff, providing support, 
opportunities, coaching, mentoring, and guidance for professional growth; and assisting 
with timely performance evaluation in a manner that promotes team development and 
effective work. 

 Align program development with the goals of the school in collaboration with 
administrators, special education staff and other school staff to ensure that best use of 
resources in providing services for students. 

 Assist in the development of the special needs program budget and planned management of 
resources to support learning goals. 

 Assist with recruiting, screening, hiring, assignment and provide leadership in training 
special needs staff. 

 Apply high-level problem-solving skills and exercise expert judgment to resolve issues for 
parents, students and/or staff. 

 Serve as a resource and/or consultant to school administrators and personnel on the nature, 
causes, and solutions to the learning of students with special needs. 

 Provide thorough and timely reports, data, and information as requested. 
Minimum Qualification and Training:  (1) Appropriate state certification and any other 
credentialing requirements; (2) Special education administrative and/or teaching experience, 
including case management experience;(3) Demonstrated ability to adapt to differences and 
change in characteristics of students, programs, leadership, staff and community; (4) 
Demonstrated ability to utilize a variety teaching methodologies to accommodate students’ 
learning styles; (5) Demonstrated ability to work effectively and collaboratively with 
colleagues, parent community members; (6) Extensive knowledge of the provisions of IDEA, 
Section 504, assessment and curriculum, especially assessment and curriculum for special 
education; (7) Skilled in program development and evaluation including gathering and 
analyzing data and development and implementation of improvement plans; project 
management; instructional development; creative thinking; and commitment to quality; (8) 
Skilled in leading, supervising, coaching, and evaluating special education and other staff; (9) 
Demonstrated ability in identifying staff development needs and planning and delivering in-
service training; (10) Demonstrated ability to inform and support administrators, instructional 
staff and parents regarding special education and Section 504 law, policies and procedures; 
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assists in compliance with state and federal requirements; (11) Demonstrated ability to 
organize, plan and facilitate regularly scheduled meetings that include special educators and 
Section 504 facilitators in an effort to maintain consistency of program services; (12) 
Knowledge of and experience with programs that support learning among student of diverse 
ethnic and cultural backgrounds; (13) Experience with using data-based, decision-making 
including successful strategies and processes for program evaluation to measure achievement 
of school goals; (14) Technology skills necessary to use electronic tools for data-based, 
decision-making and effective communication, such as spreadsheets, word processing, and the 
ability to learn new programs as needed. 
 
Social Worker: The Social Worker will support the school in addressing the social, 
emotional, developmental and emotional needs of the school’s students and families, and in 
helping students’ families to access appropriate services and resources.  The Social Worker 
will report to the CD. 
Responsibilities: 
 Counsel students whose behavior, school progress, mental or physical impairment indicate a 

need for assistance, diagnosing students’ problems and arranging for needed services. 
 Consult with parents, teachers, and other school personnel to determine causes of problems 

such as truancy and misbehavior, and to implement solutions. 
 Develop and review service plans in consultation with students, their families and school 

staff, and perform follow-up assessing the quantity and quality of services provided. 
 Collecting supplementary information needed to assist students. 
 Supporting school staff in addressing issues such as suspected child abuse and neglect. 

Acting as school liaison with the New York City Administration for Children’s Services 
(ACS). 

 Assisting with such legal issues as hearing and providing testimony to inform custody 
arrangements. 

 Providing, finding or arranging for support services for QPCS families, such as child care, 
homemaker service, prenatal care, substance abuse treatment, counseling, job training, or 
parenting classes, to prevent more serious problems for developing. 

 Referring students to community resources for services. 
 Maintaining case history records and preparing reports. 
 Addressing emergency situations impacting students-e.g. homelessness, grief, stress or 

chemical dependency. 
 Arranging for medical, psychiatric, and other tests that may disclose causes of difficulties 

and indicate remedial measures. 
 Serving as a liaison between students, homes, school, family services, child guidance 

clinics, courts, protective services, doctors and others to help children who are facing 
problems. 

 Interviewing students individually, with families, or in groups, and assessing their 
situations, capabilities, and problems, to determine what services are required to meet their 
needs. 

 Participate in all relevant meetings 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) A Master’s Degree or higher in social work, with 
clinical and supervisory experienced preferred; (2) Appropriate New York State Certification; 
(3) Demonstrated and successful record of prior employment as a counselor or social worker in 
an education environment; (4) Demonstrated ability to work productively with staff and with 
diverse populations of students, parents and families, including students, parents and families 
with limited English proficiency; (5) Demonstrated understanding of issues facing children and 
youth, especially those from immigrant families and poverty-level families, in urban areas. 
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Office Manager: The Office Manager reports directly to the CEO. 
Responsibilities: 
 Maintain office efficiency by planning and implementing office systems, layouts, and 

equipment procurement. 
 Answering and redirecting, as necessary, general telephone and email enquiries. 
 Keep school leaders informed by reviewing and analyzing special reports, summarizing 

information, identifying trends. 
 Coordinating internal meetings and appointments 
 Managing postal operations. 
 Supervise assigned staff 
 Accurately maintaining and updating student information using OnCourse and ARIS 
 Collecting and filing student information as required by state and federal laws and ensuring 

student enrollment is at the correct count. 
 Managing student recruitment process including outreach and tours for parents 
 Assisting the CEO and Principal as required 
 Maintaining student waiting list according to state law; receives and organizes applications. 
 Ensure new student lottery is run in compliance with law. 
 Transmitting student transfer/withdrawal paperwork to and/or form student’s former or current 

school. 
 Carry out administrative tasks related to School Lunch Program. 
 Manage student transportation via bus and other modes of arrival, dismissal and field trips. 
 Ensure student transportation schedule is aligned with school calendar. 
 Manage daily mode changes for students whose usual mode of transportation is different from 

usual. 
 Coordinate school-parent communications and events. 
 Scheduling and logging fire alarms in accordance with laws. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Minimum of Associate’s Degree or business training; 
(2) Demonstrated and successful record of prior employment in an administrative, secretarial or 
office manager capacity in an educational environment preferred; (3) Knowledge of and 
experience with relevant technologies and social media; (4) Ability to develop standards, 
inventory controls, promote processing improvement and managing process. 
 
Executive Secretary: The Executive Secretary reports to the CEO. 
Responsibilities: 
 Provide administrative and clerical support to CEO and Principal. 
  Schedules meetings and alert school leaders to cancelations or new meeting. 
 Manage correspondence and postal operations 
 Answering and redirecting, as necessary, telephone and email enquires. 
 Maintaining hard copy and electronic file systems. 
 Prepare statistical reports. 
 Manage online sites related to QPCS with support of the Office Manager. 
 Coordinate travel arrangements; prepares itineraries; complies and maintain travel vouchers 

and records. 
 Coordinate training and other events and other duties as required. 
 Greet and receive visitors. 
 Prepare confidential and sensitive documents as requested. 
 Determine matters of top priority and handle accordingly. 
 Takes and transcribes dictation. 
 Maintain office procedures. 
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Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Minimum of Associate’s Degree or business training; 
(2) Demonstrated and successful record of prior employment in an administrative or secretarial 
capacity in an educational environment preferred; (3) Knowledge of and experience with 
relevant technologies. 
 
Nurse: Provides preventive health services to facilitate student’s optimal physical, mental, 
emotional and social growth and development.  Promotes and protects the optimal health status 
of school-age children. 
Responsibilities: 
 Providing health assessments and developing and implementing a student health plan. 
 Maintaining, evaluating and interpreting cumulative health data to accommodate individual 

needs of students. 
 Planning and implementing school health management protocols, providing health education 

anticipatory guidance. 
 Developing procedures and providing for emergency nursing management for 

injuries/illnesses. 
 Coordinating school and community health activities and serving as a liaison health 

professional between the home, school and community. 
 Conduct CPR training as needed 
 Where applicable, participate in the IEP plan development. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Qualified to practice as a Registered Nurse in the 
State of New York and holds an unrestricted license; (2) Certified in CPR; (3) B.S.N. or 
Registered Nurse with a Bachelor’s Degree; (4) Minimum of one year experience in public 
health nursing, school health nursing or pediatric nursing. 
 
Bookkeeper: The Bookkeeper posts all revenues, bank deposits, expenses, check disbursements 
in accounting system and maintains files of all related accounting documents; manages all 
payroll responsibilities including relationship with payroll service, electronic payroll processing, 
W-2 and 1099 distribution, timesheet management, posting payroll expenses in accounting 
system, filing of related documents using Binder System; Tracks all days off (vacation, sick, 
personal, jury duty, bereavement, excused absences for professional development) and 
researches ways to automate tracking and communicating this to staff members. Adhere to all 
rules and state regulations and requirements. Cooperate with contracted accountant and auditors. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Degree in Accounting; (2) Attention to details; (3) 
Certification by the American Institute of Professional Bookkeepers a plus. 

 
Chief Financial Officer: The CFO reports directly to the CEO and provides both operational 
and programmatic support to the organization.  The CFO will assists on all strategic and tactical 
matters as they relate to budget management, cost benefits analysis, forecasting needs and the 
securing of new funding. 
Responsibilities: 
 Assist in performing all tasks necessary to achieve the school’s mission and help execute staff 

succession and growth plans. 
 Train the staff on raising awareness and knowledge of financial management matters. 
 Work with CEO on the strategic vision including fostering and cultivating stakeholder 

relationships on city and state levels, as well as assisting in the development and negotiation 
of contracts. 

 Assist CEO in identifying new funding opportunities, the drafting of prospective 
programmatic budgets, and determining cost effectiveness of prospective service delivery. 

 Assess the benefits of all prospective contracts and advise the administrative team on 
programmatic design and implementation matters. 
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 Ensure the installation of adequate controls and that substantiating documentation is approved 
and available such that all purchases may pass independent and governmental audits. 

 Oversee the management and coordination of all fiscal reporting activities for the school 
including: revenue/expenses and balance sheet reports, reports to funding agencies, 
development and monitoring of contract/grant budgets. 

 Oversee all purchasing and payroll activity for staff and participants. 
 Develop and maintain systems of internal controls to safeguard assets of the school and 

oversee federal awards and programs.  Oversee the coordination and activities of independent 
auditors ensuring all A-133 audit issues are resolved, and all 403(b) compliance issues are 
met, and the preparation of the annual financial statements is in accordance with U.S. GAAP 
and federal, state and other required supplementary schedules and information obligations are 
met. 

 Monitor banking activities of the school. 
 Investigate cost-effective benefit plan and other fringe benefits which the school may offer 

employees and potential employees with the goal of attracting and retaining qualified 
individuals. 

 Oversee administration and financial reporting of the school’s Savings and Retirement Plan. 
 Oversee business insurance plan and health care coverage analysis. 
 Oversee the maintenance of the inventory of all fixed assets, including assets purchased with 

government funds (computers, etc.) assuring all are in accordance with federal regulations. 
 Assist in the design, implementation, and timely calculations of wage incentives and salaries 

for staff. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) Bachelor’s Degree or higher from an accredited 
college or university; (2) Certified Public Accountant (CPA) preferred; (3) Experience as a 
Controller or Chief Financial Officer level; (4) Five years of financial experience and 
management experience with the day-to-day financial operations of organization; (5) Knowledge 
of not-for-profit accounting in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, 
OMB Circulars A-133, A-100 and A-122, compliance requirements, and appropriate Code of 
Federal Regulations sections; (6) Knowledge of resources of public and private social service 
and related agencies; (7) Laws, regulations, and rules governing public school finance; (8) 
Knowledge of general office software, particularly the Microsoft Office Suite and MP software 
or other similar not-for-profit general ledger software and use of databases; (8) Ability to foster 
and cultivate business opportunities and partnerships; (9) Ability to create and assess financial 
statements and budget documents; (10) Strong written and verbal skills. 
 
Custodian: The custodian will report directly to the Office Manager. 
Responsibilities: 
 Clean and supervise cleaning of building  
 Perform grounds and building inspections including playground equipment; boilers and heating 

system; fire extinguishers; damage and vandalism and building for hazards. 
 Complete and submit work orders to CEO for repair or replacement of damaged equipment. 
 Receive unpack, store and deliver instructional and custodial supplies to appropriate staff 

member. 
 Maintain building inventory, hazardous material inventory, Material Safety Data Sheets 

(MSDS), custodial work request and building work request records.  Complete hazardous 
material inventory for the building and request and store MSDS information on all products. 

 Change light bulbs and perform minor repairs to building, furniture, equipment, including 
changing ceiling tiles. 

 Serve as on-call emergency contact during non-working hours. 
 Ensure snow removal and proper salting of areas for safe access. 
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 Move, unpack and assemble furniture and building equipment. 
 Assure building security by locking/unlocking doors at appropriate times, recognizing and 

correcting unsafe security conditions or reporting condition to appropriate personnel or 
authorities. 

 Respond to emergencies such as fire alarms, broken pipes, electrical shorts and fires. 
 Refer student behavioral problems to appropriate staff and assisting building staff as needed 

during emergencies to ensure student and staff safety. 
 Set-up for school programs, meetings, assemblies, special events and after-hours functions as 

requested by CEO, Principal or staff.  Move and set-up computers, public address system, 
audio-visual equipment, furniture and lighting as needed. 

 Assist building staff with fire and emergency drills.  Inspect fire extinguishers, exits and 
emergency lights as dictated by District policy or state regulations. 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
Minimum Qualifications and Training:  (1) High school diploma or equivalent; (2) Minimum of 
2 years of experience as a school custodian; (3) Knowledge OSHA rules and regulations; (4) 
Good communication and interpersonal skills; (5) Basic math skills; (6) Basic ability to 
understand documents, define problems and draw valid conclusions; (7) Knowledge of planning, 
developing, coordinating building maintenance, custodial procedures, and handling chemicals; 
(8) Operating knowledge of and experience with cleaning supplies and equipment including 
buffers, carpet cleaning/extraction machines, vacuums, basic hand and power tools, snow blower 
and floor scrubbing machines; (9) Operating knowledge of scissor-lift, ladder, computer and E-
mail; (10) Ability to lift 50 pounds or more (11) Valid driver’s license. 
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EDUCATION:  
M.A. Cultural Anthropology, Minor: Theology (Missiology)   
Nazarene Theological Seminary, 1996 

    
M.A. Business Management, 
Webster University, 1995 

      
B.A. Theology    Minor: Behavioral Science, 
Trevecca Nazarene University, 1986 

 
Diploma (4 yr.) Ministerial Studies (4 Year) 
Nazarene Theological College, 1981 
 
Diploma (4 yr.) Machine Shop Technology/ Engineering  
Mt. St. Benedict Comprehensive College, 1979 

  
Certificate, Family Development Facilitator Certificate 
University of Missouri-Kansas City, 2002 

 
EXPERIENCE:  
2010-Present      The Learning Solution Center 

Title: Assistant Director 
Responsibilities: 
 Hiring and managing tutors 
 Testing tutor ( Pre-K- 6th grade) 
 Marketing Program     

 
2006 – 2010      Oxford Christian Academy, Queens, New York 
                  Title: Owner/Administrator 
                  Responsibilities: 

 Planning, organizing & overseeing all aspects of the school from K- 6th Grade 
 Hire and manage staff. 
 Conduct weekly and monthly staff meetings 
 Completing and submitting state department of education reports 
 Ensuring compliance of state regulations and policies 
 Overseeing and maintaining accounts and the school budget 
 Maintaining effective relationship with parents and others in the community 
 Maintaining a safe and orderly physical environment in the school 
 Attending and reporting in monthly PTA meetings 
 Assuring academic outcomes meet or exceed state requirements. 
 Develop and implement strategic plan for school program. 
 Conduct staff yearly evaluations. 
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2004-2006 Bethlehem Christian Academy, Richmond Hill, New York 

Title: Administrator 
Responsibilities: 
 Planning, organizing & overseeing all aspects of the school K-12th Grade 
 Hire and manage staff. 
 Conduct weekly and monthly staff meetings 
 Completing and submitting state department of education reports 
 Ensuring compliance of state regulations and policies  
 Overseeing and maintaining accounts and the school budget 
 Maintaining effective relationship with parents and others in the community 
 Maintaining a safe and orderly physical environment in the school 
 Attending and reporting in monthly PTA meetings 
 Assuring academic outcomes meet or exceed state requirements 
 Develop and implement strategic plan for school program 
 Conduct staff yearly evaluations 
 Report month to Executive Board 
 Do fundraising for school program 

 
2001-2004         Penn Valley Community College, Kansas City, MO  
                          Title:  Adjunct Professor 
                          Responsibilities: 

 Teaching Early Childhood Education classes 
 Teaching Family Development and Marriage and the Family classes 
 Testing and evaluating students 
 Reporting to Director 
 Record keeping 

 
2001- 2002        Family Development Consulting, Kansas City, MO   
    Title: Owner 
                          Responsibilities:                           

 Consulting and training individuals in the areas of Family Development  
 
1999-2000       Pizza Hut Corp, Independence, MO 
               Title: Assistant Manager 

 Responsibilities: 
 Recruiting and training of staff 
 Strategic planning for product growth and customer service 
 Product and performance training 
 Conducting performance review 
 Revenue management 
 Conducting Profit & Loss analysis 
 Sales forecasting and manpower planning 
 Conducting High Impact Coaching 
 Driving sales through data analysis and marketing 
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1995- 1998 KCMC Child Development Corp, Kansas City, MO 
  Title: Site Manager       Head Start   
  Responsibilities: 

 Management and supervision of staff 
 Hiring, training and development of staff 
 Conduct conflict management & Cultural Diversity Seminars 
 Organizational Development and Strategic Planning  
 Ensuring adherence to company regulations & government polices 
 Networking with other agencies to meet family needs 
 Review family need assessments 
 Conducting performance review 
 Resource management and record keeping 
 Team working with internal business partners 
 Work as liaison between families and corporation 
 Doing Fundraising 
 Conduct weekly and monthly staff meetings 
 Assuring academic outcomes meet or exceed state requirements. 

 
1994-1995     Longview YMCA, Kansas City, MO 

 Title: Site Director 
 Responsibilities: 
 Site operation including a before and after school program 
 Developing and implementing an educational program and curriculum for 

the center 
 Network with other agencies to assist families with their needs  
 Management and supervision of staff  
 Procurement of scholarships 
 Managerial reports 
 Public relations 
 Resource management and record keeping 
 Revenue management 
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 Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board of Regents

Budget and Cash Flow Templates for the 2013 New Charter Applications 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

1.

2.

3.

4.
   that particular line item

5.  - Funding by School District information for all NYS School districts is located on the State Aid website at
  Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school districts. 

   Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accommodate additional districts if necessary. 

6.  - Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
   self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
   narrative that indicate the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference
   the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

New York State Education Department 

- Complete ALL SIX tabs in BLUE

- Enter information into the GRAY cells

- Cells labeled in ORANGE contained guidance pertaining to that tab

- Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B thru G contain guidance on

https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/

https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/


 Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools 
Authorized by the Board of Regents

New Applicaton Budget(s) & Cash Flow(s) Template

Please enter school name
Contact Name: Lycia Grant
Contact Email:
Contact Phone:
District of Location District 29

Examples
Pre-Opening Period March 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2015
Operational Year ONE July 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2016

New York State Education Department 



Please enter school name
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR PRE-OPENING PERIOD

March 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2015
 Assumptions

Total Revenue  350,000 

Total Expenses  195,835 

Net Income  154,165 

Actual Student Enrollment  - 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  - 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue  13,527 

District of Location  29 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  - 

 - 

Special Education Revenue

Grants

Stimulus  - 

Other  - 

Other  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  - 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs

Title I

Title Funding - Other  - 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  - 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  350,000 

Other  - 

Other  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  350,000 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  - 

Erate Reimbursement  - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)

Food Service (Income from meals)  - 

Text Book  - 

OTHER  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  - 

TOTAL REVENUE  350,000 

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
 No. of Positions 

Executive Management - CEO  1.00  50,000 

Instructional Management - CAO - Principal  1.00  41,667 

 Director of Curricum  1.00  - 

CFO / Director of Finance  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  1.00  29,167 

Administrative Staff  4.00  15,835 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  8.00  136,668 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular  6.00 

Teachers - SPED  1.00 

Substitute Teachers  - 

Teaching Assistants  6.00 

Specialty Teachers  3.00 

Aides  - 

Therapists & Counselors - Social Worker  0.50 

Other  -  - 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  16.50  - 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse  -  - 

Librarian  -  - 

Custodian  1.00 

Security  1.00 

Other  0.50  - 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  2.50  - 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  136,668 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 9%  12,300 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 12%  16,400 

Retirement / Pension 4%  5,467 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  34,167 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  170,835 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit  - 

Legal  - 

Management Company Fee  - 

Nurse Services  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  - 

Payroll Services

Special Ed Services

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials

Special Ed Supplies & Materials

Textbooks / Workbooks

Supplies & Materials other

Equipment / Furniture

Telephone 

Technology

Student Testing & Assessment

Field Trips

Transportation (student)

Student Services - other

Office Expense

Staff Development

Staff Recruitment

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below 
in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 148. This will 
populate the data in row 10.

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page number in application if 
applicable. For example, student enrollment would reference the page in the application that 

states enrollment targets.

 START-UP 
PERIOD 

CY Per Pupil Rate

List exact titles included in the position category, if different from description, and staff 
FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)



Student Recruitment / Marketing

School Meals / Lunch

Travel (Staff)

Fundraising

Other  - 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  - 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance  - 

Janitorial

Building and Land Rent / Lease  -  Lease would be entered into in March 2014 but no rent would be due prior to occupancy. 

Repairs & Maintenance  - 

Equipment / Furniture  - 

Security  - 

Utilities  - 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  - 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  25,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES  195,835 

NET INCOME  154,165 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
District of Location  - 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  - 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT  - 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  - 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL  - 



Please enter school name
PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR PRE-OPENING PERIOD PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR DISCRETIONARY PLANNING YEAR *

March 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2015 March 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2015
* This section should be left blank unless and/or until the charter agreement is duly modified to include a planning year 

Total Revenue  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Expenses  -  34,167  34,167  34,167  34,167  59,167  195,835  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Net Income  -  315,833  (34,167)  (34,167)  (34,167)  (59,167)  154,165  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Cash Flow Adjustments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Beginning Cash Balance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Net Income  -  315,833  (34,167)  (34,167)  (34,167)  (59,167)  154,165  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 January  February  March  April  May  June  TOTAL  July  August  September  October  November  December  January  February  March  April  May  June  TOTAL 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants
Stimulus  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title I  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title Funding - Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Erate Reimbursement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

OTHER  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  350,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS

Executive Management  1.00  -  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  50,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Instructional Management  1.00  -  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  41,667  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators  1.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  1.00  -  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  29,167  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Administrative Staff  4.00  -  3,167  3,167  3,167  3,167  3,167  15,835  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  8.00  -  27,334  27,334  27,334  27,334  27,334  136,668  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Teachers - Regular  6.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Teachers - SPED  1.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Substitute Teachers  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Teaching Assistants  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Specialty Teachers  3.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Aides  6.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Therapists & Counselors - Social Worker  1.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  17.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Nurse  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Custodian  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  25.00  -  27,334  27,334  27,334  27,334  27,334  136,668  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes 9%  -  2,460.03  2,460.03  2,460.03  2,460.03  2,460.03  12,300  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 12%  -  3,280.04  3,280.04  3,280.04  3,280.04  3,280.04  16,400  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Retirement / Pension 4%  -  1,093.35  1,093.35  1,093.35  1,093.35  1,093.35  5,467  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  -  6,833  6,833  6,833  6,833  6,833  34,167  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  25.00  -  34,167  34,167  34,167  34,167  34,167  170,835  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Legal  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 No. of 
Positions 



Payroll Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS

Board Expenses  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Textbooks / Workbooks  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Supplies & Materials other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Telephone  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Technology  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Student Testing & Assessment  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Field Trips  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Transportation (student)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Office Expense  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Staff Development  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Staff Recruitment  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School Meals / Lunch  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Travel (Staff)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Janitorial  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Building and Land Rent / Lease  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Repairs & Maintenance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Utilities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  -  -  -  -  -  25,000  25,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL EXPENSES  -  34,167  34,167  34,167  34,167  59,167  195,835  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NET INCOME  -  315,833  (34,167)  (34,167)  (34,167)  (59,167)  154,165  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Operating Activities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Investment Activities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Financing Activities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Cash Flow Adjustments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NET INCOME  -  315,833  (34,167)  (34,167)  (34,167)  (59,167)  154,165  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Beginning Cash Balance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

ENDING CASH BALANCE  -  315,833  (34,167)  (34,167)  (34,167)  (59,167)  154,165  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 



Please enter school name
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR YEAR ONE  Assumptions

July 1, 2015 to June 30 , 2016

Total Revenue  1,947,888  320,371  -  108,864  -  2,377,123 

Total Expenses  1,336,459  43,950  106,250  108,864  638,966  2,234,489 

Net Income  611,429  276,421  (106,250)  -  (638,966)  142,634 

Actual Student Enrollment  144  -  144 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  -  -  - 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location  13,527  1,947,888  320,371  -  -  2,268,259 See Tab Assumptions

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 1,947,888  320,371  -  -  -  2,268,259 

Special Education Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Stimulus  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  1,947,888  320,371  -  -  -  2,268,259 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title I  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title Funding - Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  -  -  -  108,864  -  108,864 See Tab Assumptions

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  -  -  -  108,864  -  108,864 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Erate Reimbursement  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  -  -  -  -  -  - 

OTHER  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE  1,947,888  320,371  -  108,864  -  2,377,123 

List exact titles included in the position category, if different

EXPENSES from description, and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions Administrative Staff paid over 12 months period

Executive Management - CEO  1.00  -  -  -  -  120,000  120,000 Annual Salary

Instructional Management CAO  1.00  100,000  -  -  -  -  100,000 Annual Salary $100,0000

Director of Curriculum  1.00  75,000  -  -  -  -  75,000 Annual Salary $75,000

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  1.00  -  -  -  -  70,000  70,000 Annual Salary

Administrative Staff  -Bookkeeper & Secretary  2.00  -  -  -  -  88,000  88,000 Annual Salary - Bookeeper $50,000 & Secretary $38,000

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  6.00  175,000  -  -  -  278,000  453,000 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS Instructional Staff paid over 10 months period

Teachers - Regular  6.00  210,960  -  -  -  -  210,960 Annual Salary $35,160

Teachers - SPED  1.00  -  35,160  -  -  -  35,160 Annual Salary $35,160

ESL Teachers  1.00  35,160  -  -  -  -  35,160 

Teaching Assistants  8.00  163,440  -  -  -  -  163,440 Annual Salary $27,240

Specialty Teachers  1.50  52,740  -  -  -  -  52,740 Annual Salary $35,160

Aides  -  -  -  -  - 

Therapists & Counselors - Social Workers  0.50  22,500  -  -  -  -  22,500 Annual Salary $45,000

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  18.00  484,800  35,160  -  -  -  519,960 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse  0.50  -  -  22,500  -  -  22,500 Annual Salary $45,000

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Custodian  1.00  -  -  30,000  -  -  30,000 Annual Salary $30,000

Security  1.00  -  -  25,000  -  -  25,000 Annual Salary $25,000

Other Hall Monitor  0.50  -  7,500  -  -  7,500 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  3.00  -  -  85,000  -  -  85,000 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  659,800  35,160  85,000  -  278,000  1,057,960 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 9%  59,382  3,164  7,650  -  25,020  95,216 Employer's SS and Med. 6.75%, Workmen Comp. 1.25% & Unemployment 1%

Fringe / Employee Benefits 12%  79,176  4,219  10,200  -  33,360  126,955 

Retirement / Pension 4%  26,392  1,406  3,400  -  11,120  42,318 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  164,950  8,790  21,250  -  69,500  264,490 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  824,750  43,950  106,250  -  347,500  1,322,450 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit  -  -  -  -  9,000  9,000 

Legal  -  -  -  -  9,000  9,000 

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  -  -  -  108,864  -  108,864 See Tab Assumptions

Payroll Services  -  -  -  -  3,600  3,600 

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  -  -  -  -  10,000  10,000 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  -  -  -  108,864  31,600  140,464 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses  -  -  -  -  3,000  3,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  25,000  -  -  -  -  25,000 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  5,000  -  -  -  -  5,000 

Textbooks / Workbooks  60,000  -  -  -  -  60,000 

Supplies & Materials other  -  -  -  -  15,000  15,000 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  50,000  50,000 Leased office furniture and equipment

Telephone  -  -  -  -  5,000  5,000 

Technology  50,000  -  -  -  -  50,000 

Student Testing & Assessment  6,000  -  -  -  -  6,000 

Field Trips  5,000  -  -  -  -  5,000 

Transportation (student)  4,666  -  -  -  -  4,666 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Office Expense  -  -  -  -  15,000  15,000 

Staff Development  10,000  -  -  -  -  10,000 

Staff Recruitment  15,000  -  -  -  -  15,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  15,000  -  -  -  -  15,000 

School Meals / Lunch  108,864  -  -  -  -  108,864 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page 
number in application if applicable. For example, student enrollment 

would reference the page in the application that states enrollment 
targets.

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below 
in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will 
populate the data in row 9.

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT 
& GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate



Travel (Staff)  5,000  -  -  -  -  5,000 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  - 

Other -Interest  -  -  -  -  17,646  17,646 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  309,529  -  -  -  105,646  415,175 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance  -  -  -  -  12,000  12,000 

Janitorial  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Building and Land Rent / Lease  127,680  -  -  -  54,720  182,400  171 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months 

Repairs & Maintenance  4,000  -  -  -  1,000  5,000 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  7,500  -  -  -  2,500  10,000 

Utilities  63,000  -  -  -  27,000  90,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  202,180  -  -  -  97,220  299,400 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION  -  -  -  -  32,000  32,000 Funiture & Equipment and leasehold improvement depreciated over 5 years.

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  -  -  -  -  25,000  25,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES  1,336,459  43,950  106,250  108,864  638,966  2,234,489 

NET INCOME  611,429  276,421  (106,250)  -  (638,966)  142,634 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location  Queens  - 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  Queens  144  144 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  - 
School District 5 (Enter Name)  - 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT  144  -  -  144 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  13,527  -  -  16,508 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL  9,281  -  -  15,517 

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 



Please enter school name
PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR YEAR ONE OF OPERATIONS

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016

Total Revenue  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  1,145,013  199,908  199,908  199,908  199,908  199,908  194,465  2,377,123 

Total Expenses  318,196  115,809  183,483  184,358  185,983  182,337  179,837  180,587  179,836  179,836  183,086  161,139  2,234,488 

Net Income  (318,196)  (110,366)  (172,597)  (173,472)  (175,097)  962,676  20,071  19,321  20,072  20,072  16,822  33,327  142,634 

Cash Flow Adjustments  252,667  137,667  177,667  152,667  152,667  (922,333)  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  (33,000)

Beginning Cash Balance  120,020  54,491  81,792  86,862  66,057  43,627  83,969  106,707  128,695  151,434  174,172  193,661  120,020 

Net Income  54,491  81,792  86,862  66,057  43,627  83,969  106,707  128,695  151,434  174,172  193,661  229,654  229,654 

 July  August  September  October  November  December  January  February  March  April  May  June  TOTAL 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location  13,527  973,944  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  1,947,888 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  Queens  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  973,944  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  162,324  1,947,888 

Special Education Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Stimulus  -  -  -  -  -  160,183  26,698  26,698  26,698  26,698  26,698  26,698  320,371 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  -  -  -  -  -  1,134,127  189,022  189,022  189,022  189,022  189,022  189,022  2,268,259 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title I  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Title Funding - Other  -  - 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  5,443  108,864 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  5,443  108,864 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Erate Reimbursement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

OTHER  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  1,145,013  199,908  199,908  199,908  199,908  199,908  194,465  2,377,123 

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management - CEO  1.00  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  120,000 

Instructional Management CAO  1.00  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  8,333  100,000 

Director of Curriculum  1.00  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  6,250  75,000 

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  1.00  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  5,833  70,000 

Administrative Staff  -Bookkeeper & Secretary  2.00  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  7,333  88,000 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  6.00  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  37,750  453,000 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular  6.00  10,548  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  21,096  10,548  210,960 

Teachers - SPED  1.00  -  1,758  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  1,758  35,160 

ELS Teachers  1.00  -  1,758  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  3,516  1,758  35,160 

Teaching Assistants  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Specialty Teachers  1.50  2,637  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  5,274  2,637  52,740 

Aides  6.00  - 8172     16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344  16,344 8172     163,440 

Therapists & Counselors - Social Workers  0.50  -  1,125  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  1,125  22,500 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  16.00  -  25,998  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  51,996  25,998  519,960 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse  0.50  -  1,125  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  2,250  1,125  22,500 

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Custodian  1.00  -  1,500  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  3,000  1,500  30,000 

Security  1.00  -  1,250  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  2,500  1,250  25,000 

Other Hall Monitor  0.50  -  375  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  375  7,500 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  3.00  -  4,250  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  8,500  4,250  85,000 

 * Total Column (Column U) for all lines other than Cash Flow Adjustments should equal the Total Column (Column N) on tab '4.) Year Budget & 
Assumptions'.   

CY Per Pupil Rate



SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  25.00  37,750  67,998  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  98,246  67,998  1,057,960 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 9%  3,397.50  6,119.82  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  8,842.14  6,119.82  95,216 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 12%  4,530  8,159.76  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  11,789.52  8,159.76  126,955 

Retirement / Pension 4%  1,510  2,719.92  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  3,929.84  2,719.92  42,318 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  9,438  17,000  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  24,562  17,000  264,490 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  25.00  47,188  84,998  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  122,808  84,998  1,322,450 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  9,000 

Legal  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  750  9,000 

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  5,443  108,864 

Payroll Services  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  300  3,600 

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  10,000 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  2,633  8,076  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  13,520  8,076  140,464 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses  -  750  -  750  -  750  -  750  -  3,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  25,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  25,000 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  5,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5,000 

Textbooks / Workbooks  60,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  60,000 

Supplies & Materials other  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  15,000 

Equipment / Furniture  50,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  50,000 

Telephone  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  417  5,000 

Technology  50,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  50,000 

Student Testing & Assessment  6,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  6,000 

Field Trips  5,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5,000 

Transportation (student)  -  -  467  467  467  467  467  467  466  466  466  465  4,665 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Office Expense  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  1,250  15,000 

Staff Development  10,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  10,000 

Staff Recruitment  15,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  15,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  15,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  15,000 

School Meals / Lunch  -  5,443  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  10,886  5,443  108,864 

Travel (Staff)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  2,500  -  -  -  -  2,500  -  5,000 

Other -Interest  1,458 2,625 3,646 4,521 5,396  -  -  -  -  -  -  17,646 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  245,375  11,735  17,916  18,791  20,416  16,770  14,270  15,020  14,269  14,269  17,519  8,825  415,175 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance  12,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  12,000 

Janitorial  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Building and Land Rent / Lease  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  18,240  182,400 

Repairs & Maintenance  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5,000  5,000 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  833  10,000 

Utilities  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  7,500  90,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  20,333  8,333  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  26,573  31,573  299,400 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667  32,000 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  25,000  25,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES  318,196  115,809  183,483  184,358  185,983  182,337  179,837  180,587  179,836  179,836  183,086  161,139  2,234,488 

NET INCOME  (318,196)  (110,366)  (172,597)  (173,472)  (175,097)  962,676  20,071  19,321  20,072  20,072  16,822  33,327  142,634 

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667 2,667  32,000 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Operating Activities  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  32,000 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures  -  (65,000)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (65,000)

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Investment Activities  -  (65,000)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (65,000)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit  250,000  200,000  175,000  150,000  150,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  925,000 

Other  - Line of credit repayment  -  -  -  -  -  (925,000)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (925,000)

Total Financing Activities  250,000  200,000  175,000  150,000  150,000  (925,000)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Cash Flow Adjustments  252,667  137,667  177,667  152,667  152,667  (922,333)  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  2,667  (33,000)

NET INCOME  (65,529)  27,301  5,070  (20,805)  (22,430)  40,343  22,738  21,988  22,739  22,739  19,489  35,993  109,634 

Beginning Cash Balance  120,020  54,491  81,792  86,862  66,057  43,627  83,969  106,707  128,695  151,434  174,172  193,661  120,020 

ENDING CASH BALANCE  54,491  81,792  86,862  66,057  43,627  83,969  106,707  128,695  151,434  174,172  193,661  229,654  229,654 



Please enter school name
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR INITIAL CHARTER PERIOD  Assumptions

Total Revenue  2,377,123  3,565,685  4,754,246  5,942,808  7,131,370 

Total Expenses  2,234,489  3,424,007  4,318,602  5,327,256  6,044,022 

Net Income (Before Cash Flow Adjustments)  142,634  141,678  435,644  615,552  1,087,347 

Actual Student Enrollment  144  216  288  360  432 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  -  -  -  -  - 

 Year 1  Year 2  Year 3  Year 4  Year 5 

20xx 20xx 20xx 20xx 20xx
 *Year 1 should tie to Totals for Year 1 on Tabs 4 and 5 

REVENUE Per Pupil Revenue Percentage Increase

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location  13,527  1,947,888  2,921,832  3,895,776  4,869,720  5,843,664 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 1,947,888  2,921,832  3,895,776  4,869,720  5,843,664 

Special Education Revenue  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants
Stimulus  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  320,371  480,557  640,742  800,928  961,114 

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  2,268,259  3,402,389  4,536,518  5,670,648  6,804,778 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs  -  -  -  -  - 

Title I  -  -  -  -  - 

Title Funding - Other  -  -  -  -  - 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  108,864  163,296  217,728  272,160  326,592 

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  108,864  163,296  217,728  272,160  326,592 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  -  -  -  -  - 

Erate Reimbursement  -  -  -  -  - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  -  -  -  -  - 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  -  -  -  -  - 

OTHER  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE  2,377,123  3,565,685  4,754,246  5,942,808  7,131,370 

List exact titles included in the position category, if different from description,

EXPENSES and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management  1.00  120,000  223,600  233,398  240,400  247,612 A COO position @ $100,000 per annum would be added in year 2

Instructional Management  1.00  100,000  103,000  106,090  109,273  112,551 Adjusted for inflation only

Deans, Directors & Coordinators  1.00  75,000  77,250  79,568  81,955  84,413 Adjusted for inflation only

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  100,000  103,000  106,090  109,273 CFO Position to be added @ $100,000 per annum would be added in year 2

Operation / Business Manager  1.00  70,000  72,100  74,263  76,491  78,786 Adjusted for inflation only

Administrative Staff  2.00  88,000  90,640  90,640  236,581  243,678 See assumption Tab

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  6.00  453,000  666,590  686,959  850,789  876,312 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Teachers - Regular  6.00  210,960  325,933  447,615  576,304  712,312 See assumption Tab

Teachers - SPED  1.00  35,160  36,215  37,301  76,841  79,146 See assumption Tab

ESL Teachers  1.00  35,160  72,430  111,904  153,681  158,292 See assumption Tab

Teaching Assistants  8.00  163,440  252,515  346,787  446,488  551,859 See assumption Tab

Specialty Teachers  1.50  52,740  144,859  223,807  268,942  356,156 See assumption Tab

Aides See assumption Tab

Therapists & Counselors - Social Workers  0.50  22,500  23,175  47,741  49,173  52,167 See assumption Tab

Other - Special Ed. Coordinator  -  -  60,000  61,800  63,654  65,564 See assumption Tab

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  18.00  519,960  915,127  1,276,955  1,635,083  1,975,496 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Nurse  0.50  22,500  23,175  47,741  49,173  52,167 See assumption Tab

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  - See assumption Tab

Custodian  1.00  30,000  46,350  63,654  81,955  104,335 See assumption Tab

Security  1.00  25,000  38,625  53,045  68,295  86,946 See assumption Tab

Other Hall Monitor  0.50  7,500  7,725  23,870  24,586  25,324 See assumption Tab

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  3.00  85,000  115,875  188,310  224,009  268,772 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  1,057,960  1,697,592  2,152,223  2,709,881  3,120,580 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes 9%  95,216.40  152,783  193,700  243,889  280,852 Employer's SS and Med. 6.75%, Worrkmen Comp. 1.25% & Unemployment 1%

Fringe / Employee Benefits 12%  126,955.20  203,711  258,267  325,186  374,470 

Retirement / Pension 4%  42,318.40  67,904  86,089  108,395  124,823 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  264,490  424,398  538,056  677,470  780,145 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  27.00  1,322,450  2,121,990  2,690,279  3,387,351  3,900,725 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit  9,000  9,270  9,548  10,130  10,746 Adjusted for inflation only

Legal  9,000  9,270  9,548  10,130  10,746 Adjusted for inflation only

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  108,864  163,296  217,728  272,160  326,592  See Assumptions Tab for calculation. 

Payroll Services  3,600  3,708  3,819  4,052  4,299 Adjusted for inflation only

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  10,000  10,300  10,609  11,255  11,941 Adjusted for inflation only

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  140,464  195,844  251,252  307,726  364,324 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS

Board Expenses  3,000  3,090  3,183  3,377  3,582 Adjusted for inflation only

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  25,000  25,750  26,523  28,138  29,851 Adjusted for inflation only

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  5,000  7,725  10,157  12,517  14,663 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Textbooks / Workbooks  60,000  92,700  121,883  150,208  175,958 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Supplies & Materials other  15,000  23,175  30,471  37,552  43,990 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Equipment / Furniture  50,000  51,500  53,045  56,275  59,703 Lease Equipment adjusted for inflation

Telephone  5,000  5,150  5,305  5,628  5,970 Adjusted for inflation only

Technology  50,000  51,500  53,045  56,275  59,703 Adjusted for inflation only

Student Testing & Assessment  6,000  9,270  12,188  15,021  17,596 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Field Trips  5,000  7,725  10,157  12,517  14,663 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Transportation (student)  4,665  6,998  9,331  11,664  13,997  See Assumptions Tab for calculation. 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  - 

Office Expense  15,000  15,450  15,914  16,883  17,911 

Staff Development  10,000  10,300  10,609  11,255  11,941 

Staff Recruitment  15,000  15,450  15,914  16,883  17,911 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  15,000  15,450  15,914  16,883  17,911 

School Meals / Lunch  108,864  168,195  221,145  272,538  319,259 

Travel (Staff)  5,000  5,150  5,305  5,628  5,970 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  - 

*NOTE: If a Planning Year is Taken in the Beginning of the Charter, the Charter Will Be Extended to Encompass Five Years of Operation.  Projected Five Year 
Budget on this Tab Should Be For the First Five Years of Actual Operations.

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page 
number in application if applicable. For example, student enrollment 

would reference the page in the application that states enrollment 
targets.

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered 
below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 
148. This will populate the data in row 10.

CY Per Pupil Rate

 State number of postions for years 2 thru 5 in assumptions if differ from year 
1. 



Other - Interest  17,646  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  415,175  514,578  620,086  729,241  830,578 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance  12,000  18,540  24,377  30,042  35,192 Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Janitorial  -  20,000  25,000  30,000  23,185 Adjusted for inflation only

Building and Land Rent / Lease  182,400  341,760  446,720  551,680  564,480  See Assumptions Tab for calculation. 

Repairs & Maintenance  5,000  5,150  5,305  5,628  5,970 Adjusted for inflation only

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  10,000  10,300  10,609  11,255  11,941 Adjusted for inflation only

Utilities  90,000  92,700  95,481  101,296  107,465 Adjusted for inflation only

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  299,400  488,450  607,491  729,900  748,233 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION  32,000  53,145  99,493  123,038  150,163 Funiture & Equipment and leasehold improvement cost depreciated over 5 years.

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  25,000  50,000  50,000  50,000  50,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES  2,234,489  3,424,007  4,318,602  5,327,256  6,044,022 

NET INCOME  142,634  141,678  435,644  615,552  1,087,347 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
District of Location  144  216  288  360  432 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  - 
TOTAL ENROLLMENT  144  216  288  360  432 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  16,508  16,508  16,508  16,508  16,508 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL  15,517  15,852  14,995  14,798  13,991 

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation  32,000  53,145  99,493  123,038  150,163 

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Operating Activities  32,000  53,145  99,493  123,038  150,163 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures  (65,000)  (100,425)  (132,040)  (162,726)  (190,622) Adjusted for inflation and student population size.

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Investment Activities  (65,000)  (100,425)  (132,040)  (162,726)  (190,622)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit  550,000  -  -  -  - 

Other  (550,000)  -  -  - 

Total Financing Activities  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Cash Flow Adjustments  (33,000)  (47,280)  (32,547)  (39,688)  (40,459)

NET INCOME  109,634  94,398  403,097  575,864  1,046,889 

Beginning Cash Balance  386,332  495,966  590,364  993,461  1,569,325 

ENDING CASH BALANCE  495,966  590,364  993,461  1,569,325  2,616,214 



Overall Assumptions
1 Perpurpil reimbursement

No rate increase is assumped for per pupil reimbursement over the five years period

2 Spcial Education 
No rate rate increase for special Education over the five years period
Revenue:
School Population
Spcial Education Board BOE estimate 11% of Population
English Language Learners BOE Estimate 10.6%

Revenue (Annual  Rate 20-60 hrs. per week $10,300)

Expenses
1 A inflationary rate of 3% per year is assumed for all expense line items

2 Employee expense is computed based of staff needs inflations
Accountant
Secretary
Executive Secretary

Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
ESL Teachers
Teaching Assistants
Specialty Teachers
Nurse
Custodian
Security
Other Hall Monitor

3 Instuctional staff needs are based on student population.

4 The following expenses base on student population adjusted for inflation

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials

Special Ed Supplies & Materials

Textbooks / Workbooks

Testing material

Furniture and equipment



Insurance

5 Rent
Year 1 - 171 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months

Year 2 - 267 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months

Year 3 - 349 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months

Year 4 - 431 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months

Year 4 - 441 persons @ 80 squere feet per person @16 per square feet for 12 months

School Lunch 83.7% 0f population

School  Lunch 180 days @ $5 per day

6 Transportation

Summer Session 6 Weeks at $25 per week per Student



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
144 216 288 360 432

16 24 32 40 48
15 23 31 38 46
31 47 62 78 93

 320,371  480,557  640,742  800,928  961,114 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1

1 1
6 9 12 15 18
1 1 1 2 2
1 1 3 4 4
6 9 12 15 18

1.5 4 6 7 9
0.5 0.5 1 1 1

1 1.5 2 2.5 3
1 1.5 2 2.5 3

0.5 0.5 1.5 1.5 1.5



 218,880 
 341,760 
 446,720 
 551,680 
 564,480 

 108,864  163,296  217,728  272,160  326,592 

 4,666  6,998  9,331  11,664  13,997 




